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Have a fresh
£ MEE R

CP Lotus is determined to offer customers with the fresh
and pleasurable shopping experience through great
variety of high-quality economic merchandise, at a clean,
tidy and comfortable environment, as well as warm and
friendly services. Each year over hundreds of millions of
customers enjoy shopping at CP Lotus.
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Our Company
2 (w1 PN

C.P. Lotus Corporation (“CP Lotus” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is one of the leading retail operators in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”). CP Lotus owns and operates 80 retail stores and 3
shopping malls under the brand name “Lotus”, offering fresh and pleasurable
shopping experience to all families by providing a neat and comfortable
environment, an assortment of high-quality and safe merchandise, and warm and
friendly services.

Our ultimate controlling shareholder, Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
(“CP Group”), is one of the leading conglomerates in Asia with over 90 years of
operating experience in various industries including agro-industry & food, retail
and telecommunication. While the CP Group is headquartered in Thailand, it is
one of the largest and oldest foreign investors in China today.
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Financial Highlights

MERE

(Loss)/Profit
for the year EBITDA
Revenue = Gross Profit EREE BRITER
A EX | (B5E),a8R | EERER
201 8 RMB AR 10,122.0 1,782.2 (288.4) 106.1
milion HB&ET
201 7 RMB AR 9,655.2 1,736.5 179.0 528.8
milion HBET
Change %% 4.8% 2.6% (261.1%) (79.9%
RMB RMB RMB
million million million
AR®HET ARBEER ARBEER
. N 10’08610!%0‘10,912 1,782 1,737 1,739 1,831 1,838 529
17.6%018.0% 1 17.2 900 17.2 %416.8%
272
241
106
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
REVENUE TREND GROSS PROFIT AND I (230)
I‘I&A@%@ %P*FQ%(%J;%\I% 2018 2017 2015 2014
2016
EBITDA TREND
SBTER BT
BB
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Chairman’s Statement
EERETE

| am happy to see that the Group has continued to IR
consolidate its foundation this year to expand its business ##
sectors and achieve profitability at the operating level.
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Operating Environment

In 2018, China’s GDP exceeded RMB90 trillion for the first —Z— \& > hEBEANEELEERER
time, reaching RMB90.03 trillion. The country’s GDP growth A R#¥90& & T » & 2| A R#90.038 &
rate was 6.6%, and at 0.3% lower than 2017 it met the > ZBIBEALEAEEERE66% =
expected development target of 6.5%. With sustained and R T65%WFEHEEEE BR_=T—+
steady economic growth, the per capita disposable income HEE%03EFDE -BELKHITERSTE
of the national residents reached RMB28,000, increased by HWIZE R ' 2B ER ABT T ZE W AZE A
6.5%. The national consumer price index and food prices rose R¥28E T ' 12 K6.5% - *EHEREE
by 2.1% and by 1.8% respectively from the previous year. ERIEHLL FE LiE21%  BRERKL
The total retail sales of consumer goods in China was RMB38 ik1.8% c H B¢ € EHB R SEEEA A
trillion, an increase of 9% year-on-year. The national online R#¥38EE Tt ' bt LFIEREI% - TEHHE
retail sales amounted to RMB9 trillion, an increase of 23.9% L+EZTEHAARBIEET L ILFER
over the previous year. According to the test data of the China 23.9% - iR E B HEXEEF LW
National Business Information Center, in the third quarter of HBBIER —FBE-—NEFEE==F=EF > 2 H
2018, the retail sales of 100 key large-scale retail enterprises BHREHAHNZTEP LS EHFLLER
nationwide increased by 1.7% year-on-year. Consumption 1.7% - HEB{IEEFHIRIBEEZENE
remains the main driving force behind China’s economic ZE&jf o

growth.

Business Review X ok

The Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB10,122.0 XKXEB - - N\FHEBRHR ALY AR
million and loss attributable to shareholders of approximately 101.220E TR R ELEEYARE
RMB288.4 million (including impairment loss in the 2884Ex (BEBEREFSEREE
amount of RMB401.5 million with respect to goodwill and #EAR#¥4.0158T) » —E—tF#HEBA
intangible assets) for the year of 2018, as compared to a R¥1.790B T %K - REFH -2 — <
profit of RMB179.0 million for the year of 2017. Since the FHIEEHEEHMEIDIR  KB-F
implementation of strategic development transformation in —tFFAREEEE TEXHKER » =
2016, the Group has adjusted the management structure and Z— \FHBERZEHEBREH
consolidate its business foundation in 2017 and achieved

breakthroughs in a number of areas in 2018:

In respect of store network, the Group continued to expand FEF/EREEFE @ NEBEEHRETS
into markets and enter into new areas. A total of 11 new W# AHEE E_ET—NEEHLER%
stores were opened in 2018 with a total additional sales floor +—ZRE/E @ S FIEHEEE 54,000
of approximately 54,000 square meters. Among the 11 new FEFK  c FE T —FRHEPR = RURE
stores, three are located in Guangdong Province to continue HR% @ #ERMERTE  —FRURER
capturing the Guangdong market; one is located in Guangxi & ' ERAEEBEXREEEAMS 3
Province marking the first time the Group has entered into 4 BE=RUAPEE & MR RTE
the market; for the remaining stores, three are in Hunan % > —RAURBEEZUR —FRURLER
Province, two are in Jiangsu Province, one is in Shaanxi m e AEEEAEENTREEEHN=
Province and one is in Beijing city. The Group currently has a ZEBY¥H . o

total of 80 retail outlets and three shopping centres.

In terms of development of operating sectors, the Group fr#geiF& A HE @ AEBERE — KRB
has transitioned from focusing on hypermarket operations w2as. . BB 2 EMW AP /N 4ESZ %
to a more comprehensive multi-sector development of gz R . Bit 5418 AR R mlLotus
large, medium, small and micro stores, as Lotus stores now  p|ys - #8 B {& F| J§ & Lotus Mini/E ° 7£
including boutique supermarkets Lotus Plus, neighborhood Qo0 HE ' AEEEEHRES FEGTE
community stores and Lotus Mini stores. In the online-to- EFEWFELS @ IBF B TN EFEYAPP
offline sector, the Group continued to promote the integration [ OTUS-GO |HEXL K% - EIRFISEHE
of online and offline channels and upgrade the operating HAMEFFEEEAE  AHEMNEEZZE
standard of the self-developed e-commerce shopping app EA4E, ANEBEEMEENRENZE
“LOTUS-GO”, while promoting in-depth cooperation with FEg®iE B3 EBENEZILE ' &K
large e-commerce platform vendors such as JD, TMall and gz E A% HEEZE o

Meituan. Providing consumers with convenient services
and multi-channel options has been widely recognised
by consumers and has a significant future development
prospect and potential.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERHBEE

In terms of operating efficiency, the Group continued
to optimise the store structure and products. Through
optimisation of store display, the Group increased the
proportion of food products as well as the introduction of
imported products. Sales of certain imported fruit items
were at the forefront of the regional market. The Group also
enhanced customer experience using information technology
and platform and creative marketing strategies. In light of
the development in consumption stratification, the Group
implemented strategy to focus on younger customers and
has started to see its effectiveness. At the same time, the
Group also optimised its employee performance policy,
through working with consulting agencies streamlined
internal processes, staff structure and ultimately providing
the quality for talent retention to the benefit of the Group’s
future development. During the reporting period, the Group
achieved significant improvement in area efficiency and
human resources efficiency.

Prospect

In 2019, China’s GDP growth rate is expected to maintain
a stable level, with an overall focus on quality-improvement
development. Consumption is expected to provide steady
contribution for China’s economic growth. New retail industry
driven by the utilisation of artificial intelligence technology
will continue to shape consumption patterns and market
competition. To this end, we have laid a solid foundation
in 2018 which keeps us confident in the future to meet the
challenges and capture market opportunities. In 2019, the
Group will maintain store opening at a steady pace and
continue to explore new business models, create supply
chain differentiation through collaboration, focus on creation
of core product categories and promote business strategies
focused on younger clientele. We aim to further improve
digitalising, automating and streamlining of process using
Al technology as a core to increase operating efficiency. We
will enhance supply chain logistics distribution capabilities,
support, and continue multi-sector growth and development,
and at the same time focus on sustainable and healthy
development of the Group, in particular while maintaining the
core corporate value of the Group — to benefit the country,
the people and the Group. We believe that our business
model and business philosophy will facilitate long-term
sustainable development. The Group has an excellent team
and a strong foundation, and accordingly | am confident with
the Group’s performance in 2019.

Acknowledgment

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to express
my heartfelt gratitude to the shareholders, banks and
suppliers who have given their trust and support to CP
Lotus in the past year, and to each and every employee
who has made unremitting efforts and contributions to the
development of the Group. Finally, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all the board members for your guidance
and support!

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman

27 February 2019
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

KPIs relating to revenue, margin and expenses are detailed in
the financial review section. Details of the other key performance
indicators relating to business management are provided below:

EEENWR D

I

BERRER(ERRRAEER]

WA FERERZBERRRERCFIINEY
BOED HtANEBERE 2BRRRE
BAT

Store retail area 2018 2017 Change
ZEHEER —E-N\F —E—+tF 25
Store numbers EHEA 80 69 15.9%
Sq. metres (’000) FFHK(F) 859.6 788.4* 9.0%

* Area excludes two stores which were closed for renovation

In addition to the amount of sales each year, the Group also
measures its network expansion through the increase in area of
retail selling space.

Retail area is defined as the sales floor area and area sub-leased to others,
excluding areas in shopping malls.

© ERET B E T R B SR
BRTEFHNHERN  A5ETEBTEHE
ZEHEERRITEEAFRER -

HERBSHEEERRBR D E M ZEE 8
TEIFENF O ZEHE -

Like-for-like sales growth 2018 2017 Change
BELLERHEEER —E2-N\F —ZE—tF 28
Sales growth HEEER 0.6% -8.0% 8.6%

Like-for-like store sales is a valuable indicator on individual store
performance and the overall financial health of the Company.

Like-for-like store sales growth is calculated by comparing the aggregate
sales derived from stores which were had been opened over the 12 full
month period for two consecutive years

B EHEEREREMRRNQAARENE
RRANERER -

R EHEHEE R KB REEMEFE - BHF*
BE1I2ARA 2 EHZEERFSE

Average customer count per day 2018 2017 Change
BHEHEEAR —E-N\F —E—LF B E
Customer visit HIEEH 3,933 4,193 -6.2%

By looking at the customer count change and in particular the
change in different demographic groups helps the Company to
devise more focused marketing strategies.

Average customer count is calculated as total customer count for like-for-like
stores divided by 365 days

BERIEREEARNEL [HRRTEEFEH
PAOZRE R  BBRAQARAEMNS

FIIREE AR I EL 1 2 R B A R BR X 365K 7t
=
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWNE D
o

FINANCIAL REVIEW

C.P. Lotus and its subsidiaries recorded a net loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”) of approximately
RMB288.4 million (2017: approximately RMB179.0 million profit).

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mERmR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
E-E-NFF+ZA=t-HULFE

Bt %5 0 8

NgEBEREREMBATBE-_ZE—N\E+=A
=t+t—HLEFE(REHE D FEBARQATRKEK
EiREIEFELS Y ARK288,400,0005T (==
—tF : Y AER®E179,000,0007T Z&mA]) °

2018 2017 Change Change
—E-N\E —E-tF 25 28

RMB million  RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT ARWEBER AR%EER %
Revenue ON 10,122.0 9,655.2 466.8 4.8
Gross profit ES 1,782.2 1,736.5 45.7 2.6
Other revenue and other net loss Hitth s R EMEEFE 224.3 563.8 (339.5) (60.2)
Distribution and store operating costs EEREREERAR (1,850.9) (1,707.1) (143.8) 8.4
Administrative expenses THBER (260.9) (266.4) 5.5 @2.1)
Finance costs 4% (117.2) (101.6) (15.6) 15.4
Income tax FREH (65.9) (46.2) (19.7) 426
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(BER) /7 (288.4) 179.0 (467.4) (261.1)

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: T ATEEFEE (BE) /HEH:

Equity shareholders of the Company ARRARE (288.4) 179.0 (467.4) (261.1)

Revenue increased by approximately RMB466.8 million, or 4.8%,
to approximately RMB10,122.0 million (2017: approximately
RMB9,655.2 million). The increase was mainly due to additional
revenue from eight hypermarkets, two boutique supermarkets and
one neighbourhood store opened in 2018, in addition to an increase
of 0.6% in same stores sales when compared with last year, with
such increase mainly attributable to growth in sales from fresh food
and dry grocery categories.

Annual Report 20184 #

I A 34049 A R #466,800,0007T54.8% = #
A E#10,122,000,000T (ZZ—tF : YA
R #£9,655,200,0007T) c WARETERHRKRZ
E-N\EERNARAEET WMEBRBTR
—XMEFEFEZFEMIN  UREHER
BHECHERERSEALEHEERELAFER
0.6% °



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit margin was 17.6% of sales (2017: 18.0%). Gross
profit increased by approximately RMB45.7 million or 2.6%. Gross
profit margin comprised front and back margin. Front margin is
sales minus direct cost of sales; whereas back margin is discounts,
rebates and other fees the Group receives from suppliers. Front
margin dropped by 0.6% to 8.4%, and back margin increased by
0.2% to 9.2%. The decline in gross margin was mainly due to the
opening of eleven new stores and the development of business-to-
business sector, each of which had a relatively lower front margin.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

EEENWR D

=

ENBDBEERE217.6% (ZE— £ F:
18.0%) o EFIE A A K #45,700,0007T =
2.6% ° %%J?{?—EEEIJé.‘ﬂfﬁiﬁ?éé‘ﬂi&ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁi °
FEABEHEEREEREEERSN MEAR
%Uifﬁ?‘a%lukﬁiﬁﬁma{#ﬁ?;ﬁzmu CIRF R
HttEBA s AFERL T0.6%ES8. 4%&1&
EFEEIMNT0.2%E9.2% ° EXZRFHDE
ERAERT— %%ﬁﬁﬁ&m%ﬁﬂm%ﬁ%iﬁé
R WA &R ERERIE -

DW]'

]]]B

EFIZE

o,
20% 17.6% 18.0% Front Margin
15% BB FE

o ——
8.4%
’ 9.0% Bl Back Margin

10% E3=Ei) |

o,

0%

2018

2017

Other revenue and other net loss was approximately RMB224.3
million, or 2.2% of sales (2017: approximately RMB563.8 million or
5.8% of sales), comprised mainly lease income received from the
leasing of store space. Lease income increased by approximately
RMB49.3 million to approximately RMB572.1 million as a result
of contribution received from additional leasing space in eight
hypermarkets opened during the Reporting Period and higher
rental charged by the Group upon lease renewal. An exchange
loss of approximately RMB60.7 million was recorded as a result
of depreciation in the RMB/USD exchange rate of approximately
5.04% during the year in our USD borrowing; however, such loss
was partially offset by a gain of approximately RMB20.9 million from
the USD non-delivered forward exchange contract entered into by
the Group (“USD Forward Contract”) which will expire on 23 July
2019. Furthermore, impairment losses of approximately RMB401.5
million was recorded in 2018 with respect to intangible assets
and goodwill from the acquisition of Shanghai Lotus Supermarket
Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“SLS”) in 2008 as the performance did not
meet the management’s expectation, which was attributable to the
challenging market conditions and the lease termination caused by
the landlord in breach of the lease agreement for one of the stores
in Shanghai.

Distribution and store operating costs was approximately
RMB1,850.9 million or 18.3% of sales (2017: approximately
RMB1,707.1 million or 17.7% of sales), and comprised mainly
personnel expenses, rental expenses, utility expenses and
depreciation and amortization amounting to approximately
RMB1,626.4 million or 6.7%, 5.6%, 1.8% and 2.0% of sales
respectively. Personnel expenses increased by approximately
RMB9.5 million mainly due to the opening of new stores during the
year and the annual increase in statutory minimum wage. Rental
expenses increased by approximately RMB63.7 million due to the
opening of new stores including eight hypermarkets, two boutique
supermarkets and one neighbourhood store during the Reporting
Period and the increase in rental expenses for like-for-like stores.

HMUEREMNBEEFEAENAARE
224,300,000t HEEFE 22.2% (=& t
: %’JAE%%S 800, 00075‘2%%%52
5.8%)  TEAEWRBMHBESZKA - BE
Ug A B8 0 49 A R #49,300,000T £ Y AR
572,100,000t ' TEFER AR EHEFAR
NRARBEBHmZ2ENMMEZTEARAEEREE
EHRFWNES 2B SR2ER/ « ARA

il

EFAE%R%EE?EE%’B 04% ' EE
RERPHIEHESHN (ELEHEHN]) B0F
CE_RAELA-T =R I BRT

HEFEELEB ALY AK®60,700,0007T @ A
ﬁ‘ﬁ EZEREETEﬁBﬁ%EE.ﬁnTE’J TEAS
%IJ # AR %20,900,0007C FTiKsH - ZE B R
SREARBERAEERETENEER S
MARIEEE R —EREEEHENEY ‘éé&

®RATHESHBEEENES  AEEN=
—\FHREZBENFRBLEZE Tbﬁfﬁ

BHERAR ([ LEET) 2 BpEERBE
BB B 18 49 A R #401,500,0007T °

BEEZEREERR ALY
1,850,900, OOOE_EﬁéEEEZW 3% (
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CEENERE SR

Administrative expenses was approximately RMB260.9 million or
2.6% of sales (2017: approximately RMB266.4 million or 2.8% of
sales). It mainly comprised personnel expenses of approximately
RMB208.6 million, depreciation and amortization charge of
approximately RMB13.8 million, rental expenses of approximately
RMB19.1 million and professional fee of approximately RMB11.0
million. The decrease was mainly due to a reduction in personnel
expenses of approximately RMB4.4 million following the continued
refining of organisation structure and improvement in productivity
and work efficiency.

Financial costs was approximately RMB117.2 million, or 1.2% of
sales, representing an increase of approximately RMB15.6 million
from last year (2017: approximately RMB101.6 million). Included
was approximately RMB2.8 million expenses relating to an interest
rate swap entered by the Company on 16 July 2018 to reduce the
exposure to interest rate fluctuations in the USD loans from the
controlling shareholder.

Income tax was approximately RMB65.9 million (2017:
approximately RMB46.2 million).

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB288.4 million (2017: profit of approximately
RMB179.0 million). The change from profit to loss was largely
attributable to the impairment losses in the amount of approximately
RMB401.5 million on goodwill and intangible assets during the
Reporting Period.

Capital expenditure was approximately RMB253.1 million for
the Reporting Period (2017: RMB330.5 million), mainly applied
towards opening of new stores, renovation of existing stores
and replacement of equipment. The Group financed its capital
expenditure through a combination of cash generated from its
operating activities, loans from controlling shareholder and banking
facilities.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R B RO B R

As as 31 December 2018
R—F—NE+=—HA=+—H

2018 2017 Change Change
—E-N\F ZE-tfE ) X))
RMB million  RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT ARBEER AR%EBER %
Property, plant and equipment and NE BERRER
Interests in leasehold land held HEHECBALH
for own use under operating leases HERER 1,855.3 1,813.2 421 2.3
Goodwill [k 2,268.8 2,654.3 (385.5) (14.5)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBRE%H 461.4 166.1 295.3 177.8
Pledged bank deposits ERARTER 61.9 59.9 2.0 3.3
Inventories BE 1,315.0 1,144.7 170.3 14.9
Trade and other receivables EERHMEWHRE 1,016.6 863.5 153.1 17.7
Other assets HthEE 131.7 172.4 (40.7) (23.6)
Total Assets mEE 7,110.7 6,874.1 236.6 3.4
Loans from controlling shareholder, ERBRRER RTERR
bank loans and other loans Ht&ER 1,315.5 1,186.3 129.2 10.9
Trade payables and other liabilities EERGNERAMES 4,388.1 3,998.2 389.9 9.8
Total liabilities BnefE 5,703.6 5,184.5 519.1 10.0
Net Assets BERHE 1,407.1 1,689.6 (282.5) (16.7)
Share capital A 405.7 405.7 - =
Reserves i 1,001.4 1,283.9 (282.5) (22.0)
Total Equity EEaE 1,407.1 1,689.6 (282.5) (16.7)

Property, plant and equipment & Interests in leasehold land held %% - EERREREERNE BT HESE
for own use under operating lease increased to approximately 1% 0% 4 A K%1,855,300,0005T %2.3%
RMB1,855.3 million or 2.3% (2017: approximately RMB1,813.2 (=ZZ—+t & : 8 A K #¥1,813,200,0007T) -
million), mainly because of addition in property, plant and equipment FERABBZH/GEEMIEHBFTMAEY
of approximately RMB253.1 million following the opening of new ¥ -EERZHEHN AR1253,100,0007T ;
stores and other store renovation, and was offset by depreciation WRBEHABARTERBHEHEANARY
and amortization of approximately RMB201.9 million and disposal 201,900,000 7t R¥¥ - EERZHEHEN
of property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB9.1 million A K#9,100,0007TFrik s °

during the Reporting Period.
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CEENERE SR

Goodwill was approximately RMB2,268.8 million (2017:
approximately RMB2,654.3 million), comprising approximately
RMB2,141.4 million, RMB124.0 million and RMB3.4 million in the
East China Region, the South China Region and North China Region
respectively. Impairment test on the goodwill value was carried
out annually based on a number of market assumptions including
discount rates, forecast growth rates and expected changes to
direct prices and selling costs. The Group recognised an impairment
loss of approximately RMB385.4 million in 2018 with respect to the
goodwill for the East China Region.

Further details of goodwill, including the key basis and assumptions
of the impairment test, are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately RMB461.4
million as at 31 December 2018 (2017: approximately RMB166.1
million).

Pledged bank deposits amounted to approximately RMB61.9
million as at 31 December 2018 (2017: approximately RMB59.9
million), mainly representing deposits pledged for the issuance of
bank accepted bills for payments to suppliers.

Inventories was approximately RMB1,315.0 million as at 31
December 2018 (2017: approximately RMB1,144.7 million),
representing an increase of approximately RMB170.3 million. The
average inventory turnover days was 54 days (2017: 53 days).
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Trade and other receivables increased by approximately
RMB153.1 million to approximately RMB1,016.6 million (2017:
approximately RMB863.5 million). Included in the balance
was approximately RMB407.0 million (2017: approximately
RMB383.3 million) of trade receivables, rental deposit, value-
added tax recoverable and other debtors. All of the trade and
other receivables, apart from the rental deposits of approximately
RMB131.6 million (2017: approximately RMB125.5 million), were
expected to be recovered within one year and thus no provision was
made. Also included in the balance was approximately RMB591.5
million (2017: approximately RMB465.8 million) of receivables
from related companies. Credit terms of 30 days to 90 days was
offered to related companies and corporate customers with ongoing
relationship, and approximately 49% of the trade receivables
outstanding had an aging of less than 90 days. Subsequent to
the Reporting Period, the Group has recovered approximately
RMB315,000,000 trade receivables due from related companies,
of which approximately RMB14,679,000 belonged to the 61 to 90
days category and approximately RMB300,321,000 belonged to
the over 90 days category in the above ageing analysis. The USD
Forward Contract with a net fair value approximately RMB7.1 million
(2017: approximately RMB40.1 million, included in trade and other
payables) had been recognised as derivative financial assets and
included in the trade and other receivables during the Reporting
Period.

Other assets was approximately RMB131.7 million (2017:
approximately RMB172.4 million), comprising intangible assets
of approximately RMB111.9 million and deferred tax assets
of approximately RMB19.8 million. Intangible assets included
operating lease agreements to which certain current subsidiaries
were subject when they were acquired by the Group in 2008 and in
2012. Intangible assets were amortised using straight-line method
over the remaining lease terms which vary from 10 to 30 years.
As at 31 December 2018, the net book value of the lease interest
attributable to the Tianshan Lease Agreement was RMB16.1
million, which was recorded as intangible assets in the financial
statements of the Group. Due to the termination of the Tianshan
Lease Agreement, the Group also recognised an impairment loss of
approximately RMB16.1 million with respect to the intangible assets
attributable to the Tianshan Lease Agreement.
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EERHMEBRREBEZEMNYARE
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Loans from controlling shareholder, bank loans and other
loans amounted to approximately RMB1,315.5 million as at
31 December 2018 (2017: approximately RMB1,186.3 million),
representing an increase of approximately RMB129.2 million, due
to the depreciation in RMB/USD exchange rate against our USD
borrowing and the increase of PRC bank loans. Of the RMB1,315.5
million, approximately RMB958.4 million was related to a USD
loan extended by C.P. Holdings (BVI) Investment Company Limited
(“CPH”), the controlling shareholder of the Company, to the
Company and to be repaid on December 2020.

LOAN PORTFOLIO

As at 31 December 2018
R=—F-NF+-A=1—H

K #1,186,300,000) @ ¥ T &
129,200,000t ' REAAEBENETHER
ARBAREAEZRZAERENHBENETE
F oA ARY1,315,500,000cEH - AR
#£958,400,000 T JIE R — E W A N B IR AR
R C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited ((CPH)) A2 B » AATHFR=
E_EFT+-AEE-

3

s 7 25 >
ETE-AF

|

Loans from

controlling Loans from
Bank loans  shareholder  third parties Total

ERBRR F=FRfz
BITEX ER ER wE

RMB million  RMB million RMB million
AREBER AR%BER AR%HER %
Within one year —FR 311.6 - - 311.6
Over one year —F#% - 958.4 455 1,003.9
Total “m 311.6 958.4 45.5 1,315.5

Trade payables and other liabilities was approximately
RMB4,388.1 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017: approximately
RMB3,998.2 million) of which approximately RMB188.9 million
(2017: approximately RMB171.9 million) was with related parties.

Reserves was approximately RMB1,001.4 million as at 31
December 2018 (2017: approximately RMB1,283.9 million),
comprising share premium of approximately RMB1,933.2 million,
other reserves of approximately RMB237.3 million and accumulated
losses of approximately RMB1,169.1 million.
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Capital structure

The Group obtained its working capital through a combination of
funds generated from operations and bank and other borrowings.

Liquidity and finance resources

The Group has been carrying out a restructuring since the end of
2016 in anticipation of the Company’s future development and
business strategies. The Group continues to benefit from this
reform, and cash flow from operating activities has improved. During
the year of 2018, net cash generated from operating activities
increased by approximately RMB343.1 million to approximately
RMB646.9 million (2017: approximately RMB303.8 million).
During the Reporting Period, other than the cash generated from
operating activities, the Group’s sources of funds also came from
banking facilities. The increase in net cash and cash equivalents
was mainly due to cash generated from operations and additional
bank borrowing being less than capital expenditure payments and
repayment of bank loans and interest. We expect the Group will
continue to benefit from the restructuring in 2016. The cash flow
from operating activities in the foreseeable future will continue to
improve and the Group will generate sufficient cash to meet its
business needs.
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For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=1T—-BHLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+tF
Cash and cash equivalents (RMB million) RekB\AEE(ARBEER) 461.4 166.1
Loans from controlling shareholder, bank loans #ERBRRER - BITERR
and other loans (RMB million) HER (ARBBEET) 1,315.5 1,186.3
Net cash inflow/(outflow) after effect of foreign ~ WEFR A CRH) B (KZEH
exchange rate changes (RMB million) WERES 2HE)
(NREBEERT) 205.3 (20.8)
Current ratio (x) FEhEE = (1) 0.62 0.44
Quick ratio (x) BN = (1F) 0.34 0.21
Gearing ratio (x) EREEELE (13)
(defined as loans from controlling shareholder,  (LUIERBRREF - BITER
bank loans and other loans divided by total REMERBRUABERTEH)
equity) 0.93 0.70
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During the Reporting Period, our bank loans bore interest at six-
month rate of People’s Bank of China (“PBOC Rate”) multiplied by
1.20, being 5.22% per annum, or fixed interest of 4.79% to 5.31%
per annum. The loans from controlling shareholder bore interest at
three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 4.40%
to 5.65% per annum. On 16 July 2018, the Company entered into an
interest rate swap contract in the notional amount of approximately
USD139.8 million to reduce the exposure to interest rate
fluctuations in the USD loans from the controlling shareholder. The
swap converts variable rate obligations into fixed rate obligations,
and accordingly the Group will continue to make interest payments
based on fixed rates of 7.40% to 8.65% per annum instead of
floating rates of three-month LIBOR plus 4.40% to 5.65% per
annum during the term of the loans.

Foreign currency exposure

As the Group’s retail operations are all based in the PRC, the
Directors consider that the Group is not exposed to significant
currency risks in its retail operations.

The Group faces foreign currency risk from controlling shareholder
loans and other loans which are denominated in USD. The Company
entered into the USD Forward Contract with a notional amount of
approximately USD139.8 million, expiring on 23 July 2019. A gain
of approximately RMB20.9 million was recorded as of 31 December
2018 from the USD Forward Contract as a result of the depreciation
of RMB. The Group does not enter into derivative transactions for
speculative purposes.

Employees, training and remuneration policy

The Group employed approximately 10,900 employees as at 31
December 2018, of which approximately 1,400 were head office
employees and approximately 9,500 were store employees. The
Group’s remuneration package to its employees was determined
based on performance and experience of the employee and the
prevailing market rate. Other employee benefits also include
insurance and medical cover, and subsidised trainings.

Charges on assets

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group has no material
charge on its assets.

Significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals
Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no other

significant investments nor material acquisitions or disposals during
the Reporting Period.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

New sectors and new areas

The Group opened a total of eleven new stores in 2018, including
eight hypermarkets, two boutique supermarkets and one
neighbourhood community store. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group owned and operated 80 retail stores and three shopping
centres and achieved breakthroughs in terms of regions, sectors
and commercial models.

The Group actively explores multi-sector mode of development.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s strategy shifted
from primarily developing the hypermarket sector to a more
comprehensive multi-sector development of large, medium,
small and micro stores, as Lotus stores now include boutique
supermarkets Lotus Plus, neighbourhood stores and Lotus Mini
stores. In the online-to-offline sector, the Group continued to
promote the integration of online and offline channels and upgrade
the operating standard of the self-developed e-commerce shopping
app “LOTUS-GO”, while promoting in-depth cooperation with large
e-commerce platform vendors such as JD, Tmall and Meituan.
Providing consumers with convenient services and multi-channel
options has been widely recognised by consumers and has a
significant future development prospect and potential.

The Group also made breakthroughs in some new regions. For
example, we entered into the Guangxi market for the first time and
opened a hypermarket in Qinzhou City. The Group also opened
a boutique supermarket in Changsha and two hypermarkets in
Yongzhou, each located in Hunan Province where the Group
has been actively developing. Within the 11-month period from
December 2017, the Group has opened three stores in Yongzhou
City and achieved our regional strategic layout target.

Improve operating standards and system efficiency

To capture business opportunities and overcome challenges, the
Group completed the upgrade of ten stores during the Reporting
Period in line with business adjustments, revising the store floor
plans, compressed the Lotus store areas, expanded the leasing
areas to other lessees, and actively introduced branded merchants
to provide customers with a diversified array of products in their
shopping experience and create a communal shopping environment.
At the same time, we optimised the product display within each
store and upgraded the fresh products in line with a business
strategy for younger target customers. The key operation indicators
such as area efficiency and human resources efficiency have been
greatly improved.
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The Group continued to use information technology systems and
tools to improve operating standard and system efficiency. We
worked with IBM and Oracle to create a new ERP system that is
more suitable for multi-sector development, established a data
warehouse, conducted big data analysis in the development of
precision marketing activities, optimised the product category
structure and improved overall operating efficiency. Our extensive
application of facial recognition payment technology and “LOTUS-
GO” self-service cash register achieved technical advancement
and has significantly reduced labor costs and shortened customer
queuing time to enhance the customers’ shopping experience. For
online shopping, the Group steadily promoted function expansion
and operation standard of the e-commerce shopping app “LOTUS-
GO” while developing in-depth cooperation with large e-commerce
platform vendors such as JD, Tmall and Meituan, which further
enhanced our online-to-offline integration.

In terms of financial management, the Group completed the
establishment of an accounting service sharing centre during the
Reporting Period and simultaneously carried out optimisation
and improvement of a number of accounting operations, enabling
the service sharing centre to undertake additional accounting
operations and increasing the financial data management efficiency
between the head office and each individual store.

To ensure we retain our reputation for quality products, the Group
implemented a strict protocol of product access and inspection
verification, and engaged Société Générale de Surveillance S.A,,
an internationally recognised inspection authority, to conduct food
safety assessments and product inspections. During the Reporting
Period, the Group conducted quality control assessment for more
than 180,000 times on fresh products.

In terms of process efficiency, the Group improved the ISO
documentation, simplifying the operating approval process and
reducing the amount of forms required to be completed by close to
20% through the use of electronic system operation.

Creating supply chain differentiation through collaboration,
focusing on creation of three core product categories and
optimising product structure

During the Reporting Year, the Group focused on building three core
product categories, optimising our product structure and enhancing
our product mix and supply.

In order to create competitive advantage, the Group continued to
focus on the development of a differentiated supply chain through
coordinated brand building using available resources, expanding
distribution channels, strengthening cooperation with suppliers,
thereby creating a new collaborative supply chain which offers
quality products to consumers.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Against the backdrop of intensifying consumer stratification,
consumer demand for imported goods has increased. The Group
continued to strengthen its import capability and adhere to the
criteria of “good production location, reputable brand and quality
grade” in selecting imported products, in order to continue to
provide consumers with high-quality overseas products. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s direct import growth rate reached
130%. Using Lotus Plus boutique supermarket as an example, the
proportion of imported product items to total product offering items
reached 40%.

At the same time, the Group placed great emphasis on developing
fresh product procurement centres with a view to provide
consumers with safe, reliable and economic products. The Group
took into consideration product originating location and core
environmental standard in selecting the fresh product bases,
and also placed emphasis on location marking, safety, green
qualifications and certifications of the fresh products.

The Group has developed products sold in its own brands and
in doing so adhered to the principle of “three goods” — good raw
materials, good craftsmanship and good quality — to develop cost-
effective and value-driven products of international standards.
During the Reporting Period, the Group developed a total of six
brands and introduced 100 SKUs, among which the “Taiyoo (3£%)”
brand has received exceptional reviews from the consumers.

Improving relationship with suppliers

The Group continues to use data-based solutions to select suppliers
and conduct procurement. The Group selects its suppliers on an
open, fair and transparent basis, and through joint development of
new marketing strategies and marketing to target groups with the
use of new media and other channels to continue to strengthen
strategic cooperation with its suppliers. Our suppliers are able to
receive direct feedback from end users purchasing their products
from our stores, and accordingly product research and development
strategy can be timely adjusted to enable the Group to offer a
diversified product mix that meets the end users’ needs. During the
Reporting Period, the Group jointly developed customised products
with some of its suppliers to provide consumers with featured
products.

To further consolidate a reliable supplier base, the Group launched
a supply chain financing project jointly with its strategic cooperative
banks and suppliers, utilising the suppliers' transaction records
and credentials with the Group for the suppliers to obtain bank
financing. This strategy solved a difficult financing issue faced
by many of Group’s upstream suppliers and reduced the overall
financing cost in the supply chain, thereby improving settlement
between the Group and its suppliers which in turn enhanced the
competitiveness of the Group.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

Optimising supply chain network management

The Group has further enhanced its extensive warehousing and
logistics and distribution capabilities and infrastructure. During
the Reporting Period, we opened a new warehouse in Guangdong
Province to further improve local fresh product warehousing
and distribution capacity. At the same time, we built a fruit and
vegetable processing centre in anticipation of future structural
change in consumer fresh product demand. As of 31 December
2018, the Group has nine large warehouses in the PRC with a
total area of 111,400 square metres, consisting of six dry goods
distribution centres with a total area of 100,100 square metres and
three fresh distribution centres with a total area of 11,300 square
metres. The Group’s logistics company, Shanghai Litai Logistics
Company Limited, has the logistics management experience,
supporting equipment and capability of long-distance trunk logistics
and urban distribution. Through consolidation and optimisation
of operations in 2018, the Group has improved its logistics and
distribution capabilities within the supply chain and effectively
supported the ongoing development of large, medium, small and
micro stores and online-to-offline, business-to-business and
business-to-consumer services.

Communicating with customers and brand marketing

During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged Kantar Consulting,
a firm specialises in customer research, to conduct customer
satisfaction review to optimise and improve the Group’s strategy
and development direction.

The Group regularly communicates with customers through a wide
range of online and offline communication channels to broaden
customer reach and uses various popular marketing channels,
including social media within neighborhood groups, live webcasts,
public news releases, APP push notifications and other multi-
channel interactions, to deliver a young and energetic brand image.
The Group’s customer base is diversified and, excluding wholesale
sales to the subsidiaries of Whole Sino Limited (“WSL”), a related
party, there is no customer with whom transactions have exceeded
1% of the Group’s revenue. In 2018, merchandise sold to the
retail stores owned and operated by WSL subsidiaries amounted
to approximately RMB836.2 million or 8.3% of Group sales (2017:
approximately RMB653.6 million or 6.8%).

In addition, we worked together with major brands to develop
precision marketing to match products with target customers using
big data analysis and carried out online advertising and coupon
promotions to attract customers. Based on the survey “2018
CP Lotus Customer Satisfaction Study” conducted by Kantar
Consulting, post-80s and 90s customers constitute more than half
of the total customers of the Group in number, and post-70s, 80s
and 90s customers are the main users of “LOTUS-GO” platform.
The Group will continue to implement strategies which attract young
customers.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Organisation development, employee training and care

In 2018, the Group worked with human resources consulting
organisations Korn Ferry Hay Group to improve human resources
structure and established a scientific performance evaluation
system to promote overall development of the Group.

The Group’s improved the professional training regime around
a training system which utilised both internal and external
training resources to keep up with the latest requirements for
talent management. The Group cultivates its talents through
C.P. Corporate University and other surrounding universities and
institutions based on professional specialties and we also continued
to work closely with the CP Group to train our talents. Working with
C.P. Leadership Institute, we selected three batches of participants
to take part in the “Future Leaders” and the “Business Leadership”
training programmes during the Reporting Period.

At the same time, the Group continues to recognise and award
teams and individuals who meet the Company’s values, who
strive to achieve innovation and good practice, and make great
contributions to the Company. Our post-90s and 95s employees
have become the main labour force within the organisation, and
accordingly, the Group continue to develop “Post-90s talent
retention and development” workshop, among other retention
and incentive programs, to encourage closer communication and
exchange among young employees.

To promote mutual assistance and care, the Group supported
employees who are in need or facing serious illness and difficulties
through “Lotus Charitable Fund”.

Promoting corporate sustainable development

The Group is committed to developing into a socially responsible
organisation. Under the “Spring Pink” project, a public welfare
brand project the Group has been organising since 2009, the
Group continued to work with major non-profit organisations and
government agencies. In addition, we also hosted more than 2,000
community charity events, attracting 40,000 people to participate in
promoting corporate social responsibility.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWRDN

Honors and awards

The Group has been recognised within the industry and by other
authorities in the areas of capital management, technological
innovation, training innovation, and marketing:

The Group was awarded Adam Smith Award Asia 2018 - Best
Cash Management Solution and The Asset Asian Awards
2018 - Best Cash Management Solution for our financial
management performance.

The “LOTUS-GO Case” was awarded the 2018 CCFA China
Retail Technology Innovation Award.

The “Million Food and Beverage Project” was awarded the
2018 CCFA Excellent Corporate University — Innovation
Practice Award.

The “Lotus Plus KOL Marketing Case” was awarded the
CCFA SHOP! Greater China 2018 Award - Silver Award for
New Retail Marketing Experience.

Legal and regulatory compliance

The Group strives to comply in all material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations which are regarded as having a significant
impact on the Group, and has not come across incidents of material
breach or non-compliance during the Reporting Period.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Our Safety, Occupational Health and Environmental (“SHE”) Policy

As a responsible employer and store operator, the Group pays
great attention to the health and safety of our employees, our
customers and our business partners. In addition, we also recognise
the responsibility and obligation to reduce the direct impact of our
business operations on the natural environment. Our performance
in SHE is an integral part of our business activities and a foundation
for sustainable development. Our SHE commitment includes:

° Promote SHE culture in the organisation and implement SHE
policy and procedures to create sustainable development;

° Improve the environmental quality and ensure that the safety
and health of our employees is of top priority;

° Comply with all rules and regulations relating to our business
operation;

° Prevent pollution, disease, injury and accidents;

° Continue to train employees to increase awareness and

knowledge and encourage participation in SHE activities;

° Explore opportunities through research and new technology
to promote energy saving, resource recovery, recycling and
re-use of resources; and

° Establish effective communication channels to convey the
SHE policy to employees, customers, business partners and
the public.

For details of the environmental related activities performed in
2018, please refer Company’s 2018 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report published on the Company’s website and on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Principal Risks and Uncertainties facing the Group

The Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations
or growth prospects maybe affected by risks and uncertainties
pertaining to the Group’s business. Factors set out below are
considered to be the principal risks faced by the Group. They do not
comprise all of the risks associated with our business and are not
set out in any particular order. Additional risks not presently known
to management, or currently deemed to be less material, may also
have an adverse effect on our business.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

Business Risks
Unclear strategy or inability to implement strategy

Our business may suffer if we do not have a clearly defined
strategy or if our strategy follows the wrong direction or is not
effectively communicated or implemented. The Group is operating
in a highly competitive industry and the retail industry itself is
undergoing a transformational change in this digital age. An unclear
or unsuccessful strategy against the growth of e-commerce as
well as against other competitors and failure to compete on areas
including price, product range, quality and multichannel service may
adversely affect our market share and profitability.

Mitigating measures:

Business strategy is reviewed regularly to determine how sales
and profit budgets can be achieved or improved, and business
operations made more efficient. This process includes setting of
seasonal and annual budgets and longer term financial objectives
to identify ways to improve/increase shareholders value. Critical
to these processes is the consideration of wider economic and
industry specific trends that affect the Group’s business, the
competitiveness position of the product offer and the financial
structure of the Group. In addition, the Audit Committee regularly
monitors strategic and operational risk and reports any significant
matters to the Board.

Product safety

Concerns regarding safety of the products offered at our stores
or safety and quality of our supply chain could cause customers
to reduce purchasing from us even if the basis for the concern is
beyond our control or whether or not based on fact. These concerns
could discourage consumers from buying from us and may have
an adverse effect on our turnover and our reputation. Our business
may also suffer if we fail to work with our suppliers to ensure our
products are designed and delivered to meet a high standard and to
ensure we can trace the issue origination.

Mitigating measures:

Product quality and safety are core requirements at all stages of the
product’s life cycle. The Group guide and assist suppliers based
on strict requirement specifications for hygiene and conformity,
among other things. Throughout the supply chain, inspections are
increased and particular attention is paid to fresh products. Stores
perform daily checks on the quality of merchandise and are subject
to rigorous analysis and audit procedures.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Distribution centre and logistics

The Group regularly reviews the warehousing and distribution
operations that support the business. Risks include business
interruptions due to physical damage, access restrictions,
breakdowns, capacity storages or IT systems failure, inefficient
processes and third party failures.

Mitigating measures:

Planned processes are in place to ensure there is sufficient
warehouse handling capacity for expected future volumes over
the short and longer terms. In addition, service levels, warehouse
handling, inbound logistics and delivery costs are monitored
continuously to ensure goods are delivered to our warehouses and
our retail stores in a timely and cost-efficient manner.

Retail store network

The Group is primarily engaged in the operation of hypermarkets,
and our performance depends on profitably developing the trading
space of our store network. Prime retail sites will generally remain
in demand, and increased competition for these can result in higher
future rents.

Mitigating measures:

The predominately leased portfolio is actively monitored by senior
management, with openings, refits and closures based on store
profitability and cash payback. The Group will continue to invest in
new space where certain financial criteria are met, and will renew
and refurbish its existing portfolio where appropriate.

Reliance on key systems

The Group rely heavily on the continued availability and integrity of
its IT systems, which must record and process substantial volume
of data and conduct inventory management accurately and quickly.
Any significant failure in the IT processes of our retail operations in
stores or in our supply chain could impact our ability to trade. The
damage or interruption of any of the systems can be due to events
that are beyond the control of the Group.

Mitigating measures:

System vulnerability and penetration testing, business continuity
plans and back up facilities are in place and are tested regularly
to ensure that business interruptions are minimised and that data
is protected from corruption or unauthorized use. IT risks are also
managed through the application of internal policies and response
management protocol. Despite having proper procedures in place,
the Group cannot fully guarantee our systems are foolproof.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

Foreign Exchange and Interest Rate Risks

As the Group’s retail operations are all based in the PRC and
all of our turnover and substantial portion of our expenditure
are denominated in RMB, the Group is therefore not exposed to
significant currency risk in its operations. However, as RMB is not
freely convertible, the Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
from loans from controlling shareholder and other loan which are
denominated in USD. The risk that exchange rate volatility may have
an adverse effect on our balance sheet or profit and loss account.

The interest rate for the shareholder loan and other loan is based
on LIBOR, our profit and loss account maybe adversely affected by
rising interest rates.

Mitigating measures:

The Company operates a centralised treasury function which is
responsible for managing its liquidity, interest and foreign currency
risks. The Group’s treasury function operates under a Board-
approved policy. This includes approval of counter-party and other
limits which are designed to mitigate the Group’s exposure to
financial risk. However, there can be no guarantee that the Group
would be able to compensate or hedge against such adverse
effects.

Funding and Liquidity Risks

The Group finances its operations by a combination of funds
generated from operating activities, loans from controlling
shareholder and banking facilities. Weak performance could put
pressure on free cash flow and credit metrics and affect our ability
to borrow or increase our cost of our borrowing. In addition,
underperformance against expectations may result in impairment of
asset values.

Mitigating measures:

The Group has adequate medium and long term financing in place
to support its business operations, and the Group’s cash position
and forecasts are regularly monitored and reported.

People

The Group’s continued development relies on the continued service
of its senior management and technical personnel, and its ability to
attract, retain, develop and motivate the best people with the right
capabilities at all levels, failure to do so could limit our ability to
succeed.

Mitigating measures:

The Group offers competitive compensation packages as well as
subsidised training program, professional courses and seminars,
and regular on the job training. Remuneration policies and
succession planning are subject to periodic benchmarking to ensure
they remain appropriate for the Group.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

LOOKING FORWARD

In 2019, China’s economy is expected to remain at a stable growth
level. The relatively relaxed monetary policy in 2018 is expected
to continue to stimulate consumption in the following years. With
further development in consumer stratification, consumption
is expected to increase and provide steady contribution to the
economy overall in China.

In the retail industry, 2019 is expected to be a year full of new
developments and challenges. With wider application of Al
technology, the retail industry will need to explore new business
models to keep up with the developments and this leads to
increased uncertainties. In the last two years, the Group’s
restructuring has laid a solid foundation for future development
which enable us to remain confident to meet future challenges and
to capture market opportunities. In 2019, the Group’s business will
be more comprehensive as we target new store opening in each
and every sectors. The Group also expects to launch new stores
specifically branded for food, and explore the new opportunity to
open specialty areas within a store.

In terms of products, the Group will continue to utilise its
available resources to focus on core product categories and build
a differentiated and high-quality product mix around younger
customers. With this strategy, the Group aims to use Al technology
to digitise, automate and streamline work processes, thereby
increasing operating efficiency. The Group also aims to enhance
supply chain logistics distribution capabilities to support multi-
sector growth and development. At the same time, we will continue
to focus on sustainable and healthy development of the Group while
maintaining the core corporate value of the Group — to benefit the
country, the people and the group. We believe that our business
model and business philosophy will facilitate long-term sustainable
development. Under the continuous improvement of organisational
structure and talent cultivation, together with a strong capital
management practice, the Group has a solid foundation in terms
of human capital, finance and facilities, and accordingly we are
confident in our performance in 2019.
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TEREBRES

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard
of corporate governance that properly protects and promotes
the interests of the shareholders as a whole. The Board believes
that good corporate governance practice is the cornerstone for a
successful business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s corporate governance
guidelines and practices. During the year, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all of the relevant code provisions
prescribed in the Corporate Governance Code (“Code Provisions”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for its leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses. The Board decides
on corporate strategies and oversees the financial performance,
management and organisation on behalf of the shareholders.

The independent non-executive directors provide advices, checks
and balances and effective and constructive contributions to
the Board to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

The Board delegates its authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, business strategies and management of the
Group’s businesses to certain executive directors and senior
management, and certain specific responsibilities to the Board
committees.

Board Composition

As at the date of the annual report, the Board comprises thirteen
members, eight of which are executive directors (including a
Chairman, an Executive Chairman and three Vice Chairmen) and
five of which are independent non-executive directors. Detailed
biographies of the directors can be found on pages 37 to 40 of this
annual report.

On 28 February 2018, Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed resigned as an
executive director and Vice Chairman of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

The roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company are separated
and the positions are held by separate individuals with a view to
maintain effective segregation of duties between management of
the Board and day-to-day management of the Group’s business.
There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between the Chairman and CEO.
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Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Company. He is
responsible for overseeing the function of the Board, formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company and providing
leadership to the Board so that the Board works efficiently and
discharges its responsibilities timely through discussing and
addressing all key issues.

Mr. Weng Hai Xin is the CEO of the Company. He is responsible
for the day-to-day management of the C.P. Lotus Group’s business
within the strategic development plans of the Company overseen by
Mr. Li Wen Hai, Executive Chairman of the Company.

Board and Committee Attendance
The Board held eight meetings in 2018. Details of the attendance of

each individual director at Board meetings, committee meetings and
general meeting during 2018 are set out below:
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EREEESEEMMETHEE

PEBAERARQRAZEFENTE  AERF
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EEBNRRASEZHBEINOT :

No. of meetings attended/held

e/ ET8E 2 BE
Corporate
Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit  Governance
Directors Bz Shareholder Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
REXE Ezg REZE8 HMzag ENZEE GEERZEE
Executive Directors YnES
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman) 1% A &% (£7) 11 5/8 11 11 - -
Mr. Li Wen Hai ZHE%L 1/1 718 - - - -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont HAMEE 0/1 6/8 - - - -
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed REELE(R-F-NE
(resigned on 28 February 2018) ZRAZTNBEHE) - 0/1 - - - -
Mr. Michael Ross BFELE 0/ 418 - - - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BIMERE 0/1 0/8 - - - -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HnfiE 1 3/8 - - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont ks 0/1 0/8 - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong’t & 1N 8/8 - 11 3/3 2/2
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFH7TES
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnité & 11 8/8 1 11 3/3 2/2
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara’t & 11 8/8 - i 3/3 -
Mr. ltthaporn Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong%: & il 8/8 - - - -
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech’t & 11 8/8 - - - 2/2
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo gEntE 11 8/8 11 11 313 -
No. of meetings EELHE 1 8 1 1 3 2
* attended on voluntary basis * BREZMN
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Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and
Suphachai Chearavanont are brothers. They are the cousins
of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Michael Ross is the brother-in-
law of Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont
and Suphachai Chearavanont and cousin-in-law of Mr. Meth
Jiaravanont. Save as disclosed above, there are no family
relationships among members of the Board and between the
Chairman and the CEO.

Continuous Professional Development

The individual training record of each director of the Company was
received for the year ended 31 December 2018. Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Li Wen Hai, Narong Chearavanont, Michael Ross,
Yang Xiaoping, Meth Jiaravanont, Suphachai Chearavanont,
Umroong Sanphasitvong, Viroj Sangsnit, Songkitti Jaggabatara,
Itthaporn Subhawong, Prasobsook Boondech and Cheng Yuk Wo
participated in continuous professional development by attending
e-seminars and reviewing reading materials.

Securities Transactions by Directors/Officers

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. Having made specific
enquiry with all of the directors, they confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code.
Officers/employees deemed to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive or confidential information in relation to the Company
or its shares are prohibited from dealing in securities of the
Company in accordance with written guidelines.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal
There was no appointment of directors during the year.

All newly appointed directors shall be briefed by the Company’s
lawyers about their duties and obligations as a director of a listed
company in Hong Kong.

The executive directors are not appointed for a specific term. The
independent non-executive directors are appointed for a renewable
term of one year. All of the directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at general meetings of
the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles”).

Directors who are appointed by the Board must retire at the
following general meeting/annual general meeting after their
appointment, but they are eligible for re-election at that general
meeting, and such election is separate from the normal retirement
of directors by rotation. According to the Articles, at least one-third
of the directors who have served the longest on the Board from last
re-election are required to retire by rotation at each annual general
meeting. The retiring directors are eligible for re-election at the
same annual general meeting.
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BOARD AND OTHER COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
directors of the Company, Messrs. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman),
Viroj Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara, with the purpose of
monitoring the integrity of the Group’s financial statements and
providing assurance to the Board that the financial statements
comply with accounting standards and stock exchange and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting. The Audit Committee
met three times in 2018 and has reviewed work done by external
auditors, reviewed the financial position of the Company, oversaw
the financial reporting system, reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and procedures.
The Audit Committee receives regular updates from Internal
Audit and has direct dialogue with senior management on their
control responsibilities. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is published on the Company’s website.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Group’s external auditors, Messrs. KPMG, is set out as follows:

TEER/RMEE
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EREEEHRAQTIZNBIFHTES
BRER AN SE £ (EFE) » Viroj] SangsnitE £ &
Songkitti Jaggabatarafc £ K LEERARE
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ER -BREEEN-_Z—\FEHTZRER
WM BFMIMEZBEN 2 TERS - FEEQA
BN EEBMBRERS  AREERRA
HEEASNENEEANEERFEEH -
ERZESWMAERE M 2 EHEH I
SREBAEEEBNRECEREME - BX
ZEGCREGECENAAT ZML -

REEFER  AKECHBAIERE
M-E2F5RETMERR2MEIINT

Fee Paid/Payable
e/ ENER
2018

—E-NF
(RMB’000)
(AR®T )

EiT IR
FEI R

Audit Services
Non-audit Services (including tax advisory
and agreed upon procedures)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Cheng Yuk
Wo (Chairman), Viroj Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara, and
two executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont and Umroong Sanphasitvong. The main roles and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are established
by the Board with clearly defined written terms of reference
published on the Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for the formulation of the Group’s remuneration
policies and for the recommendations of remuneration packages
for all of the directors and that its members do not participate
in the determination of his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee also considers and recommends the remuneration of
executive directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, incentive payment,
share option, pension right and compensation payment (including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment). The Remuneration Committee met once in 2018 to
discharge its duties. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out
in Note 6 to the financial statements.

(BEVEBRARBITEERTF)

3,650
1,150
FHEEE

FWEEESERERRARA=ZNUBLIFHITE
= BEHMEE (ERE) - Viroj Sangsnitit
4 K Songkitti Jaggabatarat £ R A A
AMNATES  HS ALEEUMroong
SanphasitvongE £ - FTNEE S 2B
HESEsEERBRESEECHNAQAZH
o HFMEESEENAEE 2 HMB R R
EMEEE2HMEBREER MAKER
2HEBEERAZTFH FHMEESZE
VTOESSEEZZHTEERSNEBAELZ
M BiEFREANR BR - HFE - RE
A -RE - BRE -BENERIREES
H(EREARNKR LB REFE 2 EAEMAE
B FHEEEN-_Z-—N\FET-RER
LEITEHBE - EBH M 158 B I |k i
36 °

C.P. Lotus Corporation [ M&s&E7EH R



Corporate Governance Report

TEREBRES

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive director of
the Company, Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman), and two
independent non-executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Viroj
Sangsnit and Cheng Yuk Wo. The main roles and responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee include determining and reviewing
the nomination policy and the diversity policy of the Board, making
recommendations to the structure, size and composition of the
Board at least annually, to the appointment and re-appointment
of the directors, as well as determining the suitability of the
directors and assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive directors. The Nomination Committee met once in 2018
to review the Board composition and assess the independency of
independent non-executive directors under the guidelines of the
Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is posted on the Company’s website.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of two independent
non-executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Prasobsook
Boondech (Chairman) and Viroj Sangsnit, and one executive director
of the Company, Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong. The main roles and
responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee include
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices and reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the directors, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and written employee guidelines,
and the compliance with the Code Provisions. The Corporate
Governance Committee met twice in 2018 to discharge the its
duties. The written terms of reference of the Corporate Governance
Committee is posted on the Company’s website.

SUMMARY OF BOARD CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

Board Diversity Policy

According to the Board diversity policy of the Company, selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to, gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service in the Company etc. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. Steady progress was made on achieving those
objectives.

Nomination Policy

The nomination policy adopted by the Company on 17 December
2018 is set out below.

1. Purpose

1.1 The Nomination Committee has the primary responsibility of
identifying and nominating suitably qualified candidates to
become directors (to fill ‘casual vacancies and as new Board
members).
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Nomination Policy (continued)

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

The nomination policy sets out the approach with respect to
the selection and nomination of candidates for directorship of
the Company so as to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business for the Board to
consider and, if appropriate, appoint as additional Directors
or as Directors to fill casual vacancies, as the case may be, or
make recommendations to the shareholders of the Company for
election as Directors at general meetings.

Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary Requirement
The Nomination Committee may select suitably qualified
candidates to nominate to the Board from such resources as
the Nomination Committee considers appropriate, including
through referrals by members of the Board, by the management
of the Company and by external professional agencies and
other resources.

The Nomination Committee shall consider the factors listed
below, together with any other factors as the Nomination
Committee may consider appropriate, in assessing the
suitability of any candidate:

e character, reputation and integrity;
e qualifications, accomplishments and experience;

e capacity to devote sufficient time to discharge duties
amidst other significant commitments;

e effect on the diversity of the Board, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional and industry experience, skills
and expertise knowledge;

e (where the proposed candidate is being considered as
a candidate for an Independent Non-executive Director
position) ability to fulfil the independence requirements
under the Listing Rules; and

e potential contributions to the Board and any other relevant
factors.

The list of factors stated above is for reference only and
not intended to be exhaustive or definitive. The Nomination
Committee shall assess all relevant factors with a view to
achieve the Company’s corporate strategy and organisational
needs and has the discretion to nominate any person as it
considers appropriate.

The candidates shall timely provide such information and
documents relating to their nomination as the Nomination
Committee or'the Board may request, including but not limited
to any such information as is required for disclosure under
the Listing Rules and their written consent to ‘be elected as
Directors and to the public disclosure of their information.
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Nomination Policy (continued)

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Nomination Rules and Procedures

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting
of the Nomination Committee and in advance of the meeting
invite nomination of candidates from members of the Board,
if any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may put forward other candidates
irrespective of whether such candidates have been nominated
by members of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of all necessary
information relating to the candidates, evaluate each of such
candidates at the meeting based on the criteria set out in
section 2 above to determine whether to make a nomination to
the Board.

The number of candidates nominated by the Nomination
Committee may exceed the number of casual vacancies or
vacancies for Director’s appointment by the Board or at the
general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to the appointment of candidates as Directors and its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any
general meeting.

Any proposed candidate is entitled to withdraw his/her
candidature at any time before the meeting of the Board at
which his appointment is to be considered or the general
meeting at which he/she is to stand for election by serving a
notice in writing to the Company.

Confidentiality

Unless required by law or any regulatory authority, under no
circumstances may a member of the Nomination Committee
disclose any information to the public with regard to any
nomination or candidature whilst such information has not been
disclosed by the Company to the public.

Review

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy
from time to time, as appropriate, and discuss any revisions
that may be considered appropriate, including to ensure
that it remains relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects
both current regulatory requirements and good corporate
governance practice, and recommend them to the Board for
approval.

Disclosure of Policy

The nomination policy may be disclosed in such manner as
the Board considers appropriate and in compliance with any
applicable regulatory requirements or guidelines.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for managing business and operational
risks and maintaining proper and effective systems of risk
management and internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
interests as a whole and the Group’s assets against unauthorized
use or disposition. The Board acknowledges it is responsible for
the risk management and internal control systems and review of
the effectiveness, and has through the Audit Committee conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Group
has adopted comprehensive procedures with duly assigned levels
of authority in areas of financial, operational controls, and risk
management to ensure that its assets and resources remain secure
at all times.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, through dialogue with
management and the use of risk management and internal audit
functions, reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems annually and reporting to the Board any
significant risks and issues.

The risk management function is responsible for analyzing possible
risks that may affect the Group’s business operations and finding
measures to eliminate, prevent and control risks. The Group has
invested in distribution centers and information technology systems
such as the store management system and the distribution center
system. Information technology has played a major role in assisting
the Group to achieve higher efficiency in data storage and analysis.
Any error or problem in the information technology systems may
affect the Group’s ability to manage store operation on a normal
basis and negatively affect the Group’s operation performance.

The internal audit department is fully independent of business
operations. It has full and complete access to any of the Group’s
records, physical properties and personnel relevant to a review.
Deriving its authority from the Audit Committee, the internal audit
department reports administratively to the CEO and functionally to
the Audit Committee.

The Group developed the “Enterprise Risk Management System”
in 2016 as an on-going process for increasing the efficiency in
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks associated
with the business of the Group, which alerts any such risk to the
management team and prevent significant financial or operating
losses to the Group. The System has designated responsible
personnel of the relevant business unit to identify, assess, manage
relevant risks with respect to material control areas including
financial, operational and compliance and execute mitigation
measures accordingly. Results of risk evaluation are reported
to the Audit Committee semi-annually through risk management
function which continuously oversees the effectiveness of the
risk management 'system and ensures that the relevant control
measures are properly implemented within prescribed timeline. A
risk management policy which sets out the framework, guideline,
procedures and action ‘plans was adopted by the Board as
recommended by the Audit Committee.
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The Group engaged an external professional firm which expertized
in inventory physical count process to provide an independent
transparency, accuracy and time efficiency of store inventory
physical count management to the Group. The firm further provided
analysis and suggestion the effectiveness of inventory management
prevention risk in the stores to the Group. During 2018, the Group
conducted an inventory physical count process in all of its stores.

The internal audit function of the Group carried out internal control
review on a regular basis on the internal control procedures to
ensure individual continuing connected transactions are conducted
in accordance with the pricing policies or applicable mechanism
under the relevant framework agreements. The internal audit
function is also responsible for evaluating the effectiveness of
procedures in relation to risk management and internal control
systems and submits the reports on its findings to the Audit
Committee annually. The Board regularly receives and reviews
updates to undergo overall assessment of the Company’s business
performance.

The Audit Committee provides independent review on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and makes appropriate recommendations to the
Board. The Board then reviews the internal audit report and
approves applicable policies and procedures designed by the
management. The Board believes that the existing risk management
and internal control systems are adequate and effective. The Board
is satisfied with the adequacy of the resources, qualification and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training schemes and budget upon its review.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
Group’s state of affairs. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about responsibilities
on the financial statement of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report section on page 66 to 69 of the annual report.

Regarding the procedures and internal control for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
and has complied with its disclosure obligations under the Listing
Rules and Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“Disclosure of Inside Information”) through establishing internal
procedures to ensure inside information is escalated to the senior
level and disseminated as soon as possible. Any information
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules and/
or the Disclosure of Inside Information would be announced timely.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 72 and 73 of the Articles, general meetings can
be convened on the written requisition of any two members of the
Company deposited at the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists.

Any extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called by notice in writing of not less
than a period which is the longer of twenty-one days and ten clear
business days, and any other extraordinary general meeting shall
be called by notice in writing of not less than a period which is the
longer of fourteen days and ten clear business days. The notice
shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed to
be served and of the day for which it is given, and shall specify
the place, the day and the hour of meeting and, in case of special
business (as defined in Article 75 of the Articles), particulars of
the resolutions to be considered at the meeting, and shall be
given in manner hereinafter mentioned or in such other manner, if
any, as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting to
such persons as are, under these Articles, entitled to receive such
notices from the Company provided that a meeting of the Company
notwithstanding that it is called by shorter notice than that specified
in this Article be deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed
by a majority in number of the members having a right to attend and
vote at the meeting, being a majority together holding not less than
ninety-five per cent in nominal value of the shares giving that right.

Shareholders’ enquiries put to the Board or any proposals
to be put forward at general meetings can be emailed to
contact@cplotuscorp.com or by mail to:

C.P. Lotus Corporation
21/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

Effective communication with shareholders and investors and the
provision of high standards of disclosure and financial transparency
have always been one of the Group’s priorities. A number of formal
communication channels are available to shareholders for the
performance of the Group including annual and interim report, press
release and announcements. Annual general meeting and other
general meetings provide a useful opportunity for the Board to
maintain a constructive dialogue with our shareholders.

The Group is committed to maintain continuing open dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts as a mean of developing their
understanding of our strategy, operations, management and plans
and raising any issues they may have and provide the Group with
valuable feedbacks and insights.

The Company has its company website http://www.cplotuscorp.com

which provides additional channel for shareholders and interested
parties to access the Group’s information.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESERHE

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 55, is an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company and has been an Executive
Director since 2000. Mr. Chearavanont has been a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company and the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee of the Company since 1 April 2012. He
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business
and Public Administration of New York University, USA and has
extensive multinational investment and management experience in
various industries. Mr. Chearavanont is an executive director and
the Vice Chairman of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd., a non-executive
director and the Chairman of Chia Tai Enterprises International
Limited (each a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He is also a non-executive
director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. (a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and the Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Chearavanont
is a director of True Corporation Public Company Limited and CP
ALL Public Company Limited (each a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Thailand). He is also the Chairman of True Visions
Public Company Limited and the Chairman of Charoen Pokphand
Group Company Limited. Mr. Chearavanont was previously a
director of Siam Makro Public Company Limited (a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Thailand).

Mr. Li Wen Hai, aged 61, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as the
Vice Chairman of the Company with effect from 18 April 2008 and
as the Senior Vice Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 22 October 2013. He ceased to be the
Senior Vice Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and was re-
designated as the Executive Chairman of the Company with effect
from 1 December 2015. Mr. Li obtained a Master degree in Business
Administration from Huazhong Normal University, PRC and is a
senior economist. He has extensive experience in retail business.

Mr. Narong Chearavanont, aged 54, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2001. He was re-designated as the
Vice Chairman of the Company in September 2006. He obtained
a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from
New York University, USA, a Certificate of Advance Management
Program in Transforming Proven Leaders into Global Executives
from Harvard Business School, Harvard University, USA and
an Honorary Doctorate degree of Business Administration from
Ramkamhaeng University, Thailand. Mr. Chearavanont has
extensive experience in the retail and trading industries. He is a
director of True Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL
Public Company Limited and Siam Makro Public Company Limited
(each a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand).
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Mr. Michael Ross, aged 54, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as
the Executive Vice Chairman of the Company from 1 May 2008 to
1 September 2010. Mr. Ross has been re-designated as the Vice
Chairman of the Company with effect from 1 January 2012. He
obtained a Master degree in Science from University of Salford,
United Kingdom and a Bachelor degree in Hospitality Management
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Hong Kong. He
completed an Executive Program at the Kennedy School of
Government of Harvard University in USA in 2009. He has extensive
experience in retail business. Since joining Lotus Supercenter in
1999, he had served major key positions in Business Development,
Operations and Merchandising. During this period, Mr. Ross had
also served as the Regional President in the Southern Region
& Eastern Region of Lotus. Mr. Ross has been a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC)
Shanghai Pudong New Area Committee since June 2013.

Mr. Yang Xiaoping, aged 55, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since April 2000. He was re-designated as the Vice
Chairman of the Company from 14 May 2007 to 1 September
2010. Mr. Yang was again re-designated as the Vice Chairman
of the Company with effect from 1 January 2012. He has more
than 20 years of extensive experience in international trading and
investment in the PRC and has good contact with central, provincial
and municipal governors. Mr. Yang is a non-executive director of
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. (a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the Shanghai Stock Exchange), CITIC Limited and
Honma Golf Limited (each a company listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), and Tianjin Binhai
Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (a company listed on
the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). Mr.
Yang is currently the co-chairman of the board of directors of China
Minsheng Investment Group.

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 60, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2005. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Occidental College, California, USA and a Master
degree in Business Administration from New York University, USA.
Mr. Jiaravanont has extensive experience in investment, finance,
banking and strategic business development in Asia and USA. He
is currently a non-executive director of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd., (a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited). He is also the Senior Executive Assistant to the
Chairman-Finance of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.
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Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 52, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2000. He obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from Boston University
in USA, majoring in Financial Management. Mr. Chearavanont has
extensive experience in the telecommunication and broadcasting
industries. He is an executive director of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.
(a2 company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited), a director of True Corporation Public Company
Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand). Mr.
Chearavanont is a director and the Chief Executive Officer of True
Visions Public Company Limited and True Move Company Limited.
He is also the Chief Executive Officer of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited. Mr. Chearavanont was previously a director of
Siam Makro Public Company Limited (a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Thailand).

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong, aged 66, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company in December 2006 and
August 2016, respectively. He obtained a Bachelor degree and a
Master degree in Accounting from Thammasat University, Thailand
and has extensive experience in financial management. Mr.
Sanphasitvong is currently a director of True Corporation Public
Company Limited, CP ALL Public Company Limited and Siam Makro
Public Company Limited (each a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Thailand), and of CPPC Public Company Limited. He is
also the Deputy Group Chief Financial Officer of Charoen Pokphand
Group Company Limited.

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit, aged 83, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company since 1999. He has been a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company since September
2005. He was appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee of the
Company with effect from 1 April 2012 and 20 August 2016
respectively. Mr. Sangsnit was the Deputy Minister of Transport
from 1991 to 1992 and the Deputy of Minister of Defense in 1996 in
Thailand.

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara, aged 68, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company since 1 April 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the Chulachomklao
Royal Military Academy, Thailand and graduated from National
Defence College of Thailand. Mr. Jaggabatara served in the Royal
Thai Armed Forces for 39 years and was appointed as the Chief of
Defence Forces of the Royal Thai Armed Forces in 2008. He retired
from the Royal Thai Armed Forces on 30 September 2011. Mr.
Jaggabatara is currently an Advisor to Kasetphand Industry Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited.
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Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong, aged 67, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 31 December 2012.
He graduated from National Defence College of Thailand. Mr.
Subhawong served in the Royal Thai Air Force (“RTAF”) for 37 years
and was appointed as Air Chief Marshal of the RTAF in 2007. He
was appointed the 21st Commander-in-Chief of the RTAF on 1
October 2008. Mr. Subhawong retired as Commander-in-Chief of
the RTAF on 30 September 2012.

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech, aged 73, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 31 December 2012.
He was appointed as the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee with effect from 20 August 2016. He has been an
independent director of CP ALL Public Company Limited (a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand). He obtained
a Bachelor of Law degree from Thammasat University, Thailand.
Mr. Boondech was admitted as Barrister-at-Law, Institute of Legal
Education, Thai Bar Association, Thailand in 1967 and Barrister-at-
Law, Lincoln’s Inn, England in 1972. He has extensive experience
in the legal field and is a lecturer on Family Law, Faculty of Law,
Chulalongkorn University and Institute of Legal Education, Thai
Bar Association, Thailand. Mr. Boondech was the President of the
Senate of Thailand from 2008 to 2011.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 58, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company since 2004. He was a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company and became the
Chairman on 1 April 2012, at the same time when he became
a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Cheng obtained a Master of Science (Economics) degree, majoring
in Accounting and Finance from London School of Economics,
England and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting
from University of Kent, England. He is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Mr. Cheng has
over 20 years of expertise in accounting, finance and corporate
advisory services.

Mr. Cheng is currently an independent non-executive director of
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited, CSI Properties Limited,
Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited, Goldbond
Group Holdings Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, DTXS Silk Road
Investment Holdings Company Limited, Top Spring International
Holdings Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Kidsland
International Holdings Limited and Miricor Enterprises Holdings
Limited, all of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Somerley Capital Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Through its
subsidiaries, the Company is principally engaged in the operation of
large scale hypermarket stores located in the northern, southern and
eastern parts of China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group (including discussions on principal
risks and uncertainties, environmental policies, legal and regulatory
compliance and key relationship with suppliers, customers and
employees), KPIs and future development of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out in “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, the directors are not
aware of any important events affecting the Group since the end of
the financial year under review.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 70 of
the financial statements.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year (2017: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$1,682,699,000 (equivalent to RMB1,459,741,000) (2017:
HK$2,226,537,000, equivalent to RMB1,828,576,000) as computed
in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
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Report of the Directors

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy adopted by the Company on 17 December 2018
is set out below.

1. The dividend policy sets out the approach of the Company on
the declaration and payment of dividends to shareholders of
the Company.

2. The Board is responsible for considering and, if appropriate,
declaring any interim dividend or recommending any final
dividend to the Shareholders for approval every year.
Any approved dividends must not exceed the amount
recommended by the Board.

3. The declaration or recommendation of any dividend will take
into consideration the Company’s results of operations and
financial conditions, business strategy and future development
and any other factors that the Board may deem relevant. No
dividend shall be declared or paid except out of the Company’s
profits and reserves lawfully available for distribution. The
payment of dividend is also subject to applicable laws and
regulations, including any applicable restrictions under the
Company’s Articles of Association.

4. The future declarations or recommendations of dividends
may or may not reflect the Company’s historical declarations
or recommendations of dividends and will be at the absolute
discretion of the Board.

5. The dividend policy is subject to review of the Board and may
be amended by the Board.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest

customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to RMB14,000 (2017: RMB11,000).
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EEWRES

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont

Mr. Li Wen Hai

Mr. Narong Chearavanont

Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed (Resigned on 28 February 2018)
Mr. Michael Ross

Mr. Yang Xiaoping

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Meth Jiaravanont, Michael Ross, Suphachai
Chearavanont, Umroong Sanphasitvong and Viroj Sangsnit, will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM?”).
Details of the directors proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming
AGM are set out in the relevant circular to be despatched to the
shareholders of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a renewable term of one year and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that all of
the independent non-executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the material
related party transactions as disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements of the annual report, none of the directors had any
material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, the directors were not aware that any of
the directors had interests in any business apart from the Group’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group which falls to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
were as follows:

() Long positions in shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

shares held ERE

Name of directors EEEE EERAEE b F S =R il
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEALE 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Narong Chearavanont HEARR A& 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BNFEEE 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont BB EE 61,080,066 0.55%
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont MR- A 122,160,132 1.11%
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong#t 4 61,080,066 0.55%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(ii) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

EENBSITTHRAERRKRS - 8
EROREEETFER ZERER

RE (&)

(i) REBZIEFREZRG

Approximate
percentage of

Name of associated Number of shareholding
Name of directors corporations shares held FRE
ESE8 HBCEE AR BFERGHE BOBEGL
Mr. Li Wen Hai Kinghill Limited 171,428 0.05%
THEBEEE
Mr. Yang Xiaoping Kinghill Limited 171,428 0.05%
BN FEEE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had any interest or
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
substantial shareholders and other persons, other than a director or
chief executive of the Company, in shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company: REQABRHREZRG
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Note shares held BRESLN
Name of shareholders BREREHE Mt = BERGHA [ERvigs7
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment
Company Limited (“CPH”) Company Limited ([ CPHJ) (1) 18,083,521,003 164.11%
Worth Access Trading Limited Worth Access Trading Limited
(“Worth Access”) (T'Worth Access ) (1) 18,083,521,003 164.11%
CPG Overseas Company Limited CPG Overseas Company Limited
(“CPG Overseas”) (TCPG Overseas]) (1) 18,083,521,003 164.11%
Charoen Pokphand Group Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”) Company Limited ([ CPG ) (1) 18,450,001,399 167.44%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Continued)

Note:

(1) Worth Access had declared an interest in the same 18,083,521,003
shares in which CPH had declared an interest by virtue of Worth
Access’ shareholding in CPH. CPG Overseas had declared an interest
in the same 18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding
in Worth Access. CPG had declared an interest in the same
18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding in CPG Overseas
and an interest in 366,480,396 shares by virtue of its shareholding in a
subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
substantial shareholders and other persons, other than a director or
chief executive of the Company, had any interest or short positions
in shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACT

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the material
related party transactions as disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements of the annual report, there were no contract of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) was in force for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2018.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy and long-term incentive schemes
of the Group are set out in “Employees, training and remuneration
policy” on page 15 of this annual report.

The emolument payable to any director of the Company was
determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities within
the Group and his anticipated time and effort to be spent on the
Company’s matters.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
in the annual general meeting held on 22 June 2012. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date
unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The Share Option Scheme was established for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible persons of
the Share Option Scheme include the Company’s directors and
employees of the Group and those persons that, in the opinion of
the Directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the
Group.

The total number of ordinary shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, being 979,624,307 ordinary shares of the
Company, based on 9,796,243,070 issued ordinary shares of the
Company as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
in 2012. Such maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon
exercise of all the share options which may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme now represents 8.89% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise
of the share options granted to each eligible person under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
ordinary shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors. In addition, share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
ordinary shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of offer (including the date of offer granted),
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$10 in total by
grantee.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Directors but shall commence after the grant and end on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share
options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Board, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares on the date the
share option is offered; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of
the ordinary share of the Company.

As of the date of this report, there were no share options granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Scheme” above,
neither the Company nor any of its holding companies or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement
during the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2018, the total convertible preference shares of
the Company in issue included 1,518,807,075 Series A convertible
preference shares, 3,897,110,334 Series B convertible preference
shares, 3,671,509,764 Series C convertible preference shares and
2,211,382,609 Series D convertible preference shares.

1,518,807,075 Series A convertible preference shares were issued
on 31 October 2008 pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement dated
17 May 2007 as part of the consideration for the acquisition of
subsidiaries. Details are set out in the circular dated 29 June 2007.

3,897,110,334 Series B convertible preference shares were issued
on 30 June 2010 pursuant to the Agreement dated 16 March 2010
to redeem the convertible bonds issued by the Company at the
aggregate principle amount of HK$1,519,873,031. Details are set

out in the circular dated 1 April 2010.

3,673,765,764 Series C convertible preference shares were issued
on 23 December 2011 pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement
dated 14 October 2011 and the Open Offer as set out in the
prospectus dated 2 December 2011. Net proceeds from the
issue of Series C convertible preference shares amounted to
HK$805,056,000. Up to 31 December 2016, a total of 2,256,000
Series C convertible preference shares were converted to ordinary
shares.

2,211,382,609 Series D convertible preference shares were issued
on 1 January 2012 pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement dated 14
October 2011 as the consideration for the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Details are set out in the circular dated 1 November 2011.

The holders of these preference shares have the right to convert
any preference share into the Company’s ordinary shares at any
time at the conversion ratio of 1 to 1, each subject to the minimum
public float requirement under the Listing Rules. Adjustments to
the conversion price are only made upon dilutive and other events
which are related to the Company issuing new shares or convertible
debts.

Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Option Scheme”,

no equity-linked agreement was entered into or subsisted during the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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Report of the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into the following
connected transaction that is subject to the reporting requirement
under the Listing Rules for disclosure in the annual report.

SAP System License

On 29 October 2018, SLS, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the software license agreement
(the “Software License Agreement”) with CPF IT Center Company
Limited (“CPF IT”), pursuant to which CPF IT had (i) irrevocably
granted a non-transferable perpetual license to the SAP User Group
for up to 950 users to use the SAP system, and (ii) agreed to provide
maintenance services (including regular updates of the SAP system)
to the subsidiaries of the Company during 1 October 2018 to 30
September 2021.

SLS would pay CPF IT a one-off license fee in the amount
of USD1,327,020.76 (equivalent to RMB9,175,000) and
maintenance service fee for 1 October 2018 to 30 September
2021 in the aggregate amount of USD1,073,751.21 (equivalent to
RMB?7,369,000).

As at the date of the announcement, CPG was interested in
approximately 64.93% and 49.11% of the issued share capital of
the Company and of Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company
Limited (“CPF”) respectively. CPF IT as a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CPF was a connected person of the Company. The transaction
under Software License Agreement therefore constituted a
connected transaction of the Company and subject to reporting
and announcement requirements but was exempt from circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. Details of the abovementioned
connected transaction are set out in the announcement dated 29
October 2018.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Purchase Agreements

On 4 November 2016, the Company entered into the 2017 Purchase
Agreement with High Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) to
purchase certain merchandise from HOEL or any of the HOEL
Related Entities (as defined in that agreement) for the term from
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Leases and Sub-leases

On 26 May 2008, Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (“Kunshan
Tailian”) and Kunshan Xinmin Property Co., Ltd. (EILEBEME
BR2AF]) (“Kunshan Ximin”) entered into a lease (the “Kunshan
Lease”) in relation to a property located at West side of North
Changjiang Road, Zhoushi Town, Kunshan, the PRC, with an area of
approximately 29,466 square meters for the term from 26 May 2008
to 24 November 2024. On 15 December 2014, Shanghai Kinghill
Ltd. (E8%FRBEREMRDT) (“Shanghai Kinghill”) acquired 100%
equity interest-in. Kunshan Xinmin.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Leases and Sub-leases (Continued)

On 31 October 2008, Hefei Ailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (“Hefei
Ailian”) and Tongshan Development & Management (Hefei) Co., Ltd.
(WLEX£EREE (G8) BR2AF) (“Tongshan Enterprise”) entered
into a lease (the “Hefei Lease”) in relation to a property located at
Southeast Corner, Junction of He’an Road and Furong Road, Hefei
Economic & Technological Development Area, Hefei, the PRC, with
an area of approximately 23,100 square meters for the term from
1 November 2008 to 17 March 2025. The Hefei Lease Assignment
Agreement taken effect from 1 April 2014 was entered into among
Hefei Ailian, Tongshan Enterprise and Anhui Zhengtong Enterprises
Co., Ltd. (ZBEREEER D T) (“Anhui Zhengtong”) to assign the
Hefei Lease from Tongshan Enterprise to Anhui Zhengtong.

Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“Shantou
Lotus”) and Ping An Trust Co., Ltd. (FZEstEREE2F) (“Ping
An Trust”) entered into a lease (the “Shantou Lease”) in relation to
a property located at Feng Ze Zhuang, Changping Road, Longhu
District, Shantou, the PRC, with an area of approximately 20,400
square meters for the term from 12 December 2005 to 11 December
2025. The Shantou Lease was subsequently revised and assumed
by WEFEFREZABR AT (“Xinping Investment”) as lessor on
1 December 2013. On 5 March 2015, Shanghai Kinghill acquired
100% equity interest in Xinping Investment.

On 15 December 2017, SLS and Shanghai Kinghill entered into a
lease (the “2018 Super Brand Mall Lease”) in relation to a portion
of the Super Brand Mall situated at No. 168 Lujiazui Xi Road,
Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC, with a total floor area
of approximately 13,500 square meters for the monthly rental of
RMB1,500,000, equivalent to an annual rental of RMB18,000,000 for
the term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018.

On 15 December 2017, SLS and Chia Tai Commercial Real Estate
Management Co., Ltd. (EAEEXE#EEEABRAF) (“CTCREM”)
entered into a sub-lease (the “2018 SLS Sub-Lease”), for the term
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018, for a monthly rent of
RMB555,750 for the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 April 2018;
and RMB583,312 for the period from 1 May 2018 to 31 December
2018, equivalent to an annual rent of RMB6,889,496 for the financial
year ended 31 December 2018, plus (i) a commission of 5% on
the excess of subletting rental income received by CTCREM over
the rent receivable by SLS under the 2018 SLS Sub-Lease; and
(i) a commission of 15% on the advertising and promotion income
received by CTCREM derived from the property located at No. 2128
Yang Gao Zhong Lu, Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC, with
an area of approximately 6,527 square meters.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Transaction Related Details

Kunshan Tailian, Hefei Ailian, Shantou Lotus and SLS are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC.

CPG is interested in approximately 64.93% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and is therefore the controlling shareholder
of the Company.

As each of Anhui Zhengtong, Kunshan Xinmin, Shanghai Kinghill,
CTCREM and HOEL is also an indirect subsidiary of CPG, Anhui
Zhengtong, Kunshan Xinmin, Shanghai Kinghill, CTCREM and HOEL
are connected persons of the Company for the purposes of the
Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under each of the Kunshan Lease,
the Hefei Lease, the Shantou Lease, the 2018 Super Brand
Mall Lease and the 2018 SLS Sub-Lease constituted continuing
connected transactions exempt from independent shareholders’
approval but were subject to reporting and announcement
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the 2017 Purchase Agreement
constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions for
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules and were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 16
December 2016.

Details of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
are set out in the announcements dated 25 November 2013, 14
March 2014, 15 December 2014, 6 March 2015, 4 November 2016
and 15 December 2017 and the circular dated 25 November 2016.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Transaction Related Details (Continued)

The actual transactions and approved annual caps for the
abovementioned continuing connected transaction agreements
during the year from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 are as
follows:

FEREXS (&)

HEX S A (&)

B EEERZHER T - \F—-A—H
EZE-\F+ZAZT-RAZEEAZER
REERMFELROT :

Approved
Actual Annual Caps
Transactions BHEE
BEBEXS L BR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®BT T
Non-exempt continuing connected TEHEIFERZE
transaction agreements: XE &
2017 Purchase Agreement —E-tLFREHE 54,510 134,700
Exempt continuing connected transaction — % 1545 B2
agreements: XZ & -
Kunshan Lease ELEEHE 7,808 N/A
Shantou Lease PIELEI R4 15,978 N/A
2018 Super Brand Mall Lease —E-N\FEXESHEmE 18,000 18,000
2018 SLS Sub-Lease ZE-NFLEERSEHRE 7,401 8,500

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements (HKSAE) 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Company in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions were entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.
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Report of the Directors

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of
Association or laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is
incorporated.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed internal control and financial reporting
matters, including the review of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

Messrs. KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
KPMG as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Soopakij Chearavanont
Director

Hong Kong, 27 February 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Independent auditor’s report to the

shareholders of C.P. Lotus Corporation
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P. Lotus
Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set
out on pages 70 to 161, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

w

FARETEE(E)

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

M BREFESERD

Refer to note 1(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

FEE S HENLID)

The Key Audit Matter
BREENSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPWESNAEEZEE

The Group had net current liabilities of RMB1,723.2
million as at 31 December 2018.
R-ZE—-NF+=ZA=+—81"
A AR%1,723,200,0007T °

EEENRBREFRE

The Group finances its operations and expansion
plans through a combination of operating cash flows
generated from sales of merchandise and leasing store
premises and loans from banks and its controlling
shareholder.

EEENUEREE  HEERYXHEEENEELESH
RITRERBRREREALENBERTE 2ES -

Based on the Group’s 2019 business plan and cash
flow forecast and unused shareholder loan facilities
on hand, the directors believe the Group will generate
sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities as and when
they fall due in the next twelve months.

RiE BEEE_Z-NFzEXHERRESAEERER
ERARAERRREREERE SEEZEZEHE EEE
BEELEZERERUEFERARRT—BARNTH2E
i% o

In view of the above, the directors consider that the
Group will generate sufficient financial resources for its
working capital and capital expenditure requirements
and that it will be able to meet its financial obligations
as when they fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

BEREXFM EEEESARALEELEETZNE
ERUENHEEESREAMER » WHEENHEH
ZHBEE Bt KRS BRRUFELEEEM R
% o

Our audit procedures to assess whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern include the following:
BMEFEUEEHY SEESEKERIELEERRE
BNBEIBERAREFEERTEEMFHIT 7T UTE
BF:

° walking through the business planning process
and assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key
internal controls over the assessment of going
concern, including the preparation of cash flow
forecasts;

. HEBRIARBRERFITRE  ANELELE
(BRGHRASRERAR) KNBERABEFER
5 BREARELNBERE

o comparing the future expected cash flows in the
cash flow forecast with the Group’s business
plan approved by the board of directors;

. BHREREFIPNARERRERERE BEKE
EEEfENERTEERL ;
o comparing the key assumptions adopted by

management in preparing the cash flow forecast,
including revenue and lease income, turnover
days for inventories and trade payables, store
opening plans and relevant capital expenditure,
with historical data and assessing whether any
material variations were consistent with our
expectations based on our understanding of the
Group’s business;

. HEEEERAURSREFARFRANERRES
(BREVWAMESKRA - EFNEMERREEXE -
FRIEETEIMMEEARY) EELBBIFLR
WRBEHMYE SEEEBNTH FHEEEKR
EZEREBHERMOES
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BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

i BERERESE®D (B

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
HRETSBER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPNESNAEEZEE

We identified the assessment of the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern as a key audit matter
because the assessment is dependent upon certain
management assumptions and judgements, in
particular in relation to the future cash flows to be
generated from operations and the ability of the Group
to renew or obtain financing facilities as and when

necessary.
BMEE SREERECEER IR ABRETSE

ARFEBRANELEEENRRMHE - LERBRAE
BEHELECARREREUR BEEERZEREHN
NEMEREZRED -

° assessing the sensitivities of the cash flow
forecast by considering plausible changes to the
key assumptions adopted by management and
considering the resulting impact on the going
concern assumption;

. REBEEBRMANERBIRNSEEZY » FTHR
TREBNBRE  LZRUHFELERRELEN
=% 3

° obtaining written confirmations from banks and
related parties in respect of the existence and
terms of existing debt facilities available during
the twelve-month period ending 31 December
2019; and

. RBEZZ-NAF+-A=+—-HLETZEAHE
WREAAZEBRE RGN - ARTANEBEAL
WISEEER R

° considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the directors’
assessment of the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

. SRATEHNEANER - ZEESNESHBR

RPERE EREUSECERERLEEBRENZF
R E -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

w

FARETEE(E)

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill

8 & 7Rl (E B9 RF A

Refer to note 11 and the accounting policies set out in notes 1(g) and 1(l)(iii) to the consolidated financial

statements.

ESHGE N BEHEM TR M T 1(9)5

10)(ii) T & 19 & &1 B o

The Key Audit Matter
HRETBR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANESNAEEZEE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s goodwill, which
amounted to RMB2,268.8 million, was allocated to
three groups of cash-generating units (“CGUs”),
representing the East, South, and North China Regions.
R-ZE-N\F+=ZA=+—H" SECHBAARY
2,268,800,0007t ' 7 EMEER - EFRELMEZ=A
ReE4BEN((ReEEENDA -

An annual impairment assessment of goodwill is
performed by management. The recoverable amounts
of the assets allocated to each group of CGUs are
determined by management based on value in use
calculations. The expected performance of the Group’s
business operation in the East China Region did not
meet the original forecast. This is attributable to the
challenging market conditions and the termination
of a store lease in Shanghai caused by the breach
of the lease agreement by the landlord. The Group
recognised impairment of goodwill allocated to the
East China Region of RMB385.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

EEEHBHBETFERENE EEERBEIRTEA
ReEtBEUcEENEREEMBEEAETREIHE - A
RTSRBEAREME SEEEXTERBEEHEML

EEAEHR—-BEURDEEHNEN B EEEERM
EFNEEENRBRRATERARE BE -2 - N\F

TZA=1+—-HLFE BEEBRIAIEEERHEND
2 E 5 AR 1385,400,0007T °

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
goodwill included the following:

BMAFEEEEERERAATUT ETEFEE

° evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the amounts of goodwill and assets
allocated to each group of CGUs;

. A EEREREELEUNBAUR S BEZEE
ReEAENANBENEESHE

° using our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the methodology used
by management in the preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting

standards;

. HMEABEEERNHH T2RRTEHEN
RE FHEEEEFERRURRENEBBE AL
RWEE

° comparing the significant inputs used in the

discounted cash flow forecasts, including future
revenue, future gross profit margins and future
store operating and administrative expenses
with the relevant data in the financial budgets
approved by the board of directors, industry
reports and agreements signed subsequent to
the reporting date;

. BRERRERBARTEANBERREAE (B
RBA -~ RREMENARLEEREEER) BEE

SEMENMBEE - TERSNME ABPRER
B9t R AEHT L
° comparing the significant inputs used in

discounted cash flow forecasts prepared in the
prior year with the current year’s performance to
assess how accurate the prior year’s discounted
cash flow forecasts were and making enquiries
of management as to the reasons for any
significant variations identified;

. BEFHFRUBRBATREABRAEANERE AE
HARFEEEFEHEL  UTGAEERRARSRENR
MWERREE YOEEREARBEEZEENER;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

8 & 7R (E B ST A4S (AR

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BERESSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWESNATEEZEE

The value in use was estimated by the discounted
cash flow forecasts prepared by management. The
preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts involves
the exercise of significant management judgement,
in particular in forecasting future revenue, future
gross profit margins and future store operating and
administrative expenses and in determining the long-
term growth rates and discount rates applied.
ERAEEREBAEEERENMERRENEABMRMEE
e BRBERBFBRNERIREREBERNAE - 5
B REFRARRBA ~ RRERERFARRIEHEENER
ER URBERMEREMBRE -

We identified assessing potential impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessment prepared by management is complex
and involves a significant degree of judgement in
determining the assumptions, particularly the long term
growth rates and the discount rates applied, and could
be subject to management bias.

BMEE EEEFELLEE IR ARRETSE
AAHFE BSEEFECERIBANELEEERENRR
MHE - LERRPERZMBERRNEE  BUERE
BEEMNROLA

° assessing the long-term growth rate and
discount rate used in the discounted cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar
retailers;

. FRHLHMEEZEFTNERE  FHURRER
EERTEANRPEREMPRER

° obtaining a sensitivity analyses of the key
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash
flow forecasts prepared by management
and considering the resulting impact on the
impairment charges for the year and whether
there were any indicators of management bias;
and

. DSEEEARRUERRESREARSEFERAN
BREBEREBNHRAMIN  LERAMEAREFE
BEHRBEREENTEURREEFEEEERDHN
TR R

° considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of goodwill, including the key
assumptions and sensitivities to changes in such
assumptions, with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.

. SRVTEH BN ZRE  ZRREUBHRRTE
EREREMENRE  EERRRBRRREZER
REBHNHRMED A -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

o

FARETEE(E)

Potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of certain of the Group’s stores

ETERNYE FENREUREREENEERENT A

Refer to notes 9 and 10 and the accounting policies set out in notes 1(i), 1(j) and 1(l)(iii) to the consolidated

financial statements.

FBE ST IRANA 9 R10KRHTEE10) ~ 10)521()(i) T B A E 5 B °

The Key Audit Matter
HRETBR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANESNAEEZEE

Certain stores of the Group have sustained losses
from operations or have experienced decreasing
store turnover or decreasing gross cash flows from
operations.
BEEEETEMRSESERE  AXEBEXRARIIAR
TRED ©

Management considers that these factors are the
indicators of potential impairment whereby there is
a risk that the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (which represent
favourable lease interests) of certain of the Group’s
stores may not be recoverable in full through the future
cash flows to be generated from trading operations of
these stores or from disposal of these assets.
EEERARUDEERENTR Bt ZZEH2ZY
X FERRKBREFEE (BEFNEERR) WREE
B FEUEELBBZSEHELCHERELEMEEN
ARBEREBSAZH WD A EE -

Management reviews the performance of individual
stores at the end of each reporting period to identify
stores for which indicators of impairment exist.
REBERSHR  EEERNZIREHNES  UHENE
BT R 2 &4 o

For those stores where indicators of impairment were
identified, the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets attributable to
these stores is determined by management based on
value in use calculations on a store-by-store basis.
In determining the value in use of these assets,
discounted cash flow forecasts were prepared by
management for each store for which indicators of
impairment were identified.

MREBBBRETFRZEH  EEESRESIEE/EH
NEABESEYX FERREBEURELEENTRE
HE -EEEASRECHNERETFR 2 EHEHRERR
EREWER UEBETHEREE-

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
certain of the Group’s stores included the following:
HMRTME SEEEETEHENYE  EENRBURE
FEENEERERMATHNEFEFERE

° challenging the Group’s impairment assessment
model by assessing the impairment indicators
identified by management and considering
whether the discounted cash flow forecasts on
a store-by-store basis supported the carrying
value of the relevant assets;

. FRTEEBEIENINAETRRERERMEHEE
HELNERRERERIREXSHBAEENR
HEE @ SEENHEFERERXREES -

° using our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the methodology used
by management in the preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

. EMEABEEERNHYHSRRTEHER 2B
E%?WEEEJEE#ﬁ%ﬁ!ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
W%

° comparing the most significant inputs used in
the discounted cash flow forecasts, including
future growth rates in revenue, future gross
margins and future store operating and
administrative expenses, with the historical
performance of these stores, store budgets
approved by store management, industry reports
and agreements signed subsequent to the
reporting date;

. HRRREREFRTEANERRE AE (BFEXR
RPABRE - RREMRAMARREHEENEE
ER)HEZEERNBERR EEEAMENTS
BAE - TERINBEHRBETNHREHLL
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

stores (Continued)

Potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of certain of the Group’s

ETERENYE FENRBURELEENETRENTMG (F)

The Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EPNBTMAEEZEE

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, particularly in estimating future growth
rates in revenue, future gross margins and future
store operating and administrative expenses and in
determining the discount rates applied.
HRREREFERNFERIREBEBEANAE  LHR
T RRBABRE RRENR - AREREERE
BER URETEANBERE-

We identified the potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets of certain
of the Group’s stores as a key audit matter because
determining the indicators of impairment and the level
of impairment, if any, involves a significant degree of
management judgement, particularly in forecasting
future cash flows and estimating the recoverable
amounts of these assets, both of which are inherently
uncertain and could be subject to management bias.
BMEEEETE@ANYE FENRBURELEEN
BREBERNSERETSE  BRAERERENRRNE
BARF(WAE) K SRIEEESENHEREL  LHEHR
BRARRBERENEFZEEENTHEDEE  WEER
AAETHREMN  BUEREZEEENRAOELA

° comparing the most significant inputs used in
the discounted cash flow forecasts prepared
in the prior year with the current year’s
performance of these stores to assess the
accuracy of the prior year’s discounted cash
flow forecasts and enquiring of management for
any significant variations identified;

. EERAEFHFRENBRBSREFNPEANERE
ANEHZEEHEFNEE  UTEHEFRRERE
RIERMERE  TOEEEABRTNERAEZEN
REA ;

° assessing the discount rates used in
the discounted cash flow forecasts, by
benchmarking against other similar retailers;

. ZBRYHHLHEHMEESERNERE  FFHBERRASR
EEBPEANERE

° obtaining a sensitivity analysis of the key
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash
flow forecasts prepared by management
and considering the resulting impact on the
impairment charge for the year and whether
there were any indicators of management bias;
and

. MEEEBHNERNERREREERRANE
BERETHRMEIN  AEERALHFERRE
BENKEURRAFEEERRENTR I &

° considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of certain of the Group’s
stores, including the key assumptions and
sensitivities to changes in such assumptions,
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

. SRBTEA R HRE  ZRESVBRERFH
BB EEEETEHNYE BEEIRBURE
FEENEBEERENGENKE SEERRERY
HWEBRBEBNGBRMED AT o
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

e

FARETEE(E)

Supplier arrangements

HAERE 25

BB GE BN (m) BB HY B AT B o

Refer to the accounting policy set out in note 1(m) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN ESTMAEEZEE

The Group has agreements with suppliers with several
types of different arrangements.

EEEEUEEREERBT LG -

The arrangements vary in nature and size and include
trade or volume discounts and rebates that are earned
when the goods are purchased, and reimbursement of
costs incurred by the Group to sell the goods, such as
costs incurred for marketing campaigns, warehousing
and deliveries.
ZEZHMMEERELRE TR BRCEABRRE
ZHEMBESHIZITNAERR  MRE SEEHFEED
MATEENER  fINEHTY  BERNBEMEENE
m o

Volume based discounts and rebates are recognised as
a deduction from the cost of purchase of merchandise
when the performance obligations associated with
them are met. These performance conditions generally
require the Group to meet certain volume thresholds.
Trade discounts and rebates that are earned after the
related goods are sold are recognised as a deduction
from the cost of sales.
REBETNTNANENEFSHBERRMZERBTRTH
BRAPmMEBRANNENE -  HEERRGBREER
EEEEIBEENHERE - HEHER R BRI
MR R E AR -

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
supplier rebates and fees included the following:
BARFEUERRAINEERIGMAITHETEFE
7

° understanding and evaluating the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of management’s key internal controls in
place within the process relating to supplier
arrangements;

. THRAFLTEEENERHESEREEENBESR
AR ABER AR  BRMNBRELNE
py G

o assessing the accounting treatment in respect
of the supplier arrangements by inspecting the
terms and obligations set out in each type of
standard agreement used with suppliers with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

. EEHMEEREANZSBEEEERBRHIINVERMK
MEMR - UFERHERZ NS RERE2R
BITETERZRE

° evaluating, on a sample basis, the inputs to
the information technology applications which
calculate volume based discounts and rebates
by comparing the inputs with underlying
documentation, including sales and purchase
volume data and discount and rebate rates
in the respective agreements, and performing
recalculations of the volume based discounts
and rebates to which the Group is entitled based
on the above inputs;

. ERMEEHNREETNHNNERANEMBIFIE
ARXZBAE  UHZSEREERE G (B
HEMNRBEEUR SO HZRE AT HAERR
R)EHL YR ELABMABEHHE E5KEEH
EESEREBTENWIINMRF ;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

Supplier arrangements (Continued)

HAERE = 5 (&)

The Key Audit Matter
BREENSHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMMETNMEEZSE

Reimbursements from suppliers of selling costs
incurred by the Group are offset against the
represective costs incurred when the costs relate to a
marketing campaign initiated by the supplier or carried
out in collaboration with the supplier. Any surplus
from the reimbursement over the expenses incurred is
recognised as a reduction of the cost of sales.
EEAEAERRETSEENERREAR S/FHE
oRE SEEHEENHEEERAEEMERERIEHE -
RETHEBEREREREEIAEEXNSNINRE
%E o

Fees earned for services that are separate from the
purchase of goods are recognised as other income
when the services are delivered.
BRREEREMFREBTRABDRNER  REHRBK
WHEDSEMUA -

We identified the treatment of supplier arrangements
as a key audit matter because of the complexity and
volume of the arrangements and because for some
arrangements judgement is required in determining the
period over which the reduction in cost of sales should
be recognised, requiring both a detailed understanding
of the contractual arrangements themselves as well
as complete and accurate source data to apply the
arrangements to.

BB UHERZENEEL 2R EABRENSE  BA
ZHNERUERHERR  EREERBEIEERSRDDN
R FEFLAE  ESHBRERBERZHELASH
HHETHBURTENERNEBBEUERRZHF -

° testing, on a sample basis, the recognition
of trade discounts and rebates which are not
directly relating to the volume of purchase,
reimbursement of costs to sell the goods and
service fees earned by inspecting underlying
documentation, including supplier confirmations
of the billings in respect of the fulfilment of the
respective obligations;

. ZBMEEMNABEX Y (BREESRRIEITEE
EENRE) LUAFHERBE T EZEMEBENITIAN
BA - HERRERENFTRERBEERARECD®

iy -
e

° comparing, on a sample basis, the amount
of discount and rebates and reimbursements
earned from suppliers for the year with that
confirmed by the respective supplier through the
“invoice-tracking system”, which is an on-line
platform accessible by both the suppliers and
the Group and tax information systems, where
available; and

. FRMELER BSRERAFEWRERMAERZRR
MERSH HEBEMHESRBIBREEMASL]
(HEEmR BESEUTERHNRKLTER) IHRKE
BRG(WME) eI 2E£5E M

° testing on a sample basis any material fees for
services that are separate from the purchase
of goods that are recognised in other income
by inspecting underlying documentation and
comparing the amount of the consideration to
the fair value of the services provided.

. 218 AR B AR B UM IS B £ RRER FT R (L AR 7S
MARBEETLEE  WARETAERFRKER R
PRz REEREEHEAREMEA -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

-

FARETEE(E)

Valuation of inventories

FEME

Refer to note 13 and the accounting policy set out in note 1(m) to the consolidated financial statements.

FBEE S BEIREN T 13R M1 (m)FF B E 5 B -

The Key Audit Matter
BERESSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ESTNAREEZSEE

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

FEDEAARAIEEFEMNE P 2BEEIIK -

Management reviews the status of inventories on hand
on a regular basis to identify slow moving items and
may determine either to provide markdowns or to
return certain items to suppliers at cost after deduction
of unearned supplier income.
EEEEHREREFENMR - LERIFHER - AR
ERBFEERME  NENBRARRIMNHER WA RIZMHLRE
BRIEARAMEROIDER °

The provision for inventories is calculated based on an
inventory ageing analysis, actual sales and purchase
data and management experience and judgement
regarding estimated markdowns as well as the current
inventory profile.

FEZBEG DREBFEERI N - BEREEEREBEHE
MEE B H (5t F#E LU E A1 17 84K rY 48 B A0 3 I i =t
R

No provision is provided for inventories where the
respective purchase agreements indicate that they are
returnable to suppliers at their original cost.
HRARBIEERBY R EETIRRGERAROEERER
FE A TFEHEEE -

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
inventories included the following:

BMARFEEFELESAATHNESEFEE

° understanding and evaluating the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of management’s key internal controls over
inventory management, including the purchase
of inventories and review of inventory status;

. TENFHEEENFEEE (BRBEFENE
B SRR Pk ARV S A B IZ B ERET - Bt
MEBELENBRME

° assessing whether the provision for inventories
at the year end date was consistent with
the Group’s inventory provision policy by
recalculating the provision for inventories based
on the percentages and other parameters in
the Group’s inventory provision policy and
considering the Group’s inventory provision
policy with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

. 28 BEEEFERBRRTHRREILLMEA
SHENTEFERB Ut ERENRFERZ
FERBRAHEFERBARE -, KEER E&

BNFERBRRECNERITEFENNESR;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in
the inventory shrinkage report were classified
within the appropriate shrinkage bracket by
checking the inputs such as sales records for
the selected sample;

. EBMBEELNFEREBRERAYIEE RERKE
PHBENGEHRERAN  YEZEEREEHEEE
MERBBSCBRMEHI L
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

Valuation of inventories (Continued)

FEME (&)

The Key Audit Matter
BERESSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWESNATEEZEE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because determining an appropriate provision
for inventories involves significant management
judgement in determining the markdowns necessary to
sell slow moving inventories which cannot be returned
to suppliers.

EMBNFEMEAEARETSE  EREEEENFE
BER EEEEMHEETHEEOHERNTHER 2R
B FHERHE-

° performing a retrospective review on the
Group’s inventory provision policy by comparing
the actual sales or return of inventories during
the year with management’s estimations at the
end of the prior year; and

. ZBRREREFNEENOE  HEEREAFARAE
AEIBESL - FHEWRN UL SEENF
ERBHREX M

° attending cycle counts at the Group’s stores
and distribution centres throughout the year,
on a sample basis, performing sample counts
and evaluating the results of the cycle counts
performed by management throughout the
year to assess management’s estimation of the
shrinkage rate.

. BRAREEBSE BEEEEHNREATLEEF
HITHBRERBYE T/ NAGEEEZEHT
MEMBEREBEGER  HUNGEEBEHEREN
&t e
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

BYZHBENRES

=

REMBHRERREZBARE U
2R

ESTUHAMEEAE -HUFERENER
FHRANZHES  ETEEFEUBHRRR
BAINRBET RS

EMUGEVBBRROVBRLFREHME
B BAFTHZEEMEERREMERN
EXRE® -

FERMYGESUBHRRONET  BRMNNEME
EHERMER  FUBRES ERHEMES
EREGAMBRRIARMEEABEPRT
BHBREFEEREBNE UTFEEARHER
PR AR R ©

EREMESATHIE  IRRFADBBEME
ERAEBXRERRM  AMFEREZEE -
HELHE  EMREEFHRS -

EENGEUMBHRRAREZ
BT

EXACERBETESHMOASHEM 2T BY
BHRELARBBLARI ZIHEZRERE
EMPENESMBRER  UHARABELR
BMBERRNEENFEHRKFRERME
B2BERERBLFTFENAIREZESE -

ERAGSVBRRE  ER2E 8N 8E
BIFEAENEED  WEBABR T K E R
BEEAMBE  UREAFELERS
Bt BRIFESARK SEEBBIFLE
g PR BEHEMEBENERTR -

HEIZEEMBESEITEE SEKENHB

BRBENWEE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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SERIFRESKFHRE  ETERBERE
BEEAETHES AR -BXHERBRM
PR ARBEER I o SRERIRAL A LA SR HR S 8 3R
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R o
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBAEHRESE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wai Ka Lun.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 February 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEEmik

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BEZZE-\F+ZA=Z+-HLEFE(UAR¥TREN)

v

2018 2017
—F-N\F| Z2—iF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M EE AR%T AR®ET T
Revenue PN 2 10,122,022 9,655,191
Cost of sales $HE KA 13 (8,339,802) (7,918,689)
Gross profit E X 1,782,220 1,736,502
Other revenue Hauhz= 3 672,440 605,349
Other net loss Hing18 558 3 (448,118) (41,531)
Distribution and store operating costs Rk R & E R A (1,850,939) (1,707,119)
Administrative expenses THEHA (260,874) (266,395)
(Loss)/profit from operations e (BR),RR (105,271) 326,806
Finance costs A& B AR 4(a) (117,228) (101,554)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB AT (EBB), SRR 4 (222,499) 225,252
Income tax Frig %t 5 (65,860) (46,212)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable EANFAIRREEFER
to the equity shareholders of the (&8) =R
Company (288,359) 179,040
(Loss)/earnings per share s8R (BE) ER 8
Basic (RMB cents) EX(AR%7) (1.29) 0.80
Diluted (RMB cents) BE(ARED) (1.29) 0.80

The notes on pages 77 to 161 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeBEREREMZEBZERR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BE-ZE-N\F+ZA=+t-HLEFE(UARBITREM)

2018 2017
ZE-NEF| ZE—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR® T
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable KARBRRELEFEER
to the equity shareholders of the (BE]) &F
Company (288,359) 179,040
Other comprehensive income for the FEREMZEKE
year (after tax and reclassification (RBRESERABE)
adjustments)
Item that may be reclassified HEUE s BEEER
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIHEAE
Exchange differences on translation of BEREARELNE
financial statements of entities outside (MBI BANA B B FS 3R
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) ReEHREER 5,958 (12,398)
Total comprehensive income for AATBRREEFER
the year attributable to the equity EHIKEHEE
shareholders of the Company (282,401) 166,642

The notes on pages 77 to 161 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IS AR Ak
e

As at 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
RZFB-NE+ZA=+-H(UAR®BTREN)

31 December | 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
+=AH +=A
=t+-—H =t+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M & ARET R ARBT T
(Note)
(K1)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- - BERRE 9 1,738,851 1,690,445
Interests in leasehold land held for own EEHECBA L
use under operating leases HERES 9 116,476 122,771
1,855,327 1,813,216
Intangible assets BREE 10 111,934 137,455
Goodwill GRS 11 2,268,814 2,654,252
Trade and other receivables EERHEMEWRIE 14 6,804 10,303
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 24(b) 19,757 34,972
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 4,262,636 | 4,650,198
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 13 1,315,011 1,144,710
Trade and other receivables EERHEAMEWRIE 14 1,009,760 853,183
Pledged bank deposits 2IEARITER 15 61,922 59,865
Cash and cash equivalents BeRhBREEHE 16 461,406 166,115
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 2,848,009 | 2,223,873
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables EERHEMEMSRIE 17 3,856,125 3,786,001
Contract liabilities BHNEE 18 357,819 -
Bank loans RITEM 19 311,595 229,946
Loans from controlling shareholder B ERRREN 20 - 913,009
Other loans Hth &K 21 - 43,402
Obligations under finance leases MEREEMT 22 14,243 12,909
Current taxation BN EA B 18 24(a) 24,241 27,237
Provisions B 23 7,295 7,978
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 4,571,318 | 5,020,482
Netcurrentliabilites  _________ #*®BR\E¥&E | (1,723,219)| (2,796,609
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 2,539,417 1,853,589

The notes on pages 77 to 161 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R =

As at 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
REZZB-NE+ZA=+-H(UAR¥THREN)

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—+tF
+=A +=A
=t+—H =+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M & AREBT R ARBT T
(Note)
(H1 i)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Loans from controlling shareholder BHERRRER 20 944,965 -
Other loans Hth &K 21 45,494 -
Obligations under finance leases MEHESHE 22 115,287 129,530
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 24(b) 26,502 34,489
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 1,132,248 | 164,019
NET ASSETS EEFH 1,407,169 1,689,570
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRE
Share capital [ 25(c) 405,726 405,726
Reserves ] 1,001,443 1,283,844
TOTAL EQUITY DB 1,407,169 1,689,570

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

February 2019.

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January
2018. Under the transition method chosen, comparative information
is not restated. Further details are disclosed in note 1(e) of this

report.

Soopakij Chearavanont

WEA

Director

EF

The notes on pages 77 to 161 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
TRERERBEHERK
e

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BEZZE-\F+ZA=Z+-HLEFE(UAR¥TREN)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARFEL
Share Share Revaluation Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
R& RHyEE Eftfitk Btk ZitBE Ba

(note 25(c)) (note 25(d)) (note 25(d)) (note 25(d))
(Wax2se)  (WaEos)  (W&os()  (KEEes(d)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEETR  AR®Tn  AR®TR  ARETR  ARETn  AR®T:n

At 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-A-H 405,726 1,933,161 (9,166) 253,003 (1,059,796) 1,522,928
Profit for the year EERH - - - - 179,040 179,040
Other comprehensive income  Eft2EM& - - - (12,398) - (12,398)
Total comprehensive income ~ EE2ANHELE
for the year - . - (12398) 179,040 166,642
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tF
+=B=1-8 057 1,933,161 (8,166) 240,605 080756) 1689570
At 1 January 2018 R=E-NE-A-7 0572 1,933,161 (9,166) 240,605 080756) 1,689,570
Loss for the year EEFE - - - - (288,359) (288,359)
Other comprehensive income ~ Eft 2 Eli - - - 5,958 - 5,958
Total comprehensive income ~ EE2 AN HAH
oy R o R 598 .. (288,359 (82401)
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\F
TZA=t-H 405,726 1,933,161 (9,166) 246,563 (1,169,115) 1,407,169

The notes on pages 77 to 161 form part of these financial 277Z161EZMEIIRMKEHRF 2504 -
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

SMERERERK
Mo

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BEZZ-/\F+ZAZ+-HLEFE(UAR¥TREN)

2018 2017
—g-N\F —Z2-tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B EE AR®BTR AR¥F
Operating activities EEER
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B51B) %R (222,499) 225,252
Adjustments for: EUTHE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - EERREZITE 4(c) 195,645 187,614
Amortisation of land lease premium T AEER 2 4(c) 6,295 6,293
Amortisation of intangible assets B ERE 2 HH 4(c) 9,419 8,113
Impairment losses BIEEE 401,540 -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HENE FERSEZ
and equipment FER 3 6,811 10,902
Finance costs & A 4(a) 117,228 101,554
Interest income AMEWA 3 (3,945) (2,273)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) HEERFER (& 42,125 (73,049)
(Gain)/loss on the forward foreign LHﬂ HEHESH Z
exchange contracts wAl) S EE 3 (20,940) 103,678
Operating profit before changes in EEESBHA2EERA
working capital 531,679 568,084
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOGEM B (170,301) 95,834
Increase in bank deposits pledged for inventory F & HEB K @ ¥ EER ZHET
purchases and guarantees to landlords 7 FUIK 4538 0 (2,057) (320)
Increase in trade and other receivables &E R 2 U IR E N (145,980) (56,764)
Increase in contract liabilities BHNEEEM 16,319 -
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables & & & H i f& 4 X
g/ (ED) 478,896 (264,573)
Cash generated from operations EEELACES 708,556 342,261
PRC income tax paid 21 P B E 24(a) (61,628) (38,476)
Net cash generated from operating activities ¥ B2 KEL 2 HEFE 646,928 303,785

The notes on pages 77 to 161 form part of these financial Z77Z161BZM I ANMBHRE ZZH ©
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTREHRRK

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BE-_Z-N\F+=-A=1+—

v

RIEFE(MARBTREMN)

2018 2017
—E-N\%§ —E—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B = AR¥T R AR®ET T
Investing activities REXK
Payment for purchases of property, BENE EERREZ
plant and equipment 3 (281,009) (225,768)
Interest received 2 WFE 3,945 2,273
Proceeds from disposal of property, tlj’i#@% FERRZHEZ
plant and equipment ;B 2,271 2,135
Net cash used in investing activities REXBERAZREFE (274,793) (221,360)
Financing activities MEEK
Proceeds from bank loans RITERZNIA 16(b) 432,102 329,549
Proceeds from loans from controlling ERBRRERZFE
shareholder 16(b) 80,185 -
Repayment of bank loans RITERZEXK 16(b) (350,453) (304,503)
Repayment of shareholder loans ERBRERZER 16(b) (80,110) -
Capital element of finance leases paid TAREREzRSHH 16(b) (12,909) (11,345)
Interest element of finance leases paid SEﬁmﬂﬁ*H Z R EBMH 16(b) (13,496) (14,690)
Interest on bank loans paid TERZFE 16(b) (10,878) (10,268)
Interest on other loans and loans from Eﬁﬂﬁ Q& H{iﬂxiﬁ
controlling shareholder paid ZFIE 16(b) (77,226) (66,084)
Interest on issuance of bank accepted bills RITHHZALERAE (395) (495)
Loan arrangement and guarantee fees paid XHER ;??JF&?FEREFH 16(b) (16,396) (1,889)
Cash paid on settlement of the forward RENMNEMESNEER
foreign exchange contracts Fxffzi& 16(b) (28,993) (22,355)
Net cash used in financing activities =~~~ MHAXBEARoFR | (78,569)| (102,080)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBSEH
cash equivalents #m,/ (Rd) F8E 293,566 (19,655)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HEERESIHE 1,725 (1,150)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—-B2zHER
REEH 166,115 186,920
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—BA=+—-8z2
31 December ReRBSEH 16(a) 461,406 166,115
The notes on pages 77 to 161 form part of these financial 7721618 2MF IR IEHE 2215 o

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(e) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

As the Group’s hypermarket stores are all located in
the PRC and most of the Group’s transactions are
conducted and denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), which
is the functional currency of the Company’s operating
subsidiaries in the PRC, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, rounded to the nearest
thousand, unless otherwise stated. The functional currency
of the Company is Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”).

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB288.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: net
profit of RMB179.0 million). As at 31 December 2018,
the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB1,723.2 million (2017: RMB2,796.6 million).

In view of this circumstance, the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity and_performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue
as a going concern.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R R B R

v

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The Directors note that despite the loss from operations
of RMB105.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, which includes impairment losses over intangible
assets and goodwill of approximately RMB401.5 million,
the Group generated net cash from operating activities of
approximately RMB646.9 million during the year (2017:
RMB303.8 million). With the continuing efforts taken to
expand store network, optimise merchandise and sales
space, enhance relationship with suppliers and improve
operation efficiency, the Directors believe this will improve
the performance and operating cash flows of the Group in
future periods.

As disclosed in note 20, as at 31 December 2018, the
Group has loans from its controlling shareholder, C.P.
Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited (“CPH”),
amounting to approximately USD139.8 million (equivalent
to RMB958.4 million), which are repayable in December
2020. In addition, the Group still has unused loan facilities
from the controlling shareholder amounting to USD48.0
million (equivalent to RMB329.4 million), which will expire
in December 2020.

Based on the Group’s 2019 business plan and cash flow
forecast and unused shareholder loan facilities on hand,
the Directors believe the Group will generate sufficient
cash flows to meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due in the next twelve months. In preparing the cash flow
forecast, the Directors have also assumed the Group’s
ultimate holding company will continue to support the
Group to the extent necessary.

In view of the above, the Directors consider that the Group
will generate sufficient financial resources for its working
capital and capital expenditure requirements and that it
will be able to meet its financial obligations as when they
fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the derivative financial instruments are stated at their fair
value as explained in note 1(h).

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of estimation and judgement

(e)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 34.

Change in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

° HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
° HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

e HK (IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring financial
assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy
or sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
items that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirements.’ The adoption of
HKFRS 9 does not have any material impact on the
consolidated financial position or the consolidated
financial results of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition
approach are set out below:

a. Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL). These supersede
HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets
measured at FVPL. The classification of financial
assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset is managed
and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

Under HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded in
contracts where the host is a financial asset in
the scope of the standard are not separated from
the host. Instead, the hybrid instrument as a
whole is assessed for classification.

Because the significant financial assets of the
Group subject to HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018
were cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables, there is no material impact on
the carrying amounts of the assets on adoption of
HKFRS 9.

For an explanation of how the Group classifies
and measures financial assets and recognises
related gains and losses under HKFRS 9, see the
respective accounting policy notes in notes 1(h),
() (), (o) and (p).

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same, except for financial
guarantee contracts, if any. The carrying amounts
for all financial liabilities at 1 January 2018 have
not been impacted by the initial application of
HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any
financial asset or financial liability at FVPL at 1
January 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESBER (8)

(Continued)

(e) Change in accounting policies (Continued) (e) EFtBXRZ22E (#)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

b. Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with the expected credit loss (ECL)
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with a
financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs
earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to
financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables). As the Group’s credit risk
is limited by the nature of its retail sales model,
this change in accounting policy does not have a
significant impact to the financial position or the
financial results of the Group.

For further details on the Group’s accounting
policy for credit losses, see note 1 (I) (i).

(i)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue and some costs from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS
18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS
11, Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method. Comparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 11 and HKAS 18. As allowed by HKFRS 15,
the Group has applied the new requirements only to
contracts that were not completed before 1 January
2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
on previous accounting policies are set out below:

(A) Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from provision of
services was recognised over time, whereas
revenue from sale of goods was generally
recognised at a point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods had passed to
the customers.

Under HKFRS 15,

revenue is recognised when

the customer obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract. This may be
at a single point in time or over time. HKFRS
15 identifies the following three situations in
which control of the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred over time:

When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;

When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS
15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that
good or service at a single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership is only one of the indicators that is
considered in determining when the transfer of control

occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant
impact on when the Group recognised revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(B)

Annual Report 2018 & #&

Presentation of contract assets and contract
liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. If the Group recognises the related
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration for the promised goods and
services in the contract, then the entitlement
to consideration is classified as a contract
asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than
a payable, is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due,
before the Group recognises the related revenue.
For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

To reflect these changes in presentation,
the Group classified “Advance receipts from
customers” amounting to RMB341.5 million as
at 1 January 2018, which were mainly related to
sales of prepaid cards and previously included
in trade and other payables as a separate line
item as contract liabilities on the face of the
consolidated statement of financial position.
The estimated related VAT payable of RMB54.6
million is classified under other creditors and
accrued charges.

Except for the disclosures above related to
redemptions of prepaid cards, the Group
applies the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 for other sales contracts and
does not disclose information about remaining
performance obligations that have original
expected duration of one year or less.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESHBER (8)
(Continued)

(e) Change in accounting policies (Continued) () EFBERZ2E (&)
(il HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (i) ZBRHEHEEREISH  &F
(Continued) FE#Xz Wz ()
(C) Other impacts (C) HitxZ
The Group’s assessment is that the impact of AEEFEE B RS
HKFRS 15 in other areas including customer Z A E155 B H th B i
rights of return, principal vs agent arrangements, WEE BREEFPEERE
customer financing is not significant as the Ao ZRAMNEANZ
respective volume of transactions are either not B %—E MERBEHN
material or the new standard has not led to a REBITEKR RHE
change in accounting treatment. Al S EEHETTEEE
@b FEIFEKR
(i) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and (i) ZEE (ERYBHREZEEZE
advance consideration B) F228 0 X BRB(TEH
&
This interpretation provides guidance on determining ZREAREIRSZBHIREM
“the date of the transaction” for the purpose of TSl - BNREERDRER
determining the exchange rate to use on initial BERBEIESX A IMERAHER
recognition of the related asset, expense or income %ﬁ'ﬁ%’iﬂ’yﬁggﬁé B AT
(or part of it) arising from a transaction in which an A (SHEHED) B FEARIEE -

entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency.

The interpretation clarifies that “the date of the ZREEREE IRZAHIZRY
transaction” is the date on initial recognition of R RN R RAEER
the non-monetary asset or liability arising from the EENFEEEHEERAGENA
payment or receipt of advance consideration. If B o snRERBIEBEER 2AE
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance LEMRSUIE  BRRAIENE
of recognising the related item, the date of the BEAXBESETRIBENR
transaction for each payment or receipt should be ZBH - RAWE B (BRI &R
determined in this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 EREZEY) E22RHAEE
does not have any material impact on the financial B9 B 7 AR % B S BE A 0 FRAE AR
position and the financial result of the Group. BEXTE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cashflows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree;
over (ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 1(l)(iii)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(l)):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see
note 1(k)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 30
years after the date of completion.

— Leasehold improvements 13 - 20 years or over
the remaining term of
the lease, whichever

is shorter

— Furniture, fixtures and 3 - 8 years
equipment

— Motor vehicles 3 - 8 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Stores under fit out represent the cost of leasehold
improvements and other fit out costs incurred to
date. Stores under fit out are transferred to leasehold
improvements and the relevant other asset categories
when the stores are substantially ready for their
intended use. No depreciation is provided in respect
of stores under fit out.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets represent the favourable aspect of
operating leases relative to market terms acquired in
business combinations, where the acquiree is the lessee.
These intangible assets are recognised and measured at
fair value upon acquisition. The fair value is determined
based on a comparison of the market and contractual
rental rates at the date of acquisition.

Intangible assets associated with favourable aspects
of operating leases acquired in a business combination
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 1(l)). Amortisation is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the remaining
lease term.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

1

TESEBUR (&)

1)

(k)

BELEE (BRI

BREENEXERAHE  WREBA
%ﬁﬁk gz @ BRER T SK
AR o WLHEIE E R UIE 5
RILLAR SRMERTE - A RERWER
ZHEREHNHELBEMERE -

REBSHHABBEzBNEERE
ZEREE  URAHIRZT#ER
ERE (RHEE1()) HI7R o # 8 5L
HAERBTHERRBREPIIZ -

HEEE

i AEERER B ERHANELR—E
RN —ERRXHU—FER—ERM
RARERMS-—ERZHRBEEEZ
EREzZE  AZEZHEERSE
BHE - REARENRZHZEEM

u:F'fE ﬁﬁ;rnﬁﬂn/(l,ﬁiﬁ}ati%
ZEERN -

S EREUVEE

() FEBHELEEZDHE

AEBUAESRNFREZEE -
17 AE {6 £ iy 5 FE AR B 2 4B KD
NERKREKRCEBEAEE

BRcEEESPBRURE
HESHE MBEETS/EAR
FRB 1 2 A R ER 4D B A [ ¥ 4
BEXREE  EEoHEALEM
%EO

C.P. Lotus Corporation [ M&s&E7EH R



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 1(i). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 1(l). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R 2R B &

-

-

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

° Financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables);

° Contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15;
and

° Lease receivable.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the
ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

° Fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;

° Variable-rate financial assets: current

effective interest rate;

° Lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)

Annual Report 2018 & #&

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

° 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

° lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an _amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

° Failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

e An actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if available);

e An actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

° Existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)

Annual Report 2018 & #&

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities
that are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 1(w)(v) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

e significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

e it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

e significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

e the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
lease receivable or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) ) FEEEREEREGE)
()  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract I = éﬁ'z‘]ﬁ%’ﬁl@f%ﬁg
assets and lease receivables (Continued) HEHIEEREE ()

(B)

Annual Report 2018 & #&

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” model
was used to measure impairment losses on
financial assets not classified as at FVPL (e.g.
trade and other receivables, available-for sale
investments and held-to-maturity debt securities).
Under the “incurred loss” model, an impairment
loss was recognised only when there was
objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment included:

e significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

° it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; and

e significant changes in the technological,
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For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, if
any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of the assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for-assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the decrease
could be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss was reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss was only
recognised to the extent that it did not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other
financial assets carried at amortised cost was
considered doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group was satisfied
that recovery was remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off against the gross
carrying amount of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly were recognised in profit or loss.

Credit loss from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial guarantees issued

(Continued)

Financial guarantee issued are initially recognised
with “trade and other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit
or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and recognises
a provision when ECLs on the financial
guarantees are determined to be higher than the
amount carried in “trade and other payables” in
respect of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since
the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL
is measured unless the risk that the specified
debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a
lifetime ECL is measured. The same definition of
default and the same assessment of significant
increase in credit risk as described in note 1(1)(i)

apply.

Annual Report 2018 & #&

1

TESEBUR (&)

U]

FEBREREERE (E)
() ERHHBEERZIEEER
(&

EBRHNWUBERDSRIEE
R E MR FRIR R RAFERE
Ao MREAFELELRER
RBEERT WEH BB R RER
WA AR R T B 75 EUELRY {4
AR (B ER AR A S
&R SEHEURBHDFR
ZHFTEEEE R (R EEZ
ZERE) R EZEMEE -
e Jr B R 3R R By AU S, AT W B
RE  BREREAEEER
RZBEENBERT TR - i
BEARE R AR UEEE T W
ABSRS N B PR

RIpTHERE - NREIRIEL
WANEBERERMAR SRS
BIERCBHMBEROBA -

A BZZEZ-NE—AF—0#8
Az BUR

AEEEREEEBAR
WEER - U EBBER
MECLsHEE RS RIERK
[EERHMENKRIE]P
M &8 (AR SR
R KRR -

ABTEECLs  AEFEEZE
BIETEEABZEHER
DRMENRERES I
25 E1218 B WECL » M
EHEEEBABEHER
LLBR Y 22 49 | B K 0 32 A0
FER T BRI EIER
ToREHEXEFEED
BIECL B 51 (1) (i) Fir 4k &Y
HEENEEREERR
PR R ORI R g P
BERARL -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R R B R

-

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

(ifi)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

As the Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the specified debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that
the group expects to receive from the holder of
the guarantee, the specified debtor or any other
party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to
the cash flows.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, a provision would be
recognised if and when it became probable that
(i) the holder of the guarantee would call upon the
Group under the guarantee and (ii) the amount of
the claim on the Group was expected to exceed
the amount carried in “trade and other payables”
in respect of the guarantee.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases;

intangible assets;
goodwill;
prepaid lease payments for premises; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

Annual Report 2018 & #&

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a CGU).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the CGU
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of CGU are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R R B R

S

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(l)(i) and (iii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the moving weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, after
deducting discounts and payments from suppliers, except
where such payments represent an reimbursement of
identifiable expenditures incurred by the Group which
provide identifiable benefits to the suppliers separate from
the Group’s purchase of the supplier’s goods. Supplier
payments include cash or its equivalent in form (e.g, free
goods, credits applied to future purchase).

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as
a reduction'in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(w)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed
for expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with
the policy set out in note 1(I)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional (see note 1(0)). A contract liability is
recognised when the customer pays consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue (see note 1(w)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
note 1(0)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(w)).

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

In the comparative period, amounts received from
customers before the related revenue was recognised were
presented as “advance receipts from customers” under
“trade and other payables”. These balances have been
reclassified on 1 January 2018 as shown in note 18 (see
note 1(e)(ii)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(n)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 1(I)(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 1(I)(i)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(l)(ii), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(y)).

Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is
non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s
option, and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends
on preference share capital classified as equity are
recognised as distributions within equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial lattice model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits/accumulated
losses).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-N\E+-A=+-HLFE(RIEHBIN UAR¥ETHEN)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services or
the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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BE-Z-\S+ZA=+-HLEFE(BRBEHABI AARBTHEMN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Revenue (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer
for more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue recognition policies
are as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering
other goods and/or services, then the amount of
revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion
of the total transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

In the comparative period, revenue from sales of
goods was recognised when the goods were delivered
to the customers’ premises, which was taken to be
the point in time when the customer had accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Revenue (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Service income

Service income is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset
(see note 1(I)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Revenue (Continued)

(vii) Income from financial guarantees issued

Income from financial guarantees issued is recognised
over the term of the guarantees (see 1(l)(ii)).

(x) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Except as noted below, exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of entities outside the PRC are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
The assets and liabilities of entities outside the PRC are
translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Exchange differences arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in foreign
operations are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the consolidated financial statements.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(@)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset, which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iiiy Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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BE-Z-\S+ZA=+-HLEFE(BRBEHABI AARBTHEMN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(z) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various operations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

The principal activity of the Group is the operation of
hypermarket stores in the PRC. Revenue represents the net
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group
to external customers, less returns, discounts and value added
taxes.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and there is no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

All revenue from external customers are generated in the PRC
and all significant operating assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, the Group has a single operating and
reportable segment - operation of hypermarket stores in the
PRC.

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 2 W AR 49 Z&%

AEBZEZXBIRTELEE AR
meWADNAEERIRBEHESR
WER R 2 FREHIRERE « T RIEE

FEBECEFERSEL  HEETEAE
SEXZEAEERAEIB10% -

B REE ZWARBRPERAEER
FEEXREEEENVNTE - Bt - K&
EES-EXBREESA -RPRELEE
KBS o

3 HttWEKHMEEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F AR®EF T
Other revenue H bz
Leasing of store premises EEYERERA 572,100 522,828
Other promotion and service income HtEERRBEWA 88,664 68,131
Interest income on financial assets REERATENEREE
measured at amotised cost FE WA 3,945 2273
Government grants BT 76 BY 7,731 12,117
672,440 605,349
Other net loss HihsE 58
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain X (BB TafFE8E (60,707) 73,049
Gain/(loss) on the forward foreign REMEBRESHNZER
exchange contracts (note 16(b) and 26(d) (&5#2) (KfzE16(b)%26(d)) 20,940 (103,678)
Impairment losses WEEE
- intangible assets -\BmEEE (16,102) -
- goodwill -2 (385,438) -
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE FERREZ
plant and equipment BB 5 (6,811) (10,902)
(448,118) (41,531)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

4 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

4 FRBIAT(EGE),ER

BRELAT (B518) BRI B IR ERESE ¢

2018 2017
—EBE-NEFE| ZE—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®EF T
(a) Finance costs: (a) ﬂﬁﬁiﬂﬁ 1
Interest on borrowings: BERAE
- Bank loans (note 16(b)) —fﬁﬁﬁ (WT?16( ) 10,878 10,268
- Other loans and loans from - HihER JSU
controlling shareholder (note 16(b)) Hxiﬁ (511?16( )) 77,226 66,084
Interest rate swap MEER 2,775 -
Finance charges on obligations under Eﬂﬁ*ﬂ%%ﬂfZEﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ
finance leases (notes 16(b) and 22) (FtzE16(b) )2 22) 13,496 14,690
Interest on issuance of RITHEHZALEZERNE
bank accepted bills 395 495
Total interest expense on financial FEAREFABRZ
liabilities not at fair value through %HQ’EJEZW MEEHR
profit or loss 104,770 91,537
Loan arrangement and guarantee fees ERZHRERER
(note 16(b)) (Kt zE16(b)) 12,458 10,017
117,228 101,554
(b) Staff costs: (b) BERA:
Salaries, wages and other benefits %ﬁé TERHEMEBEF 788,657 775,155
Contributions to defined contribution EREMFCRAGTE 2
retirement plans (note 29) T X (FFFE29) 85,745 84,385
Termination benefits (note 23) BRKIEHE (FaE23) - 7,086
874,402 866,626
(c) Other items: (c) HiEAE :
Depreciation (note 9(a)) E (MEE9(a)) 195,645 187,614
Operating lease charges & L*ﬁ‘é EH
- minimum lease payments BRLBEEFK 556,388 491,227
Amortisation T%ﬁé
- land lease premium (note 9(a)) — T BEEX (HFEE9(a)) 6,295 6,293
- intangible assets (note 10) —-\mEERE (M&E10) 9,419 8,113
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE B2
— audit services — BT R 7 3,650 3,450
Donations B 14 11
Cost of inventories (note 13) FERA (KEE13) 8,339,802 7,918,689
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

REEBRERZAEN

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

5

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) RNEEEBERZHED:
represents:
2018 2017
—F-N\F| Z2—iF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
Current tax - PRC BHEA B 18 —
Provision for the year FEEE 61,367 53,657
Over-provision in respect of prior years TFEEBERE (2,735) (5,767)
58,632 47,890
Deferred tax EER IR
Origination and reversal of temporary EEXEREBERGERE
differences (note 24(b)) (KFzE24(b)) 7,228 (1,678)
65,860 46,212

Income tax is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate any
assessable profits in Hong Kong during the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT law”) of
the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC income tax at 25% (2017: 25%) on
their assessable profits as determined in accordance with
the CIT law.

Further, under the CIT law, 10% withholding tax is levied
on the foreign investor in respect of dividend distributions
arising from a foreign invested enterprise’s profit earned
after 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2018, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group had accumulated losses and
therefore no deferred tax liabilities were recognised in this
regard.

SR EERE R AR 2 RITRES
o

HRAD TR EKEQBAHREREE
EEEAERTER - HAAFER
KRB BRI GBAELBRE -

REASHERRBERRESE 2E
PIRER - AEEHRERBEHER
REERARHSEEEAMRES -

RIBPETEMSR L ([EMSH
D) REERPEAIL 2HE AT
BRI RIRDEMBRES
25% (ZZF—+F :25%) °

Lo RIEEMREBET - BIAER
EREREN-_ZENF-A—-A#
PR ELZ @ A B E B INMRE E 2k
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

REERBRZFEHR (&)

(b) BEEAES (BB BANRE

(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates: ABRERGFEZHERNOT :
2018 2017
ZE-NE| ZE—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR® T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBiAT (BB),aR (222,499) 225,252
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before LL25% 5T & 2 BRBE AT
taxation, calculated at 25% (B518) RABERFE
(2017: 25%) (note) (2 —+ 4 :25%) (KiE) (55,625) 56,313
Over-provision in prior years TFEEHBERE (2,735) (5,767)
Tax effect of non-deductible CIE! F?E‘iﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬂéz
impairment loss for goodwill HEEE 96,360 -
Tax effect of other non-deductible Hitt R fIBRBE R 2
expenses BMEEE 13,719 32,276
Tax effect of non-taxable income IERBIUWA 2T (5,235) (2,644)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised k¥ &% *Ri%}’éﬁ?ﬁz*ﬂi%w 44,914 22,312
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised Eﬁ1§¢ﬂiﬁ€ |2 EL At BB
temporary differences utilised =% Zﬁﬁ}%gv = (1,083) (13,784)
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised FRHIFERBERARBEEER 2
tax losses utilised MEEE (23,261) (28,135)
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised 32 EE*TJE A A Z
tax losses recognised BRge (1,194) (14,359)
Actual tax expense ERFEEAR 65,860 46,212

Note:

The PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%)

is used as the operations of the Group are substantially

based in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-S-N\F+-A=t-ALFE(BRIERBHA UARMTAER)
6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 EEME

RIBEE B D ERAGIZE383(1)IF KR (A ) (K
BE=AZER) RO E2HKEZES

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BN& T :
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2018: BE-Z—-N\F+-A=+—HLEE:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefit Share-
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus contributions  Sub-total  payments Total
AP 4 URH
BN RERSANE MEZRAL  EASHX Mt REEXA 48
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARET:
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEALE - 4,938 - 15 4,953 - 4,953
Mr. Li Wen Hai SEBLE - 5985 - 15 6,000 - 6,000
Mr. Narong Chearavanont HEMLE - 3,580 - - 3,580 - 3,580
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed RREAE(R-3-NE
(resigned on 28 February 2018) =R =1 \BEHK) - 3,490 - 1 3,491 - 3,491
Mr. Michael Ross BRERE - - - - - - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping RIEEE - - - - - - -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HRhEE - 791 - - 791 - 791
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont ~ H#{- %4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUEHFTES
directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit’t & 203 - - - 203 - 203
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara% & 203 - - 203 - 203
Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong ltthaporn Subhawong % & 203 - - 203 - 203
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech%: & 203 - - 203 - 203
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo L 203 - - 203 - 203
Total a5 1,015 18,784 31 19,830 - 19,830

C.P. Lotus Corporation [ M&s&E7EH R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

6 EEME (&)

BE-_Z—+tHF+-A=1+—HILEE:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefit
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonus contributions  Sub-total  payments Total
o BN P\
Ezhe  #ReAE RS Mt REEXA E
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETn AREBTR ARETR
Executive directors UrEs
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEALE - 5,053 - 16 5,069 - 5,069
Mr. Li Wen Hai g e - 6,003 - 16 6,019 - 6,019
Mr. Narong Chearavanont HAmEE - 3,598 - - 3,598 - 3,598
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed RESLE - 2,146 - 1 2,147 - 2,147
Mr. Michael Ross BFEEE - - - - - - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BOERE - - - - - - -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Hrkre - 809 - - 809 - 809
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont &34 - - - - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong % & - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUKHTEES
directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit’ & 208 - - - 208 - 208
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara% 208 - - - 208 - 208
Mr. ltthaporn Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong % & 208 - - - 208 - 208
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech% 4 208 - - - 208 - 208
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo ganss 208 - - - 208 - 208
Total &3 1,040 17,609 - 33 18,682 - 18,682

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no director waived
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2018 and

2017.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 7
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2017:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note
6. The emoluments in respect of the other one (2017: one)

REHNES

ERfuGsHMESS Oy (ZFT—+t
FoNf) RES H €S RM 6K
B-BRT2— U (Z2—tF:—f)EE

individual is as follows: ZETTHeHBOT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥ET T
Salaries and other emoluments FeREMME 5,161 4,919
Discretionary bonuses B 2 fE 4L - -
Share-based payments LU 0 BB X A - -
Retirement scheme contributions BREMHAR 71 66
5,232 4,985

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (a)

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is

based on the following data: TE

8 BR(BE) HEF
SREX(5R) uF

FREX (BR) IEFNETHER

2018 2017
— i Sia —Z2-tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®BTR AR¥T
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to FRAAIRREEEER
equity shareholders of the Company (E518) /& F (288,359) 179,040

C.P. Lotus Corporation [ M&s&E7EH R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

8 B (BB EF (H)

BE-Z-\S+ZA=+-HLEFE(BRBEHABI AARBTHEMN)

8 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(Continued)
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (Continued) (a) BREX(EBRE), SER (E)
The weighted average number of shares is calculated IEFHIRGHBEUATIERTE
based on the following data:
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BR+t=-ZA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F b Bl o3
Number of ordinary shares in issue B8IZ
EBRRE 11,019,072,390 | 11,019,072,390
Number of Series A convertible preference ERITZARYI TR
shares in issue BRERKRE 1,518,807,075 | 1,518,807,075
Number of Series B convertible preference 28T ZBASI TR
shares in issue BEBRRE 3,897,110,334 | 3,897,110,334

Number of Series C convertible preference

EBITZCRITRE

shares in issue BERRE 3,671,509,764 | 3,671,509,764
Number of Series D convertible preference B BT 2ZDAITRE

shares in issue BRBRBRE 2,211,382,609 | 2,211,382,609
Total Fok] 22,317,882,172 | 22,317,882,172

As set out in note 25(c), the holders of the convertible
preference shares are entitled to receive the same

dividends as the holders of ordinary shares.
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the
31 December 2018 and 2017 were the same

years ended
as the basic

(loss)/earnings per share, respectively, and there were no
dilutive potential ordinary or convertible preference shares

outstanding during the years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 9 ME -FERXRERAEE
AND LEASEHOLD LAND T i

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEZHER

Interests in

leasehold

land held for

own use

Furniture, Stores under

Leasehold fixtures and Motor under operating

Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles fit out Sub-total leases Total
EEREY
B #8 BAtH

g7  REXE Rikf RE RBRZER N BREE L3
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBO0D  RMBO0D  RMBIOO0
ARBTT  ARMTZ  ARMIR  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTZ  ARRAR

Cost: A

At 1 January 2017 W_E-tE-A-A 24304 1,743,383 709,12 2,754 87903 2,801,476 01082 3002518
Exchange adjustments EifE - - (174 (348) - (522) - (522)
Additions RE - 51,640 15,649 4,603 258,576 330,468 - 330,468
Transfer £y - 98,039 145,394 1453 (44,886) - - -
Disposals HE - (48,080) (36,416) 4,132) - (108528) - [108628)

At 31 December 2017 RoB-tE+ZA=1-8 234324 1,844982 813,565 28,330 101,593 3,022,794 201,042 3,223,836

At1 January 2018 R-E-NE-5-H 234,324 1,844,982 813,965 28,330 101,593 3,002,794 201,042 3,223,836
Exchange adjustments EfAE - - 119 25 - 344 - 344
Additions hE - 5,538 27,859 2,288 217,429 263,114 - 253,114
Transfer E1] - 148,591 153,899 1,988 (304,478) - - -
Disposals be -4y B9 (0T S ) T

At 31 December 2018 W-B-NE+ZR=1-8 234324 1,985,088 970,217 27816 14544 3,231,989 201,02 3433,031

Accumulated depreciation EHITERHESS
and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2017 R-E-tE-5-H 123,011 823,616 281,815 12,363 - 1,240,805 71978 1,312,783
Exchange adjustments BB - - (172) (307) - (479) - (479)
Charge for the year EERED 11,40 90,504 82,647 3,008 - 187,614 6,293 193,907
Witen beck on disposal ~ HE2 TR Some)  ®5 B2 ) B )
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZA=1-H 134,416 874,283 311,768 11,882 - 1,332,349 78,211 1,410,620
At1 January 2018 RZE-NE-B-H 134,416 874,283 311,768 11,882 - 1,332,349 78,211 1,410,620
Exchange adjustments EfaE - - 119 206 - 325 - 325
Charge for the year EERER 11,404 90,321 91,989 1,931 - 195,645 6,295 201,940
Witen beck on disposal &2 TR S S (19260 (4464 - 58 )
WODmbea  BTENEETASIR R0 M WS A - 0B W LS
Net book value: REE:

At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+ZR=1-A 88,504 1,031,941 585,601 18,261 14544 1,738,851 116,476 1,805,327

At 31 December 2017 RB-tEfz1-8 99,908 970,699 501,797 16,448 101,593 1,690,445 122, 1813216

C.P. Lotus Corporation [ M&s&E7EH R



For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)

(b) The analysis of net book value of properties is as

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

9 ME -EERXEBREE
T i ()

(b) MIRZEEEDHTMOT :

follows:
2018 2017
—E-NF —ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥ET T
In the PRC RHPER
— medium-term leases —HHRE 204,980 222 679
Representing: THIE
Buildings BF 88,504 99,908
Interests in leasehold land held for EEHECEALTH
own use under operating leases HEER 116,476 122,771
204,980 222,679

(c) Assets held under finance leases

At 31 December 2018, the net book value of buildings held
under finance leases of the Group was RMB76,853,000
(2017: RMB86,098,000). The leases do not include
contingent rentals. The buildings are situated in the PRC
and held under medium-term land use rights.

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(c) MEHEERAEE

iFFAREESE -
10 B EE

RZE-NFE+ZB=+—H K&
EREEEEFCREEAARK
76,853,000t (ZE—tF : ARY
86,098,0007t) ° WWHE W ~BFEH
AEL - BFUATE > WIAFHL

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AR®EF T
Cost: AR

At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HAR+=ZA=+—H 237,250 237,250

Accumulated amortisation and ZItEBHERRERSE

impairment losses:

At 1 January H—H—H 99,795 91,682
Charge for the year FERER 9,419 8,113
Impairment losses VERIERSE ] 16,102 -
At31December ~~  Rt=A=t—RA [ 125316| 99,795
Net book value: BRMEE 111,934 137,455
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

11

Intangible assets relate to operating lease agreements acquired
in the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and 2012. The fair
value on the favorable lease interest was determined based
on a valuation report prepared by independent third party
valuers and comparison of the market rental rates at the dates
of acquisition and the estimated present value of payments
due under the lease contracts entered into by the acquired
subsidiaries. The intangible assets are amortised using the
straight-line method over the remaining lease terms which vary
from 10 to 30 years.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Distribution
and store operating costs” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Impairment losses

As at 31 December 2018, due to the termination of a store
lease in Shanghai caused by the breach of the lease agreement
by the landlord, the intangible assets used by the store was
stated net of impairment losses of RMB16,102,000, to write
down the carrying amount of the assets in full. The impairment
losses were recognised in “other net loss” for the year.

0 BILEE ()

BREEER_ZEZNEFR=_Z--FI
BHEBARMEBE e BAERRER -
BANEHERS 2 AARERBIE=1h
ERRER 2 EERSEWBA 2mERES
LB K FTWIBH B A AT HES R RN
BB REMNERE - BREENER
ERGTHER (R10E30FT%) #H -

RERNZHEERBERGABEERALZ
[REEREREBRA] -

{8 &5 18

RZZB-NF+ZA=1t—0 BHXEE
A E W& AL LB H A — MU A L8R
WOEYN  ZEZEREEREBEASA
R ¥16,102,0007C LA 2 ZEHB AR A © AF
N2 REBECEIN AtEEEaE] -

GOODWILL 1158
2018 2017
—E-NF| ZE-iHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥ T
Cost: A
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—-HBE+TZAR=+—H 2,962,782 2,962,782
Accumulated impairment losses: EFREESR:
At 1 January R—B—H (308,530) (308,530)
Impairment losses WAEE B (385,438) -
At31December ~ RY¥=A=t—8H | (693,968)| (308,530)
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2,268,814 2,654,252

C.P. Lotus Corporation [ M&s&E7EH R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

11 GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the following three groups of CGUs,
identified according to region of operation of the Group:

11 &FE8 (&)

BERBZREEAEURENR

AEZIBEDIREBEASEEERHIER
LT =EARREELEN :

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —ZE—+tF

RMB’OO_O RMB’000

AR®T T AREET T

East China Region ERIE 2,141,409 2,526,847
South China Region EgihE 124,007 124,007
North China Region FEiliE 3,398 3,398
2,268,814 2,654,252

The impairment assessment was carried out by the Group’s
corporate finance team. The recoverable amount of each of
the above groups of CGUs is determined based on value in
use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those relating to the discount rate, long-term
growth rates, and the expected changes to gross margin and
store operating and administrative expenses.

These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a two-year period,
which are extrapolated up to the following eight years. In
calculating the recoverable amount in respect of the group of
CGUs of East China Region, using estimated growth rates of
0.0% to 3.0% per annum (2017: -0.1% to 3.0% per annum)
for the East China Region, the growth rates for South China
Region is 4.0% to 5.0% per annum (2017: 4.0% to 5.0% per
annum). The forecasts are extrapolated beyond ten years based
on estimated long-term growth rates of 2.0% (2017: 2.0%)
per annum. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-
term growth rates for the business in which the CGU operates.
The pre-tax discount rate of 13.5% (2017: 13.5%) used in the
projections reflects the current market assessment of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. Changes in
gross margin and store operating and administrative expenses
are based on historical results and expectations of future
market developments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

11 GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill (Continued)

Following an impairment review on the goodwill of the Group
in December 2018, an impairment loss of approximately
RMB385,438,000 with respect to the goodwill for the East
China Region was recognised due to adjustments made to
the future net cash flows forecast of the East China Region
to take into account the following developments during the
financial year: (i) the performance of the East China Region
for the first ten months in 2018 fell below the budget for
that period mainly due to intensifying competition, and (ii) a
lease agreement relating to the Tianshan store (the “Tianshan
Lease Agreement”) located within the East China Region was
effectively terminated due to a wrongful breach of agreement
by the landlord. The Tianshan Lease Agreement was suspended
from March 2014 when the Tianshan store was temporarily
returned to the landlord at the landlord’s request to facilitate
the re-development of the entire property, but the landlord
failed to return the leased premises to the Group according to
the schedule agreed by both parties. As a result, the Group has
also adjusted the calculations, including the exclusion of net
cash inflows from the Tianshan store, in assessing the future
net cash flows forecast of the East China Region.

In accordance with the Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36,
an impairment loss would need to be recognised for the CGU,
or group of CGUs, if the recoverable amount of the CGU, or
group of CGUs, is less than its carrying amount. Based on
the Group’s assessment, the recoverable amount with respect
to the relevant assets attributable to the East China Region
was approximately RMB2,755,322,000, which resulted in
an impairment loss of approximately RMB385,438,000, any
adverse change in the assumptions used in the calculation of
recoverable amount would result in further impairment losses.

No impairment losses of goodwill were recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2017 as the recoverable amounts of the
respective CGUs so determined were higher than their carrying
amounts.

11 FE (&)

BEHECReELBEURENR (H)

RZEBE-—NF+Zh XEEZEFER
WERANMHFEENUTERE : () ERXR
WEZF—N\F5+EANRBEENZE
BWHEE T E2HARBEZMNE - & (i)
NERMERXLUESENESEHSE (X
WiHERHZE ) REFTERBEMIER
It EMMERGERFRE R E @AM
HAE  IREERESEE  BRER
i & 2R B E5 18 40 A K #5385,438,000
e RILEERBREFTERR=-_Z—H
FZREEREREEET  UHMEH
BREZEYE  BEIRERBEFFE
HEEBREVERERNER - XEBRL
FRERMERFNIESRETE T LN
FE BEIBRXILUENRESRAHE -

RIEEEBSFEREIH MBESEEES
NRBEEELBMANTRESERNRE
REER BESESCENHREELS
NAEZHEAEEBERSE -RELEE
HEEt R EEREBREREN TR
B £ 3HA ARY2,755,322,0007T @ &
4+ 4 A R #385,438,0007T K R {E & 18
RETETRESERAZBREEATF
s BEHE-DRERSE-

BE-Z—tHF+-A=t+t—-HLEZHFE
W ARERREELBNAEE TR
EHERHKRAES  HEBERESE
ZHER o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-\S+ZA=+-HLEFE(BRBEHABI AARBTHEMN)

12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of the Group’s
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The Group’s effective interest in the
entities below are all held by subsidiaries of the Company. The
entities below are all companies established in the PRC with

12 B FER

UTHREBSTEXELAEEXE &
EFEBZAEENBRARER - AEHE
RUTREZBMERZIHEARDE 2K
BRRFAE - ATEEGARPERLZ

BREELQA -

limited liability.
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
A ERUDSARE 1N AEEENES
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\% 2t ZEBE-N\§ ZE-i%
% %
TRSNETEERTERLT USD25,000,000% 7t USD25,000,000% 7t 100 100
Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (noted) (KiE1)
AZZNETEEENARL T RMB A K #19,000,0005t RMBA K #19,000,0007 100 100
Xian Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (KiEF1)
BHZNEREHRETERAR USD5,000,000% 7t/ USD5,000,000% 7t/ 100 100
Zhengzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. USD4,922,924% Tt USD4,922,924% 1t
(note 1) (KiEF1)
BEESUEREHENERLT USD6,500,000% Tt USD6,500,000% ¢ 100 100
Qingdao Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Ff&E1)
ENZNETEHEETBRAA USD48,000,000% T USD48,000,000% T 100 100
Guangzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Ff&1)
WESNEREHBETERA A USD12,000,000% T USD12,000,0003 7t 100 100
Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 3) (Ki&F3)
BLUTESEEERAYNERRERAT RMBA K #3,000,000t  RMBA E#3,000,0007 100 100
Foshan Nanhai Hua Nan Tong Trading Development Co., (note 1) (K¥EF1)
Ltd.
EREFEBERREBRLA RMBA K %29,500,00070 RMBA K #29,500,0007 100 100
Guangdong Hua Nan Tong Trading Development Co., (note 1) (FfE1)
Ltd.
FESNELEERTERAT USD180,000,000£7T/  USD180,000,000% 7%/ 100 100
Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. USD137,200,000% it USD137,200,000% 7t
(note 1) (Ki&E1)
TERBENDLERLT RMB A K 25,000,000t RMBA K#25,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Changfa Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K&H1)
EERERTARLF RMBA E%10,000,000t RMBA K #10,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Yilian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Hf&E4)
LERERDERAF RMB A K #60,000,0007t RMBA K #60,000,0007C 100 100
Shanghai Cailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Ki5E4)
HRBEENERAA RMBAK#500,0000  RMBAK¥500,0007% 100 100
Nantong Tonglian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Ki5F4)
ELGERTERAT RMBA K #10,000,0007c RMBA K #10,000,0007T 100 100
Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (HfzF4)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

12 B2 R Em (F)

12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
KL St ke fRa AEBzENES
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\§ “Z-tFf ZZ-NF CZZ-tF
% %
LERERBDERLT RMBA K #13,500,0000 RMBA K ™®13,500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Yalian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K¥EF1)
TEEERTARLT RMBA K %13,500,0007c RMBA K#13,500,0007C 100 100
Shanghai Jialian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Ki&E1)
BT NEERERZABRAT RMBA £%8,949,000t RMBA K #8,949,0007¢ 100 100
Foshan C.P. Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (note 4,5) (KrE4 » 5)
NEBRAEERERLA USD16,800,000% it USD16,800,000% 7t 100 100
C. P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. (note 1,5) (Fr&E1 + 5)
LBERMABRAT RMBA K #1,000,000r  RMBA K 1,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. (note 2,5) (&2 + 5)
By EEEHETERDT RMBA K #14,500,0007t RMBA K#14,500,0007 100 100
Wuxi Ailian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K1)
AREBRTERAF RMBA E%14,500,0007t RMBA K #14,500,0007 100 100
Hefei Ailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K#5F1)
RONERTERAA RMBA K %14,500,00070 RMBA K #14,500,0007C 100 100
Changsha Chulian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Ki&E1)
BNEEEHETERAA RMBA K #6,000,000n  RMBA K ®6,000,0007 100 100
Xuzhou Yalian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Ki5k4)
HINEEEETARL RMB A K #10,000,0007t RMBA K #10,000,0007 100 100
Zhanjiang Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (HiEE4)
BN MEEEBTERLE RMBA R 3,000,007t/ RMBA R3,000,0007%/ 100 100
Guangzhou C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA K %07 RMBAR®07
(note 4) (Kizk4)
WESTRE NEER B AR T RMBA E%20,000,005%/ RMBA E#20,000,0003%/ 100 100
Shantou Jinping Dongxia C.P. Lotus RMBA K¥07 RMBAR %07
Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (K :F4)
WEHERL NEBTEBHAERA T RMB A R #3,000,000/ RMBA R *%3,000,0007t/ 100 100
Shantou Chaoyang Mianbei C.P. Lotus RMBA K %07 RMBAR %07
Supermarket Co., Ltd (note 4) (K zF4)
BT NEERRTARAT RMBA R #10,000,0007%/ RMBA R#10,000,0007%/ 100 100
Yangjiang C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd RMBA K %07 RMBAR¥07
(note 4) (Ki3k4)
LB NEERERANERAT RMBA R 3,500,007t/ RMBA R #3,500,0007%/ 100 100
Shantou C.P. Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. RMBA R %07 RMBAR#O0T
(note 4,5) (fff&t4 ~ 5)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12 B A AIRE= (&)
(Continued)
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
DNEER AR E & rEEZENER
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-N\§ “E-t§f ZE-NF ZEZ-F
% %
RO MEETBRAF RMB A K %3,000,0007t/ RMBA K #3,000,0007t/ 100 100
Changsha C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA R ¥07 RMBAR %07
(note 4) (FffF4)
Ko NEBTHARADF RMBA R %3,000,0007/ RMBA & #3,000,0007%/ 100 100
Yongzhou C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA X #07t RMBAR#07
(note 4) (Kzt4)
il IER NEERBHARAT RMBA R %10,000,0072/ RMBAR#10,000,007/ 100 100
Foshan Shunde C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA K#07t RMBAR %07
(note 4) (Ki5F4)
ROT MNEERERZABRAT RMBAK%700,0007/  RMBA K ¥700,0007t/ 100 100
Changsha C.P. Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. RMBA K %07 RMBAR#07T
(note 4, 5) (Kizt4 ~ 5)
X NEERBTEREALT RMBA R #%10,000,00073/ RMBA E%10,000,0007%/ 100 100
Xian C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA K %07 RMBA R0t
(note 4) (KizE4)
BNBEEEHETERAT RMB A K 6,000,000/ - 100 -
Xuzhou Shenglian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. RMBA K#07t
(note 4) (Ki5E4)
KNTEEE NEBHAERAT RMB A & #3,000,0007t/ - 100 -
Yongzhou Lingling C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA K %07
(note 4) (Ff&F4)
KM PEERBTERDF RMBA [ #3,000,0007c/ - 100 -
Qinzhou C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA K %07t
(note 4) (Ff&k4)
EIEBERMARE NEETL BN ERAA RMB A K #3,000,0007c/ - 100 -
Zhanjiang Economic and Technological Development RMBA K#07
Zone C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Ki5E4)
BIHIEE N R BT ARAT RMB A R %3,000,0007%/ - 100 -
Yangjiang Jiangchen C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA K %07
(note 4) (Ff&F4)
ENVHERE NEBHARAT RMB A & #3,000,0007%/ - 100 -
Changsha Yuelu C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA X#07
(note 4) (Kizk4)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

12 B2 R Em (F)

12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(1) These are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

(2) The equity interests of this company are held by individual
nominees on behalf of the Company. This company is domestic
enterprise in the PRC legally owned by PRC nationals. Pursuant
to the various agreements in place between the Group and
the nominees, the Group operates the business owned by this
nominee company and in return is entitled to all the profit or loss
from the operation of this nominee company. As the Group bears
the risks and rewards of its operation of this nominee company,
the directors of the Company, after taking legal advice, consider
that the Group has effective control over this enterprise. Therefore
the financial results and positions of the enterprise have been
consolidated into the Group since its dates of establishment.

(3) This is a Sino-foreign joint venture established in the PRC.

(4) These are domestic enterprises in the PRC. Xuzhou Shenglian
Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd., Yongzhou Lingling C.P.
Supermarket Co., Ltd., Qinzhou C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd.,
Zhanjiang Economic and Technological Development Zone C.P.
Supermarket Co., Ltd., Yangjiang Jiangchen C.P. Supermarket
Co., Ltd. and Changsha Yuelu C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd. are
newly established in the PRC in 2018.

(5) C.P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. is engaged in the
provision of management services to subsidiaries within the
Group. Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd., Foshan C.P.
Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd., Shantou C.P. Lotus
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. and Changsha C.P. Lotus
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. are engaged in the provision of
logistic services. All other companies listed above are involved in
the operation of hypermarket stores in the PRC.

B &E -

M
@

@)
(4)

(5)

HERNEBECE -

URABZBAEEHAZEREARER
AEE WARBPBBRAASEREZ
EPIZ'SiHl ¥ o RIEAEEENAEADE
ETiHE  ARELERNEQATE
ﬁz%ﬁ%&llﬂzﬁg SREQAFE LZF)’TE
EAREE - AR AEBREREES
RIELQ Tzﬂ&ﬁ&ﬂﬁzm EASA T%%iw%
BiEEERE  RAEAEEHEEARE %
RALE% - Bl o2 HEEER
MREERBZRILBGRERAERERA -

WARARPBERLZFIEERSE -

Et—r%EAEPIEZKi&m% B E Y
BHAERAR  kKMTERE M&ﬁmﬁ
RaF i)\)‘l‘l hegBIEBHARDE
IEBRMERE M%%?Eﬁi?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/&
7 BImIHE NEEIEBHARDE
RATERE NEBMARAAR-E
—)\iEAEP@ﬁJZ_LZ%ﬁ’D\T °

NEERCEETBEFRAT  AAEEE
TZMBARRMEERY - J:E%ﬁ%
mu*ﬁ_ﬁﬁ’&ﬁ CBILTH NREREEENAE
FRA®E] -~ JLSE™ M%ETEEEE aﬁlﬁﬁﬁ”&
7&{5\2 D NEERE JEU’!ETIZE’D\TT;‘&
EMRRTE - FEEE{‘@J:EIZ AHRH
BIA&S& REGBM TS

13 INVENTORIES 13 #&

All inventories as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are trading FER-Z-NER_FT—tF+-A
merchandise. The analysis of the amount of inventories St-RZFENREZHEMR BRAX

recognised as an expense is as follows: HeFEHBEIMAOT :
2018 2017
=F-N\F| Z2—iF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT| AR®T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFECZREE 8,327,148 7,903,494
Write-down of inventories FEZRE 12,654 15,195
8,339,802 7,918,689
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

14 €ER HMWEWRE

2018 2017
—EBE-NF| ZZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR®ET T
Non-current JE R B
Prepaid lease payments for premises FENYEEEE 6,804 10,303
Current RE
Trade receivables EIE R EE 82,589 80,333
Amounts due from related companies FE U AE B8 1 E FRIE
(note 30(b)) (Fft5E30(b)) 591,524 465,782
Value-added tax recoverable BERSFKNKE 125,924 114,908
Rental deposits HEZRS 131,576 125,547
Other debtors H {th & W K18 66,960 62,514
Prepaid lease payments for premises BENYEHEEE 4,089 4,099
Derivative financial assets (note 26(d)) PTEEMEE (ME26(d)) 7,098 -
1,009,760 853,183
Total #EEE 1,016,564 863,486

All of the trade and other receivables apart from rental
deposits of the Group amounting to RMB131,576,000 (2017:
RMB125,547,000) and prepayments for lease amounting to
RMB10,893,000 (2017: RMB14,402,000) are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year. Rental
deposits may be offset against future rentals due to landlords
of hypermarket premises by the Group in accordance with the
relevant lease agreements.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had a USD non-delivered
forward exchange contract with a notional amount of
USD139,770,000 (2017: USD139,770,000). At 31 December
2018, the fair value of the derivative financial assets in respect
of this forward exchange contract was RMB7,098,000 (2017:
derivative financial liabilities of RMB40,084,000(see note 17)).
The forward exchange contract will expire on 23 July 2019.
The fair value of the derivative financial instruments at the end
of the reporting period is determined based on the valuation
techniques disclosed in note 26(e).

Sales to retail customers are mainly paid for by cash or credit
cards. Credit terms of 30 to 90 days are offered to related
companies and corporate customers with ongoing relationship.
Further details of the Group’s credit policy are set out in note
26(a).
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BEEZRS ARE131,576,000T (=&
—+tF: AR#¥125,547,0007T) R FEHE
EE AR%10,893,000 T (ZE—tF:
AR ¥14,402,0007C0) 5 FREAREBE 2
EEREMEVRGEERR -—FARKE -
RIEAEBAERHZE  ~AEEAEBHmYWE
%%iﬁjﬂ%%ﬁ%#&ﬁﬁiﬁﬂim@ﬁmﬂ

RZEBE-NEFE+=ZA=+—H ' KE@EZ
ERNBEASRIARBPIERESYN B
K& E A E$£139,770,000T (ZE—+t
1 %£4139,770,0007T) - R=ZE— N\F
+ZA=+—HB  EREHEIONITE
EHMEENLAES ARKRY?,098,0007T
(ZZ2—tE TEEREENAIRES
AR #40,084,0007T (RFFEE17)) o Bb3=
TRPGHABNR-_ZE—hELtA=+=H
B - BERSHR  TEEMIAZLD
RABETIIRMFE26(e) TR E 2 AR MM
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ZEBECHETEURESHFEAEBR
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BRZEEEERARRTF - BEAKH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables due from third parties and related companies,
based on the invoice date (or date of revenue recognition, if
earlier) and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

14 €ER HMBEWRE (&)

REE=ERMEALR 2 EERBRIEN
BRRER G BEZAH (JABA
BABH FHRE) REEHRZIRER
ZHWT

2018 2017

—E-N\F| =ZT—LF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR®F

Within 30 days =+HR 177,916 177,742
31 to 60 days =+—HZAXTH 47,301 59,646
61 to 90 days At—HZATH 62,620 58,942
Over 90 days (note) #id L+ A (FEE) 301,786 148,059
589,623 444,389

Note: Subsequent to 31 December 2018, the Group has
received RMB315,000,000 (2017: RMB158,850,000)
trade receivables due from related companies, of which
RMB14,679,000 belonged to the 61 to 90 days category and
RMB300,321,000 belonged to the over 90 days category in
the above ageing analysis.

Included in the Group’s above trade receivables are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of RMB302,609,000 (2017:
RMB149,665,000) which are past due at the reporting date with
ageing analysis as follows:

Mz R=ZZ—-N\FE+=-A=+—H%& K&
ECWEERCECEERKRTESA
R #315,000,000T (=2 —+F : AR
#%158,850,0007T) * E BRI EIRER
DR ART—FBAT B ZREERIRE
A AR14,679,000T RBBATHZ
IRER BRI Z B 5 A R#300,321,000 JT °

AEBE LM cEERRZKBEBREEC 8BS
FEUFEES £ A R#302,609,0007T (=&
—+t&F : AR#¥149,665,0007T) @ R
HZREDWWT :

2018 2017
—E-N\FE| Z2-iF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR| AR®T

Overdue ping=t
Within 30 days =+HR 101,047 69,783
31 to 60 days =+—HZAXTH 85,199 57,381
61 to 90 days At—HZEATH 70,956 21,689
Over 90 days BEA+H 45,407 812
302,609 149,665

The directors consider no impairment provision is required in
respect of the above trade receivables as they are due from
either related companies controlled by the ultimate controlling
shareholder or counterparties that have a good track record

with the Group.

ESRREFY S ERWHAT R
ERE AUSBEDERRERRRE
HeERCEREAEEA R FEELHE
2R 5T 2 BWFIE °

C.P. Lotus Corporation [ M&s&E7EH R



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE
g

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

15 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 15 B FRITHEN
At 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank deposits of R-ZE—NE+-A=+—8 ' &&EH
RMB31,313,000 (2017: RMB32,852,000) were pledged to ZIRITEARAAR®S1,313,0007t (==&
banks as guarantees for the issuance of bank accepted bills for —tF : AR #¥32,852,0007t) 2K HFF
payments to suppliers. RITIER M ERE (R 3 HIRIT AR L E
EZ2ER-
In addition, at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank deposits of W RZFE-NE+ZA=+—H" ' A
RMB30,609,000 (2017: RMB27,013,000) were pledged to banks R #30,609,000t (ZE—tF : AR
for the issuance of letters of guarantee to landlords of certain 27,013,0007t) 2 A EBRTFERES K #H
subsidiaries. FRITUBETHBEATNZEREHIER
PR o
16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 BERBEEER
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BEeRBESEERIE:
2018 2017
—B-NF| ZE-—iF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR| AR®BTR

Cash at bank and in hand and cash and REEHERRBRRES

cash equivalents in the consolidated HERBEWEZ

statement of financial position and RITEFRREEHE

consolidated cash flow statement HERBEEEE 461,406 166,115
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounting to AEBEMBECEHSRBESZHEAAR
RMB13,443,000 (2017: RMB13,722,000) are non-interest #£13,443,000t (ZZE—tHF:  AR¥
bearing. 13,722,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 REeRREEH(EA)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEEXEKEELENEBEHE
activities
Loans from Derivative
Bank Other  controlling Finance financial
loans loans shareholder leases instruments Total
RITEH EtER ERRRER  MERE fTEemIE ax

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR ARBTR AR%TR ARETR AR%TR
(Note 19) (Note 21) (Note 20) (Note 22) (Notes 14
and 17)
GEL) (Frso1)  (W&e0)  (W&E22) (MEE14R17)

At 1 January 2018 RZE-NE-F-H 229,946 43,402 913,009 142,439 40,084 1,368,880

Changes from financing cash ~BEBREHEELD

flows
Proceeds from bank loans BITEHZHE 432,102 - - - - 432,102
Proceeds from shareholder loans RREH 2 FE - - 80,185 - - 80,185
Repayment of bank loans ROTERZER (350,453) - - - - (350,453)
Repayment of shareholder loans REEH 2B - - (80,110) - - (80,110)
Capital element of finance lease X RMERER S

rentals paid 2R A - - - (12,909) - (12,909)
Interest element of finance lease XA BEHRERE

rentals paid ZHEHH - - - (13,496) - (13,496)
Interest paid AL (10,878) (1,712) (75,514) - - (88,104)
Loan arrangement and guarantee X EHZHRERER

fee paid - - (16,176) (220) - (16,39)
Cash paid on settlement of the ~ EHNEHEANLER

forward foreign exchange frxfizie

contracts - - - - (28,993) (28,993)
Total changes from financing cash BEBEHE

flows LEHAR 70,771 (1,712) (91,615) (26,625) (28,993) (78,174)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 2,092 35,819 - - 37,911
Other changes: Hit 25
Finance charges on obligations ~BEHREETZMEER

under finance leases (note 4(a))  (MizE4(a)) - - - 13,496 - 13,496
Interest expenses (note 4(a)) IS (HrEEa(a) 10,878 1,712 75,514 - - 88,104
Loan arrangement and guarantee EHZHRERER

fees (note 4(a)) (H&F4(a) - - 12,238 220 - 12,458
Gain on the interest rate swap ~ FBEHALH 2 ER

contracts - - - - 2,775 2,775
Loss on the forward foreign BHNERERNZER

exchange contracts - - - - (20,940) (20,940)
Total other changes HthgHa% 10,878 1,712 87,752 13,716 (18,165) 95,893
At 31 December 2018 RIE-NE+ZA=+-H 311,595 45,494 944,965 129,530 (7,074) 1,424,510
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

16 RERBEEHE(R)

BE-Z-N\E+-A=+-HLFE(RIEHBIN UAR¥ETHEN)
16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

(b) BMEXBELENEBEYH R (H)

Loans from Derivative
Bank Other  controlling Finance financial
loans loans shareholder leases instruments Total
RTER  EEX 2RRREXR  MEHE TEERIA ag
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR
(Note 19) (Note 21) (Note 20) (Note 22) (Notes 14
and 17)
(MzE19) (Mat21)  (KiEEe0)  (Mf&E22) (KiEE14R17)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-tF-F-H 204,900 46,446 971,877 153,784 (41,239) 1,335,768
Changes from financing cash ~ BEREHEELD
flows
Proceeds from bank loans BITEHZHE 329,549 - - - - 329,549
Repayment of bank loans RITERZEN (304,503) - - - - (304,503)
Capital element of finance lease A REHRERE
rentals paid ZREHH - - - (11,345) - (11,345)
Interest element of finance lease X BERERE
rentals paid ZRE R4 - - - (14,690) - (14,690)
Other borrowing costs paid IHEMERER (12,652) (1,268) (64,816) - - (78,736)
Loan arrangement and guarantee XA EFZHERERER
fees paid - - (8,128) - - (8,128)
Cash paid on settlement of the ~ EENEHERNEER
forward foreign exchange FixfeRe
contracts - - - - (22,355) (22,355)
Total changes from financing cash BEREHE
flows LEHAR 12,394 (1,268) (72,944) (26,035) (22,355) (110,208)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - (3,044) (58,868) - - (61,912)
Other changes: Hth#8
Finance charges on obligations ~BEREEXZBEER
under finance leases (note 4(@))  (Miz4(a)) - - - 14,690 - 14,690
Interest expenses (note 4(a)) RIS (Frz4(a) 10,268 1,268 64,816 - - 76,352
Loan arrangement and guarantee X EFZHRERER
fees (note 4(a)) GEZE) 1,889 - 8,128 - - 10,017
Interest on issurance of bank ROBEZALEERE
accepted bills (note 4(a)) (H&F4(a) 495 - - - - 495
Loss on the forward foreign ERNERERNZER
exchange contracts - - - - 103,678 103,678
Total other changes HtgBes 12,652 1,268 72,944 14,690 103,678 205,232
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tF+ZF=1t-H 229,946 43,402 913,009 142,439 40,084 1,368,880
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

17 €ERHEMENRE

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
I AY —E-N\E —E—tF
+t=B=+—H —HA—H —RA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBETT ARBTR
Notes payable e ZIE 93,610 97,668 97,668
Trade creditors 0% B A 5B 2,677,113 2,209,069 2,209,069
Advance receipts from customers TR F 27 E
(note 18) (HIEE18) - - 396,141
Construction costs payable TIREREMNRIE 238,985 266,881 266,881
Other creditors and accrued charges H & {3 7% 18 [ FE 1 & F 657,526 658,895 604,255
Amounts due to related companies P18 B8 b 5K 18
(note 30(b)) (M EE30(b)) 188,867 171,903 171,903
Derivative financial liabilities TTEERER
(notes 14, 26(c) and (d)) (FFzE14 ~ 26(c) R (d)) 24 40,084 40,084
3,856,125 3,444,500 3,786,001
Advance receipts from customers mainly represented the BREFZREIZRAEANAER L
unutilised balance of prepaid cards sold by the Group. As EZEMT - HRRATEYHREEN
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, these balances are 155 0 WERBROBHSNEELE
classified as contract liabilities and are shown as a separate I 2HREEMERRERE (HEE1e) ©
Ii?e))on the consolidated statement of financial position (note
1(e)).
As 31 December 2018, the Group had an interest rate swap BE-Z-_N\FtZB=1t—H ' x&E
contract with a notional amount of USD139,770,000 (2017: E-HEHEHEAZ£139,770,0007THY
nil). As 31 December 2018, the fair value of derivate financial AREPEN (ZZT—LF  F) RN
liabilities in respect of this interest rate swap contact was TN\FTZA=+—H ZHAREHS
RMB24,000 (2017: nil). The interest rate swap will expire on 24 NNTTEEZRMEBBENAREERARE
December 2020. 24,0007t (ZF—tF : &) o JLFIRSH
H%E,%"Jﬂ%m:'gigi‘l'Zﬂ —+mAz
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FEEEBEREMENRBREHN —FRE
within one year. = e
The above balances with related parties are unsecured, non- LXJ:FEEEE*EEE)\iﬁEE z SRR A IR
interest bearing and repayable on demand. BTHEREREREE -
Included in the Group’s trade and other payables are trade AEEEBERHMBENRBRELER
creditors and notes payable of RMB2,770,723,000 (2017: HRIER B RIE A R¥2,770,723,0007T
RMB2,306,737,000) with the following ageing analysis, based (ZZ2—+ % : AR®2,306,737,0007T)
on the invoice date as at the end of the reporting period: RBEPRZRBRBEZZAMONAOT
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREEFT T
Uninvoiced purchases AEEBECRE 943,246 877,391
Within 30 days =+HR 1,382,145 1,073,575
31 to 60 days =+—Zx+H 143,936 180,619
61 to 90 days ANTt—ZhT+H 53,952 32,394
More than 90 days H#id i+ A 247,444 142,758
2,770,723 2,306,737
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)
18 ENERE

18 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

31 December 1 January 31 December

2018 2018 2017

—E-N\F —E-N\F —E—+tF

+=ZA=+—-H —A—-8B +tZA=+-—H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETR ARET

Advance receipts from customers BWERFzHIE 357,819 341,501 -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January
2018.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, sales of prepaid cards
previously included as “Advance receipts from customers”
under “Trade and other payables” (note 17) were reclassified to
contract liabilities.

Revenue is recognised when customers accept the products,
so revenue from prepaid cards is recognised when the prepaid
cards are redeemed by customers or when the likelihood
of future utilisation can be determined with sufficiently high
degree of probability as being remote. Based on recent trends

21»‘%.5?%%?4‘%?/5&%0\?5%?%57}
BRELEDE155E YR —F—-N\F—A
— BRABBMAERR -

RWEBMBMEERFE155REK - AR
BEIEEREMEBMRE] (MHZE17)T
MIFEKREF ZRBEINENFHERECE
HOBERANEE-

WAEZEFEZERKER Bt BY
THWRALERF RRFEN R EARKF A
MARMEEEREREHEMNHRIGHE
W RBMHEF ARENFNEE - &
ARBONENFOSEBER-—FAR

in redemption by customers of the prepaid cards, it is expected o
that most of the prepaid cards will be redeemed within one year
from purchase.

Movements in contract liabilities: EHEBEZEEH
2018
=t Y-
RMB’000
AR¥T
Balance at 1 January W—B—H#&& 341,501
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of BEAFEBINSHNEERER
recognising revenue that was included in the RBABHENEBRD
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (151,890)
Increase in contract liabilities excluding amounts é‘fé’ﬂ:ﬁﬁﬂa‘bﬂt’ TEEFER
recognised as revenue during the year B’ ZWARIE 168,208
Balance at 31 December R+ZRA=+—H%& 357,819

BREMBEBEANFWRESN  AEE

Except for the disclosures above related to redemptions of
prepaid cards, the Group applies the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 for other sales contracts and
does not disclose information about remaining performance
obligations that have original expected duration of one year or
less.
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19 BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, all the bank loans were
unsecured and repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has drawn down bank
loans of RMB311,595,000 (2017: RMB229,946,000), bearing
interest at six-month rate of People’s Bank of China (“PBOC
Rate”) multiplied by 1.20, being 5.22% per annum (2017: six-
month PBOC Rate multiplied by 1.20, being 5.22% per annum)
or bearing fixed interest at 4.79% to 5.31% per annum (2017:
4.70% to 5.22% per annum).

20 LOANS FROM CONTROLLING

21

SHAREHOLDER

At 31 December 2018, the Group has borrowed floating rate
loans of USD139,770,000 (equivalent to RMB958,356,000)
(2017: USD139,770,000 (equivalent to RMB913,009,000)) from
its controlling shareholder, CPH, bearing interest at three-
month London Interbank Offered Rate(“LIBOR”) plus 4.40%
to 5.65% per annum, being 7.21% per annum (2017: three-
month LIBOR plus 4.4% to 5.65% per annum being 6.02% per
annum). The amount of loans from controlling shareholders
was presented after being offset by an unamortised loan
arrangement fee amounting to RMB13,391,000 (2017: nil).
In addition, the Group still has unused loan facility from
the controlling shareholder amounting to USD48,000,000
(equivalent to RMB329,433,000), which will expire in December
2020. The loans from the controlling shareholder are unsecured
and repayable in December 2020.

OTHER LOANS

At 31 December 2018, other loans were repayable as follows:

19

20

21 £

R 1T E ™
B - FTERITER P;E?EETEF&EA ﬁmf&%

RZE-NEFE+ZA=+—H KEECE
REURITTERAM AKRES311,595,0007T (=
T—tF HYARYE229,946, 0007T) - &
FI=BAELDEARESFIE (THEA
EERITHZR]) FL1.20 - EIFERIZE5.22%
(ZEBE—+tF FANEAEREAFHRARR
ﬁﬂ%ﬁmzo B R R5.22% ) 55 &
EERMBNFL479%E5.31% (ZF—+
FEFENFA70%E5.22%) ©

BAERRRER

HR

AR
£1

—-NE+=ZB=+—H
42 R IR RCPHIR #1953
5 3% 4€139,770,0007T
958,356,0007t) (==&
139,770,000 @ #H %
,0090007‘:) =B mZ
R E ((mBBTEERED
%;.;565%.?|‘§" B & F 2
—t & ﬂEIH’r“&fEhH%%ﬁ
DE*U7440%1565%’EI1$3FU?
%) ° FEm BERERBEIKER
HE F ﬁﬁtﬁﬁﬁ%k&%ssm 000
(—=_ tﬁ )RS EE o It ZIKE
BHRERAER  REERRRHER
‘ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁw,oooooo;‘c(mf—vxﬁﬁ%
329,433,0007T) ' ¥R-ZE-ZEF+Z ﬁ
BH o ERBRRERBEIEARNC
—EF+ZAFE-
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R=ZB-N\E+=B=+-8 Htt&H
ZEREMMT

2018 2017
—B-NF| ZE—iF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT T
Within 1 year —FR - 43,402
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFER 45,494 -
45,494 43,402
At 31 December 2018, third-party loans of USD6,656,000 m:g—)\iﬁ- B=+—H BX%
(equivalent to RMB45,494,000) (2017: USD6,656,000 =H 2B A E$6,656,0007T (FHER
(equivalent to RMB43,402,000)) are unsecured and bear interest AE¥45 494, 00075) (ZE—+tF =%
at three-month LIBOR plus 1.5% per annum (2017: three-month 6,656,000 (R A R %43 3,402,000
LIBOR plus 1.5%). Other loans are repayable in ‘December 70)) MWK - =188 mBUR1T R ER
2020. BEMERE1.50% (Z2—tF  =@A
RS IR 1T F 47 S 01.50% ) © tt%%z

FERR-ZE-_ZF+-AZH
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22 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 22 miEfHES T

At 31 December 2018, the Group had obligations under finance

leases repayable as follows:

ENmEEEEETOT :

RZE-NEFE+ZA=+—H ' KEHEZ

2018 2017
—E-N\§ el g3

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEHEE REHEE REHEE REHEE
NRRE HREHE HRAE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%®TrR| ARBTR AR¥T:R
Within 1 year —£R 14,243 26,405 12,909 26,405
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREWMER 16,156 26,832 14,243 26,405
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRFR 60,983 82,079 54,495 81,258
After 5 years HEE 38,148 41,292 60,792 68,945
_________________________________________________________________ 15,287 150,203 ) 129530 176,608
129,530 176,608 142,439 203,013
Less: Total future interest expenses I : KR A S5 % & (47,078) (60,574)
Present value of lease obligations HEER-BRE 129,530 142,439
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23 &
BENESHAEESNR L BERE TMH
FEERA - RS TH/EEE RIEFHEE
ZHEBRAMEHRBEE <G - BEZE

23 PROVISIONS

Provisions have been made for the directors’ best estimate
of the expected costs associated with terminations benefits,
disputes with certain suppliers, cancellation of certain

store opening projects and store closures. Provisions are AT
summarised as follows:
Termination Supplier
benefits claims Others Total
BNRLFEE HESRE Hit IR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT AR®BTR AR%BTxR
At 1 January 2017 R-Z—t&E—-A—H 14,463 7,249 6,357 28,069
Provision incurred/(reversed) BB EE,/ (E#H) 7,086 2,393 (4,520) 4,959
Provision utilised BE2ER (20,999) (2,214) (1,837) (25,050)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+t&
+=ZBA=+-H 550 7,428 - 7,978
At 1 January 2018 R=-Z-NE—-HA—H 550 7,428 - 7,978
Provision incurred/(reversed) B#zE4+ /(EH) - 4,004 225 4,229
Provision utilised BEzEA (550) (4,137) (225) (4,912)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+=ZA=+-H - 7,295 - 7,295

The provision balance at 31 December 2018 is expected to be
utilised within one year.

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REZB-NF+ZA=+—-BzRBEHRE
FEHRER—FRER -

24 MEMBRRFERAZ
8
GEMBEMRAFERA 2 NEPHET :

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a)
financial position represents:

2018 2017

—E-N\E —ZE—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR®ET T

Balance at the beginning of the year FEBUEER 27,237 17,823
Over-provision in respect of prior years T FEE B E (2,735) (5,767)
Provision for PRC income tax for the year & E & &1 B Ffr 15 % 8 5 61,367 53,657
PRC income tax paid 2P EHIE (61,628) (38,476)
24,241 27,037
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

24 MEMBMRRBERAZ

Frig®i (&)

(b) ERRBZELEHRBEERERE

RENEBRBNGS M BARRERZ
EEBHEE(BE) 2BEHH

position and the movements during the year are as follows: REESNT :
Interests in
leasehold
land held for
own use
Property under
plant and operating Intangible
Tax losses equipment leases assets Others Total
EEREY
g RBE BRLH
REFE kR% BERR BYEE Hep ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARMTR  AR¥TR  ARMTR  AR¥TR  AR%TR
Deferred tax arising from: BEHEELR:
At 1 January 2017 RZE-tF-A-A 15,629 4708 (8,417) (36,392) 23217 (1,195)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (51%) /3t AE 1B
(note 5(a)) (FEE5(0)) (1,270) (382) 942 2,030 358 1,678
At 31 December 2017 RoB-t%
TZA=1-H 14,359 4,326 (7,475) (34,362) 23,635 483
At 1 January 2018 R=E-NE-A-A 14,359 4,326 (7,475) (34,362) 23,635 483
(Charged)/credited to profitor  (31%) /3t AZ8%
loss (note 5(a)) GEEE) (10,549) (312) 942 6,379 (3,688) (7,228)
At 31 December 2018 RZF-NE
tZE=1-H 3,810 4,014 6,533) (27,983) 19,947 (6,745)
An analysis of the net deferred tax assets and liabilities is EEBRBEENEBEFH 2OMUOT :
set out as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR®T T
Net deferred tax assets EEREEEFE 19,757 34,972
Net deferred tax liabilities EEMBEEFEE (26,502) (34,489)
(6,745) 483
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the items below as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which these items can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.

24 MEMBMRRBERAZ
% (&)

(c) RERZELERBREE

L3R B AR 2R RE EE B i
AER - BR AT REESHENE R
ERE RO ARKHE ERER K
RERBLZIEF o

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR| AR®BTR

Tax losses HIEEE 583,263 602,765
Deductible temporary differences AN ERFEE 218,157 222,488
801,420 825,253

Excluding the tax losses of the Company which do not
expire, the tax losses of its subsidiaries established in the
mainland China can be carried forward up to five years
from the year in which the loss originated, and will expire
in the following years:

BRAQNBHBEBERBINHAN  HE
BEINEREELEFEEZURAFRMRE
Ao ERTHFREE :

2018 2017
—E-N\F| ZE-+H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR| AR®TRT

2018 —E-N\F - 180,456
2019 —E-NEF 122,708 123,700
2020 —EZEHE 100,283 116,677
2021 —E—F 63,646 63,646
2022 —E== 86,531 89,246
2023 e 179,656 -

552,824 573,725
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Movement in components of equity

25

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

B EEERE
(a) MEBABHZ2D

REE 2 ARG R K AR5 K
MY R R A BR 2 I AVFAES - BRAR
ERBZHEHR - AP ZEHENF
BARSBDFENEFR2EBFER
I

Share Exchange Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
17 % B EXRE REEF ok

(Note (d)) (Note (d)) (Note (b))

(P #E(a)) (B 5 (a)) (M (b))
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TR AR¥Trn AR%®Tx
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE-tF&—-H—-H 1,933,161 8,051 161,948 2,103,160
Loss for the year FEBE - - (113,946) (113,946)
Other comprehensive income  Hfti2EE - (160,638) - (160,638)

Total comprehensive FEXEURAE
_Income for the year ... (160,638  (113,946)  (274,589)
At31December207 =~~~ MZB-tFT-A=f-H 1933161 (152587) .. 48,002 1,828,576
At 1 January 2018 R-E-N\E-F-H 1,933,161 (152,587) 48,002 1,828,576
Loss for the year FEFR - - (459,593) (459,593)
Other comprehensive income EH 2 EH K E - 90,758 - 90,758
Total comprehensive FEZHKNRLE
_Incomefortheyear .. T 90,758 (459,593 (368,835)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-NE+=ZA=1+-8H 1,933,161 (61,829) (411,591) 1,459,741
(b) Dividends (b) BRE

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the reporting date.
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 RA& - EERRE (E)
(Continued)

(c) Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREBHITRA

2018 and 2017
“E-N\FRZZE-tF

No. of shares

% &
('000) RMB’000
(+) ARET T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares at par value of HK$0.02 #SREE0.02B T2 EEBR
each 34,000,000 680,000

Series A convertible preference shares SREE0.028 T2
at par value of HK$0.02 each ARG TR REER 2,000,000 40,000

Series B convertible preference shares S REE0.02/8 T2
at par value of HK$0.02 each B&RJI AT IR 8 £ IR 4,000,000 80,000

Series C convertible preference shares SREE0.02/8B T2
at par value of HK$0.02 each CRIITMIBRELER 4,500,000 90,000

Series D convertible preference shares &R E{E0.0278 T2
at par value of HK$0.02 each DR A IR B £ R 2,500,000 50,000

2018 and 2017
—E-N\ER=F—tF
No. of shares

i &
(’000) RMB’000
() AR¥ET T
Issued and fully paid: BERITRARE:
Ordinary shares ZER 11,019,072,390 215,159
Convertible preference shares ]2 IR B IR 11,298,809,782 190,567
22,317,882,172 405,726
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TEREEAEZEERRAESERKE
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to ZREAGARNATBREREEEER
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. —REE -FIBEZSERUARAT ZF
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the BREEZEREM -
Company’s residual assets.
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the total convertible RZEBE-NHFER=-DZ -+t F
preference shares in issue include 1,518,807,075 Series +=-ZB=+—HH XAQFzBE B8
A convertible preference shares, 3,897,110,334 Series B TOBRBRELEREZE S A EIE
convertible preference shares, 3,671,509,764 Series C 1,518,807,075RAZ B A 2 Ik B &
convertible preference shares and 2,211,382,609 Series D %~ 3,897,110,334RBZA 5| AJ 12 IR (&
convertible preference shares, respectively. %Ik~ 3,671,509,76408C% %l 7] #&

B8 55 PR 2,211,382,60988 D% %l
BB ELR -
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

All the convertible preference shares are non-voting
shares. The holders of these shares are entitled to receive
the same dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. In
addition, the holders of these shares have the right to
convert any preference shares into the Company’s ordinary
shares at any time at the conversion price at the rate of 1
to 1 each subject to the minimum public float requirement
as set out under the Listing Rules being maintained.
Adjustments to the conversion price are only made upon
dilutive and other events which are related to the Company
issuing new shares or convertible debts.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
share premium is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

(i)  Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the difference
between the Group’s share of the fair value of the
associate’s net assets and the Group’s interest
in associate at the date the associate became a
subsidiary of the Group.

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of entities outside the PRC. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(x).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was HK$1,682,699,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,459,741,000) (2017: HK$2,226,537,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,828,576,000)) as computed in accordance with
the Company Law of the Cayman Islands.

Annual Report 2018 & #&

25 AR - EERBRE (8)

(c) EERE#HITRA (H)

FMETBRRELIRDITZERERE
Z IR o M£&ﬁz%ﬁk;ﬁAa
SRR o

%‘M%%@Z%ﬁAﬂEﬁMEﬁ
RFR LA IR E LB 181 L RE BT
MELERARATE ﬁ&Z%ﬂ

BREFE AUWEUERE AR |

ANS LT RAERREARE

zﬁmoﬂﬁﬁzﬂEA@F%E&
HiBEARDN T BTHBRR AT RRER

ZEBIE o

(d) #EZHEEREN
(i) KRz E

BRI RERZERE
%Z’A\ E1b7

RBASHS 2 LDEE  RIDE
DR T AR B ZRER - MER
ERWEZDIKREE » RDFHE
BRENEEEEEXEBMEE 2

BEaD

F|HEE -

(i) Ef5fFE

B R EIIRE
2 — %W%QTE

FW““TWEZ%E@%
ERASENZBE QR 2ER

EH o
(iii) [(E S FE

ERRBESmEEREREL
S SRR 2 B ISR R A
ECERERE - FBERBEHIIRN

ME1)ZETRRERE -

(e) RE27 KM

RZE-NFE+ZA=+—
BHEEBEZQATETE
AHIRKFAIIRRE
1,682,699,00038 T (HHZ
1,459,741,0007T) (=
2,226,537,0005% 7T (
1,828,576,0007T)) °

2RASE

Qjmﬁﬁi



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R R B R

™

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(f)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can provide returns for equity holders
and benefits for other stakeholders and secure access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity holder’s return that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions. The Group also monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio which is calculated by
dividing loans from controlling shareholder, bank loans and
other loans by total equity.

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management monitors the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk in respect of trade receivables is limited as the
balances mainly arise from credit card sales. Credit terms
of 30 to 90 days are offered to corporate customers with
ongoing relationship. The Group grants 90 days to WSL
and its related entities for store merchandise sales to
them.

25 AR - EERBRE (8)

()

EXER

AEBRERERNZBNTIREARE
BEBUSELCSEELSE RN
HEAEBRREHERRBEMEF
HEARZALHREE  WHER—
BEEEARE -

FEEEERERHEREBETR
AMERE  LEBRSRREFEERT
B zRSEEKFEBRENE
AR 7 PR B9 4 R AR FE 2 B NS
> WHEREBRRENECHERLE
BEHAR - AEETUERHEERF
Ee= (BRI RER  RITERR
HitEMRBRURERTE) FRERE
BERZEE

26 cREAMEERAAE

AEEEFXERBEBETLREM RBE
T FERISIERE -

G EANE 2 L B K A SR R AN 2 B
BREREERRREMNUEELS AR
BEINWT -

(a)

1= AR B
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As set out in note 30(b), the Group had receivables due
from WSL and its related entities and other subsidiaries
and associates of Charoen Pokphand Group Company
Limited (“CPG”), the ultimate holding company, amounting
to approximately RMB591.5 million (2017: RMB465.8
million) as at 31 December 2018, which represents
approximately 58.2% (2017: 53.9%) of the Group’s total
trade and other receivables. Given CPG is the Company’s
ultimate holding company, the directors consider that
these amounts are fully recoverable.

Except for the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk on trade and other
receivables. Cash and deposits are placed with banks
which the directors consider have sound credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement
of financial position. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations
and obtain adequate finance from external parties or its
ultimate holding company to meet its debt obligations and
committed future capital expenditures as and when they
fall due.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB1,723.2 million (2017:
RMB2,796.6 million).

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have
considered the cash flow forecast of the Group for the
twelve months ending 31 December 2019, which was
prepared based on historical cash requirements of the
Group which may impact the operations of the Group
during the next twelve-month period. The directors are of
the opinion that the assumptions which are included in the
cash flow forecast are reasonable. However, as with all
assumptions in regard to future events, these are subject
to inherent limitations and uncertainties and some or all of
these assumptions may not be realised.

Based on the cash flow forecast prepared and unused
shareholder loan facilities on hand(note 1(b)), the directors
have determined that adequate liquidity exists to finance
the working capital and capital expenditure requirements
of the Group for the forthcoming year.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 26 TRIEREER A AE(R)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b)

REBESERE (&)

The following are the contractual maturities of financial
liabilities, including estimated interest payments and
excluding the impact of netting agreements:

UTHERaE s ZOMR - BF G
ARENRRMBREE R 2R

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ZREERRERL
More than ~ More than
Within  1yearbut 2 years but
1yearor lessthan  lessthan More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
-Epg  -FRE  WERE
2EH MER IER L% g BHEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR%Tn ARETn ARETR AR¥Trn ARETx
31 December 2018 ZB-\f+-A=1-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ ¥{i£IEz¢MEE
Bank loans RITEH (324,296) - - - (324,206) 311,595
Loans from controlling shareholder B ERRREFH (62,062) (1,027,327) - - (1,089,389 944,965
Other loans HiER (1,14)  (46,827) - - (47,968) 45,494
Notes payable, creditors and accrued A Z1 + ERHER
charges EARHER (3,667,234) - - - (3,667,234) 3,667,234
Amounts due to related companies BT B ¥HUE (188,367) - - - (188,867) 188,867
Obligations under finance leases HEREER (26,405) (26,832 (82,079  (41,292)  (176,608) 129,530
(4,270,005) (1,100,986 (82,079) (41,292) (5,494,362) 5,287,685
Derivative financial liabilities fiEIAvEREE
Derivative financial liabilities fTETAZERER (24) - - - (24) 24
(4,270,029)  (1,100,986) (82,079) (41,292) (5,494,386) 5,287,709
31 December 2017 ZB-tE+-A=1-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ ¥{i£IE2z¢RAE
Bank loans RTER (238,502) - - - (238502 229,046
Loans from controlling shareholder B ERRREH (976,064) - - - (976,064) 913,009
Other loans HiER (44.582) - - - (44582 43,402
Notes payable, creditors and accrued A Z1 « B HER
charges EARAER (3,574,014) - - - (3,574,014) 3,574,014
Amounts due to related companies BT RELEFHE (171,903) - - - (171,903 171,903
Obligations under finance leases REMERR (26,405) (26,405) (81,258) (68,945 (203,013) 142,439
(5,031470) (26405  (81,258) (68,945 (5,208,078) 5,074,713
Derivative financial liabilities fiEIAZERER
Derivative financial liabilities TEIAZeREE (40,084) - - - (40,084) 40,084
(5,071,554) (26,405) (81,258) (68,945)  (5,248,162) 5,114,797

C.P. Lotus Corporation [ M&s&E7EH R
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

(i)

26 TRIEREER A AER)

(c) F=mEp

Interest rate profile () FIEHR
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future FMERBIESHMIAERRRSE
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate RENAAREERTSAEREEM
because of changes in market interest rate. RER R o
The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates TEBEREZFERERER  *
relates primarily to the Group’s cash and cash ZRFAEEZREREAEE
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, bank loans, 5 CEAZBRITER  BITE
loans from controlling shareholder, other loans, and R EHERRRER HttE
obligations under finance leases. REmMEREEMT -
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRAVNAEBRBERR 2B
the Group’s net borrowings (interest-bearing liabilities BFE(MEAENRM MK
less interest-bearing financial investments excluding RE (MRIERAEHEEESR
cash held for short-term working capital purposes) at WATIEE 2 S)) TR
the end of the reporting period.
2018 2017
—E-N\¥ —E—+F
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate value interest rate value
BUA=E BHE BUF=E REE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBET T
Variable rate instruments: FHFERIA:
Pledged bank deposits EEAZBITER 0.49% 61,922 0.50% 59,865
Cash and cash equivalents HE&RBE&EH 0.34% 447,963 0.28% 152,393
Bank loans RITER 5.22% (67,313) 5.22% (69,946)
Loans from controlling ERZERBRRER
shareholder 7.21% (944,965) 6.02% (913,009)
Other loans B 3.76% (45,404) 2.50% (43,402)
(547,887) (814,099)
Fixed rate instruments: EEREIA:
Bank loans RITER 4.79% - 5.31% (244,282) |14.70% - 5.22% (160,000)
Obligations under finance ~ BEHEEE
leases 9.8% - 10.03% (129,530) |19.8% - 10.03% (142,439)
(373,812) (302,439)

The Group is exposed to interest risk from loans
from controlling shareholder, which bearing variable
interest rate. At 31 December 2018, the relevant loans
amounted to USD139,770,000. The Group used an
interest rate swap contract to economically hedge the
currency risk of the above loans.
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BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 26 TRIEREER A AE(R)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) FZ=mEp ()

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) SBEDH

R-ZZ2-NE+-A=+—8"
fhEt R R Z100EE M #E (H
B 8 EZ MRS TE) 1§18
RO AREE 2 R FER R

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a change
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease the
Group’s net loss and retained profits by the amounts

shown below: BENEEOT
2018 2017
—F-N\EF| Z2—iF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥ET T

Variable rate instrument: FEHANERIA:

100 basis point increase 010018 & 2 4,109 6,106
100 basis point decrease WA 10018 & 2 (4,109) (6,106)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

(d) Currency risk

The directors consider that as the Group’s retail operations
are all based in the PRC, the Group is not exposed to
significant currency risk in its retail operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from
loans from controlling shareholder held by certain
PRC subsidiaries, which are denominated in USD. At
31 December 2018, the relevant loans amounted to
usSDb108,170,000 (2017: USD120,170,000). The Group
used a forward exchange contract to economically hedge
the currency risk of the above loans. Changes in the fair
value of the forward exchange contract are recognised
in profit or loss. At 31 December 2018, the fair value of
the derivative financial assets in respect of the forward
exchange contract was RMB7,098,000 (2017: derivative
financial liabilities of RMB40,084,000). The forward
exchange contract has maturity of less than one year after
the end of the reporting period.

TEEAFZAR  SFE=-F
—tEZEEMER .

(d) SME R B

EERREAEB2TERBEHUR
PR AREREEZEXEBRHAEEX
SMNEE ELBE o

ASEZIERBERREETH

EREBRBRREER RZZE-—N\F
+ZRA=+—B HBZERAE
£108,170,000t (ZE—tF : &
120,170,0007T) o AREBE{FEH—1E b
EEHeNEEbE h EmERZ
ERKE - MEERHEHNAABEZEE
BRARNERER - NZE-N\E+=A
=1+—H HNERPEONITESH
EENQAFES ARET?,098,000
T(ZE—tF  TEESREBEAA
FS#£40,084,0007t) ° Wb IMNEZEE S
HNBERRERBIONR—FRE
Ao
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(e)

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC
government may at its discretion restrict access to
foreign currencies for current account transactions in the
future. Changes in the foreign exchange control system
may prevent the Group from satisfying sufficient foreign
currency demand and the Group may not be able to pay
dividends in foreign currencies to its shareholders.

Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

At 31 December 2018, the Group has certain
derivative financial instruments - exchange forward
contract, which is measured at fair value. When
measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market observable data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in

level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3: significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable

inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

The fair value of interest rate swap as at 31
December 2018 is categorised into Level 2 fair value
measurement and is estimated as the amount that the
Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account
current interest rates and the current credit worthiness
of the swap counterparties.

The fair value measurement of the forward exchange
contract as at 31 December 2018 is categorised into
Level 2 fair value measurement and is determined by
discounting the difference between the contractual
exercise price and the market forward price as at 31
December 2018 offered by the issuance bank. Except
for the forward exchange contract and interest rate
swap contract, the Group did not hold any other
financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value as at
31 December 2018 and 2017.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2018 and 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2, or
transfer into or out of level 3.

27 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At 31 December 2018, total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

26 TRIEREER A AEE)

(e) AAREZFE (H)

(i) BIFARETEZEHEERE
EHRALE
RZB2-—NER-ZE—tF+=
A=1+—8  AEEzeREE
REERBRAGEHREARARZ

oo

SREERAEARETEEAER o

BEZE-NER=-ZZE—tHF
+=—A=+—HLZEER
EE—REFE-_RoHANER
FEAFEHE=R -

7TEERECEE

REBEA

RZZB-NF+ZA=+—H ' FNABUE
ZEBEHECARREREERNRALE
wmE

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —ZE—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARETF T

Within 1 year —FR 709,686 632,684
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFR 947,474 514,617
After 5 years HE#® 321,260 6,020
1,978,420 1,153,321

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office
and store premises held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for period up to 20 years, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are
usually increased every 1 to 7 years to reflect market rentals.
The store leases typically provide the Group with the ability
to cancel the leases within the lease period on payment of a
penalty and/or after a minimum period of leasing.

In addition to the minimum rental payments disclosed above,
certain leases provide for contingent rentals based on a
percentage of the turnover. Contingent rental payables are not
included in the above commitment.

AEEDETHLAERIEMYE2EER
EFRAAN - HE-RBYPWEZ_+5F
TREBEZMEKRRKEERESE -8
ENFBES-—ZELFRMURRTSHE
BRR - ERHEEBREEAEERNEEH
Euiﬁ%%&/ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬂ
HEE -

BrEMBENREEAENHRIS  ETHE
ERBEHEFENEOLREIAEE - £
MAEPR T EBERAREERTRK -
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27 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)
As lessor

Property rental income earned net of negligible outgoings
from subletting of the Group’s leased properties during the
year amounted to approximately RMB572,100,000 (2017:
RMB522,828,000).

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as
follows:

7 EEHE 2EE (F)

BHEEA

RER AEB2HEYWERS KA
RNBHEAERMEIENBARE
572,100,000t (ZZ2—tF : AR¥

522,828,0007T) °

RZZE-—NE+=ZA=+—08  ~HBUH
ZEBHEARGREKREERIRLLE
M

2018 2017

—F-N\F | Z2—iF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR®F T

Within 1 year —F R 280,879 257,874
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFRA 349,214 288,991
After 5 years EFE#E 47,053 58,716
677,146 605,581

The leases typically run for an initial period of 3 months to 2
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. In addition to the minimum rental payments
disclosed above, the tenants have commitments to pay
additional rent of a proportion of turnover for certain sub-
leased properties if the turnover generated from those sub-
leased properties exceeds the predetermined levels. Contingent
rentals are not included in the above commitments as it is not
possible to estimate the amounts which may be payable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-F-N\F+-A=t-ALFE(RSERBN UARBTRERD)
28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

28 EAEYE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2018 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

RZB-NF+ZA=+—0 RESH
BHREREARBBEZEREENT -

2018 2017

—E-NEF —ZE—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARET T

Contracted for [EHES 38,277 17,581
Authorised but not contracted for CHtEERKRITHN 667,519 740,304
705,796 757,885

All of the above capital commitments were made in respect of
the establishment of new hypermarket stores and renovation
work on existing stores.

29 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
a Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the
employee make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ gross earnings, subject to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per month per employee. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Employees of the Group in the PRC participate in several
defined contribution retirement schemes organised separately
by PRC municipal governments in regions where the major
operations of the Group are located. The Group is required
to contribute to these schemes at rates ranging from 13%
to 20% (2017: 13% to 20%) of salary costs including certain
allowances. A member of the retirement schemes is entitled
to retirement benefits equal to a fixed proportion of the salary
at the retirement date. The retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired staff of the Group are assumed by
these schemes.

LB EAEE G B R M ARBHR
RBBEH M IREME o

EBERIKER

AEEZHRBZRERESHAEFMELES
((BEEs8])  —EAHBYEIAEE
Z G E - RIBBRESEBIRG - A%
ErkEESASREERWA Z5%H 5
R ReURBERSESS A1,500
B AGEYRBETE 2 E-SET
BT BB REMHRK -

AEEETTEZEESERNEEIELE
e APERBERFSBEEz2E TR
RERETE - AEEFR/LSHERTE
A (BHESE TR #413%220% (=
Z—LF 1 13%E20%) 2K o RIKE
EREZHNRNE UEFH T 2 EERH7
ERRNBER - REBEZEBIETEET
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BE-
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

30 EXHEALZRS

(@) In addition to obtaining loans from controlling shareholder (a)
as disclosed in note 20, the Group entered into the
following material transactions with entities controlled by,
or related to, the ultimate holding company, CPG, during

the year.

PREFEE20PT X BEUS R R R 2 E R
S AEERFRERGREZERAF
CPGHEH|, MHEZEEZEARS N
—F o

Continuing related party transactions
(note (i)

Store merchandise purchased from High
Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) and
its related entities

Rental income from Chia Tai Commercial
Real Estate Management Co., Ltd.
(“CTCREM?”) and its subsidiary

Rental expenses to
- Shanghai Kinghill Limited (“SKL”)

- Kunshan Xinmin Property Co., Ltd.
— Shantou Xinping Investment
Consultation Co., Ltd.
Master trademark fee payable to CPG
Logistic services income from CPG
and its related entities

Other related party transactions

Store merchandise sold to WSL and
its related entities

Interest expenses charged by CPH
(note (ii))

Training expenses paid to Leadership
Development Charoen Pokphand Group
Co., Ltd. ("CPLI") (note (ii))

Loan arrangement fee payable to CPH
(note (ii))

Reimbursement of staff costs (note (iii))

Allocation of administrative expenses
at cost to WSL and its related
entities (note (iii))

Guarantee fee payable to
Zheng Xin Bank Co., Ltd.

(note (ii)

Software license fee payable to CPF IT
Center Company Limited (“CPF IT”)
(note (iv))

Maintenance service fee payable to
CPF IT (note (iv))
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2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®TF T
BFEEBALZRS
(B &£ (i)
FR B8 JE %™ W B High Orient
Enterprises Limited
(THOEL)) R HiE % 54,510 81,637
HEWRABEABEEME
ERERAR(TEXRERE]D
REMEB LR 7,401 7,195
HETHZNF
—LEFEHRBREEARAT
(=23 18,000 18,000
-—BLEREHEBRAF 7,808 7,808
—WEMmEFREZS
BRAF 15,978 14,999
TEEEAZTFCPG 1,094 1,119
Y BR # Ut A BECPG R
Hig@Eex 1,154 1,773
HtEBALZRS
HE/EHE mTWSLE
Hig@t% 836,187 653,577
CPHUER = I B & 3 (H 53X (i)
75,510 64,816
1318 B X {1 FLeadership
Development Charoen
Pokphand Group Co., Ltd.
(TCPLI1) (M &E(ii) 1,888 -
ERZHEXZFCPH
(B (i) 16,176 -
B BB ANERZE (B EE(Gii)) 22,243 15,207
THEBUKAD B FWSLE
H B (MEEGii)
- 2,893
ERERAXNTFERGRT
BRATE (MEEi)
150 600
BHEBRERSZSFCPFIT
Center Company Limited
(TCPFIT]) (BE&E(v)) 9,175 -
HEERBERXMSTCPFIT
(B &E(iv)) 619 L
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BE-EZ-\F+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Notes:

U]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

These related party transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. In addition, master trademark fee paid to
CPG and logistic services income from CPG and its related
entities are exempt from the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the listing rules.

These related party transactions constitute connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
however, they are exempt from the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The employment contracts of certain individuals who
previously worked for the Group but now work for WSL
and its related entities on a full-time basis remained with
the Group. The employment costs of such individuals were
reimbursed by WSL and its related entities to the Group.
Total staff costs disclosed in note 4(b) are stated net of such
reimbursement.

Further, following the organisation restructuring in 2013, the
Group shares certain administrative services with WSL and
its related entities. The Group charges the costs applicable
to WSL and its related entities on a cost basis.

These related party transactions constitute connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordances with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

30 EXAHBALZRS (&)

(@)

(%)

BF&E -

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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HRWE -
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BE-Z-N\E+-A=+-HLFE(RIEHBIN UAR¥ETHEN)
30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) The Group had the following balances with related

(c)

companies:

In addition to the loans from controlling shareholder
disclosed in note 20, the Group had other balances with

30 EXAHBALZXRS (&)

(b) AEBMBEABLEZEROT

BRESEE20FT IR 58 2 FEAT 12 IR IR R E K
Sh o REBREAMAAR R 2 A ER

related companies as follows. T

2018 2017
—E-N\F| ZE-+HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T

Due from related companies WA S ERE
— WSL and its related entities —WSLKE HABE % 588,134 463,165
— HOEL and its related entities —HOELK ErHRE b2 83 345
- CTCREM and its subsidiary —EXEERHEKMEBAF 3,307 2,272
591,524 465,782

Due to related companies FEfH e FRIE
- CPG —CPG 1,134 1,082
— WSL and its related entities -~WSLK EABE1TE 81,100 99,109
— HOEL and its related entities —HOELK HiRRE % 23,085 13,157
- SKL and its subsidiaries - EFEERENBE AT 74,156 58,434
— Other related companies - HibHEE 9,392 121
188,867 171,903

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as

(c) FEEEANEME

FEBTEEBAS2ME - BFEKN
HWBZXNTFARAEEZEH

disclosed in note 6, is as follows: M
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREBET T
Short-term employee benefits EHEERF 24,999 23,606
Post-employment benefits ZEIEET 32 32
Termination benefits BHKRIEHE - -
Equity compensation benefits ERRERA - -
25,031 23,638

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
4(b)).
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31 X2 TR RIHER

FINANCIAL POSITION

31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

31 December | 31 December
2018 2017
—F-NF| ZF—tF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AR¥ET T

Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- -EEREE 324 530
Interests in subsidiaries Bt B A =] #E = 1,929,690 2,278,770
Other long-term prepayments HttREAFENLER 938 -
1,930,952 2,279,300

Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables EERHEMEWIE 215,688 207,088
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEH 40,929 16,500
256,617 223,588
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables EE N MBS KIE 89,129 124,565
Other loans HER 17,009 16,227
Loans from controlling shareholder FETHEEIRIRER E X - 127,794
| 106,138 268,586
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (AR FHE 150,479 (44,998)
Total assets less current liabilities ®EERTBHERE 2,081,431 2,234,302

Non-current liability kRBEME
Loans from controlling shareholder BAEZEREREN 215,964 -
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 215964 | -
NET ASSETS EEFHE 1,865,467 2,234,302

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#EE
Share capital fig 25 25(c) 405,726 405,726
Reserves ] 25(a) 1,459,741 1,828,576
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 1,865,467 2,234,302

R-ZE-NFZAZ+LtHREESZME
RRETIE -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 February 2019.

Soopakij Chearavanont Umroong Sanphasitvong

#HEA Director
Director EE
-
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32 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 1(e).

33 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING

COMPANIES

At 31 December 2018, the directors consider the immediate
holding company to be C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and
the ultimate holding company to be Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited, which is incorporated in the Kingdom of
Thailand. None of these entities produces financial statements
available for public use.

34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The selection of critical accounting
policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors
to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial
statements. Notes 9, 10 and 11 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and goodwill. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

(a) Going concern

The directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light
of the Group’s net current liabilities of approximately
RMB1,723.2 million. The directors consider that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements using a
going concern basis. Further details are set out in notes
1(b) and 26(b). Should the Group be unable to continue as
a going concern, all of the Group’s assets and liabilities
would have to be stated at their net realisable value. In
particular, the non-current assets and the non-current
liabilities would have to be reclassified as current assets
and current liabilities respectively and provision for
contingent liabilities may be required as a result.

Annual Report 2018 & #&

32

33

34

EEREF
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ERTTFEY - ERSTREZEBE—
SHBRBERMEE(E) °
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ZENTMEADBALTMER ZPHERE

RS |
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34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the estimated useful lives of the
assets and their residual values, if any. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Impairment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land, goodwill
and other non-current assets may not be recoverable,
these assets may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36, “Impairment of assets”. The carrying amounts
of these assets are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined
below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable, except for goodwill which is tested annually
for impairment. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount.
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which
goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the net selling price and the value in use.
It is difficult to precisely estimate selling prices because
quoted market prices for the Group’s assets are not
readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and amount of operating costs.

34 &5tk at K& M B (&)

(b) ME - FERKBINE

(c)
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% RMEFTERFHRUEBRERE -
AEESFEHNEEZGHEAFTH
RESME (WA) - ERFHHREAR
SEHEUEECBEIEREE -
BEMGSTHREREER  RARAE
ZHERXXETURE -

B (B

EfERBERRE - FERRE - A
Bt BERAMFERBEE 2K
EEEELIRER HEEERS
WRAHDRE] MREBETRES
2RI E365 - [ £ Z 6 & | T &
RoMEEECRAESEHEH
DURHE AW B 23 R 5 B BRE RN AR
HE EESHIBHETRUEEE
Z RS BREE AT R R B -
EESETRENR  HESFETH
ERHZEER - FHERER
REESRETRESE BEHE
BOREAGHBEIRTZHEE
EBEUEREE TREBESE
BEFENFEAEEZORSE - BRI
AMBSAKEEEZTSHRE At
HNERMGITHEEE REEERE
B BEELEMRESREER
EEEH > MUEFERREREERAE
SREEHERHE - ARERARE
REERNEETREHE 2 SEERY
T BRERKBEREERLTSHE
ZRERA X2 R AR AE
fl &t e

C.P. Lotus Corporation [ M&s&E7EH R



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ- \F+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTHREN)

34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Income tax

Determination of income tax provision and recognition of
certain deferred tax assets involve judgement regarding
the future tax treatment of certain transactions and the
future profitability of certain subsidiaries. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provision are set up accordingly. In assessing the need
to recognise a deferred tax asset, management considers
all available evidence, including projected future taxable
income, tax planning strategies, historical taxable income,
and the expiration period of the losses carried forward. In
cases where the actual future taxable profits are less than
expected, a reversal of a deferred tax asset may arise,
which will be recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which such a reversal takes place.

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

34 &5tk at &M B (&)
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Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

REFHBRRAURER

HKFRS 16, Leases

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income
tax treatments

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term
interest in associates and joint ventures
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
the new standards which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may differ as
the assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may
be identified before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six-month period ending
30 June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the
standards are initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(k), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor
and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the
lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not
to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans
to use the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or contain,
leases. The Group will therefore apply the new definition of a
lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on
or after the date of initial application. In addition, the Group
plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying the new
accounting model to short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 with optional
practical expedients that the right-of-use asset is measured
at an amount equal to the lease liability (subject to certain
adjustments).

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s future contractual
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases to third parties amounted to RMB1,978,420,000, on an
undiscounted basis (see note 27). When taking into account of
the early termination option that are reasonably certain to not
to be exercised, the future minimum lease payments amount to
RMB7,950,581,000 (within one year: RMB701,699,000, between
one and five years: RMB2,403,702,000 and after 5 years
RMB4,845,180,000), on an undiscounted basis.
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERSE
o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(MARMTREN)
A summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last ZRNEBEBEZAENREEv%E - SEREE
five financial years is as follows: BMENOT :
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-mE —E-FE —E-RE —E—+F —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR%®TR ARBTR
RESULTS £ |
Revenue O 10,911,966 10,660,452 10,085,679 9,655,191 10,122,022
(Loss)/profit before taxation Bx%ia1 (BE) /&EF (23,472) 153 (514,711) 225,252 (222,499)
Income tax PrEH (34,972) (18,224) (22,889) (46,212) (65,860)
(Loss)/profit for the year £ E (E18) /&7 (58,444) (18,071) (537,600) 179,040 (288,359)
Attributable to: BUF AT :
Equity shareholders of the A FRE
Company (58,428) (17,958) (537,587) 179,040 (288,359)
Non-controlling interests ~ JEERAER (16) (113) (13) - -
(Loss)/profit for the year £ (F1#8) /&F (58,444) (18,071) (537,600 179,040 (288,359)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES B{EREE

Total assets myaE 6,945,156 7,127,637 6,886,213 6,874,071 7,110,735
Total liabilities Y (4,935,041)  (5,077,616)  (5,363,285)  (5,184,501) |  (5,703,566)
NET ASSETS HESE 2,010,115 2,050,021 1,522,928 1,689,570 1,407,169

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXJ i1

Total equity attributable to 272 7] iR R FE 1
equity shareholders of the ~ FE& 8%

Company 2,008,378 2,048,397 1,522,928 1,689,570 1,407,169
Non-controlling interests ~ JE{ERAEX 1,737 1,624 - - -
TOTAL EQUITY ERan 2,010,115 2,050,021 1,522,928 1,689,570 1,407,169
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21st Floor BERERETNSER

Far East Finance Centre EREMAPL-T

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Auditors L% ]

Messrs. KPMG EERSMSEH

8th Floor, Prince’s Building HEHIE

10 Chater Road EITE 55

Central RFRENE

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers FEFRET

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited BIHHRIT(EB)BERAT
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited
Share Registrars BHBEERLE

Hong Kong &

Tricor Progressive Limited HEBEEBRAT

Level 22 EREFRER-—ANTZ=H
Hopewell Centre EMPLZ+ =8

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands HEHE

Maples Corporate Services Limited Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309 P.O. Box 309

Ugland House Ugland House

Grand Cayman Grand Cayman

KY1-1104 KY1-1104

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

Share Listing IR 2 £ T ith 2

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited BERABMERZHERLT
Stock Code: 00121 R 3 X 5% © 00121

Company Website AT HEIL
http://www.cplotuscorp.com http://www.cplotuscorp.com

C.P. Lotus Corporation [ M&s&E7EH R



Financial Calendar and Shareholder Information

MBEBERKRRESR
M.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2019 —E— hEHBERE

Annual Results announced 27 February 2019
B A2 T E ¥ —E-hEF-A-t+H
Annual General Meeting May 2019
CES LIS —E-NFEA
2019 Interim Results August 2019
—E-NERHEE —2—NENA
Financial year end 31 December
B F EAL A = g il
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION EKXR#H®
Share Capital % 72 Nominal value
HE Number of
As at 31 December 2018 HK$ shares HK$°000
R-ZB-NE+=-HA=+—H BT % 8 FET
Ordinary Shares % & %
Authorised & TE 0.02 34,000,000,000 680,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up E TR HE 0.02 11,019,072,390 220,381
Series A Convertible Preference Shares A% 5l Al & R 8 £ IR
Authorised X 7€ 0.02 2,000,000,000 40,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 1T R & 2" 0.02 1,518,807,075 30,376
Series B Convertible Preference Shares BZJ| TR E LR
Authorised £ & 0.02 4,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 31T R & 2" 0.02 3,897,110,334 77,942
Series C Convertible Preference Shares CZ% %l Al #2 I & 5t I%
Authorised £ & 0.02 4,500,000,000 90,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up** B2 21T R 2~ 0.02 3,671,509,764 73,430
Series D Convertible Preference Shares D% 3l 7 #2 i & 5t %
Authorised £ TE 0.02 2,500,000,000 50,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B %17 K 8 2* 0.02 2,211,382,609 44,228
* Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited * HC.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
LimitediZ &
o Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited & Public o HC.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited A REFH

Shareholding R 2 % of issued

share capital
As at 31 December 2018 Number of shares 2BTRA
R-B-NE+=-H=+—H B & ZEDHK
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited 6,788,319,021 61.61%
Public & Others X R & H Ath 4,230,753,369 38.39%
TOTAL % 11,019,072,390 100%

Stock Code &35

Hong Kong Stock Exchange =BT 00121
Reuters Reuters 0121 HK
Bloomberg Bloomberg 121 HK
Request for Feedback BRER

Please email to contact@cplotuscorp.com for any comments on our MR ATZAERFBEETAZE > HEH
public announcements and disclosures. Zcontact@cplotuscorp.com °

Annual Report 2018 & #&



C.P. Lotus Corporation
M E % B R 2 F
I - (Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(REISBESEMAIZHRAF)
Stock Code B&#X5% : 00121
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